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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Separate and consolidated financial statements al ecember 2015

Dear Shareholders,

the separate and consolidated financial statesveenat and for the year ended 31

December 2015, submitted for your approval, shespectively, a profit of Euro 8,109 thousand

and a profit attributable to the owners of the pacé Euro 11,053 thousand.

In 2015, the Cairo Communication Group operatea: as

= publisher of magazines and books (Cairo Editoredfidle Giorgio Mondadori and Cairo
Publishing);

= TV (La7, La7d) and Internet (La7.it, TG.La7.it) pisher;

= multimedia advertising broker (Cairo Pubblicita) tbe sale of advertising space on TV, in
print media, on the Internet and in stadiums;

= network operator (Cairo Network), for the activitief which, in 2015, work continued on
the realization of the mux.

In 2015, the general economic and financial contmdrked by a high degree of uncertainty,

continued to report negative effects. To date,elremains uncertainty over the period required

for a return to normal market conditions.

Based on AC Nielsen figures, advertising investmeiri Italy in 2015 amounted to

approximately Euro 6.3 billion, down 0.5% versusl20The analysis by media shows that in

2015:

= the magazine advertising market dropped by 4.1%u&eP014, when it had slid by 6.5%
versus 2013,

= the TV advertising market basically confirmed (0)78e amounts of 2014, when it had
confirmed (-0.5%) those of 2013.

The uncertainty factors in the short-medium ecomamim also hit magazine sales figures.

In 2015, despite such economic context in genemnal specifically of its relevant markets

(advertising and publishing), and despite the degmrted by advertising revenue also as a result

of the market trend, the Cairo Communication Group:

- reported in 4Q15 a strong improvement in the resméind versus the first nine months of

the year, achieving gross operating profit (EBITD#) approximately Euro 6.8 million,

exceeding the result achieved in 4Q14 (Euro 6.6an)k



- continued its growth strategy by launching “Nuov®”T the new TV weekly led by
Riccardo Signoretti, out on newsstands from 21 &uaper; in the first 22 issues, it posted
average sales of approximately 142 thousand colpighly satisfactory results in line with
forecasts; Thanks also to the results achievedNayovo TV", on 26 January 2016, the
Group launched "Nuovo e Nuovo TV Cucina", the fagirly magazine dedicated to good
food for every cooking connoisseur, presenting gaffgrdable and successful recipes, sold
as an option with the two weeklies “Nuovo” and “NooTl V", which reported average sales
of approximately 165 thousand copies in the firsshies;

- reported a strong growth in results in the magazoblishing segment which, despite
incurring total costs of Euro 1.4 million in Septesn and October to launch the new

weekly, achieved gross operating profit (EBITDAYasperating profit (EBIT) of Euro 14.6

million and Euro 13.5 million (up by approximate§.1% and 7.7% versus 2014),
confirming the high circulation levels of the pudations, and worked on improving the
levels of efficiency reached in containing cost®uction, publishing and distribution);

- continued - in a persistently weak advertising rarkto work on strengthening the results
of the rationalization and cost-curbing measurdsiexed in the TV publishing segment
(La7) in 2013 and 2014, and succeeded in posting@QiL5 too, a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of approximately Euro 1.6 milliorspecifically, in 4Q15, gross operating
profit (EBITDA), amounting to approximately Euro74million, grew by about 50% versus
the figure achieved in 4Q14, thanks also to thedr@ advertising sales on La7 and La7d

channels in December 2015, up by more than 10%usddecember 2014.

In 2015 consolidated gross operating profit (EBITDA) aygerating profit (EBIT) came to Euro
17.6 million and Euro 9.3 million (Euro 28.2 milhioand Euro 23 million in 2014). Profit

attributable to the owners of the parent came for@pmately Euro 11.1 million (Euro 23.8

million in 2014).

Looking at the business segments, in 2015:

- in themagazine publishing segmentgross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating figro
(EBIT) came to Euro 14.6 million and Euro 13.5 roitl (Euro 13.8 million and Euro 12.5

million in 2014). The period under review confirmtge excellent circulation results (Euro
72.6 million versus Euro 73.4 million in 2014). &btosts of approximately Euro 1.4 million
were incurred in September and October 2015 forlabach of “Nuovo TV”, which was

supported by an advertising campaign also at newdst



- in the TV publishing segment (La7) the Group continued to work on strengthening the
results of the rationalization and cost-curbing sueas achieved in 2013 and 2014, and

succeeded in posting, in 2015 too, a positive gropsrating profit (EBITDA) of

approximately Euro 1.6 million. __Operating profiEgIT) came to a negative figure of

approximately Euro 4.9 million and benefited in tansolidated financial statements from
lower amortization and depreciation of Euro 9.2liomil, due to the write-down of tangible
and intangible assets made in 2013 in the purghdse allocation of the investment in La7.
In 2014, gross operating profit (EBITDA) and operatprofit (EBIT) came to approximately

Euro 9 million and Euro 6.2 million. Operating ptofEBIT) benefited in the consolidated

financial statements from lower amortization angreeiation of Euro 18.2 million;
- in the advertising segment gross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating fitr¢EBIT)

came to Euro 1.3 million and Euro 0.7 million (E&@ million and Euro 4 million in 2014).

In 2015, gross advertising sales on La7 and LaZhméls amounted to Euro 140.1 million
(Euro 152.9 million in 2014); specifically, thanks the results achieved in December, the
performance of advertising sales (approximately )-3#% 4Q15 showed a marked
improvement versus the first nine months of the yeeer -10%);

- in the network operator segment,in January 2015, the Group company Cairo Network,
which took part in 2014 in the tender procedurenageby the Ministry of Economic
Development for the assignment of rights to use fféquencies for digital terrestrial
broadcasting systems, winning the rights to usat afl frequencies (“mux") for a period of
20 years, entered with ElI Towers S.p.A. (“EIT”) dnthe agreements for the realization
(currently in progress) and subsequent long-texchrtieal management in full service mode

(hospitality, service and maintenance, use of brasiihg infrastructure, etc.) of the mux.

Specifically, the results achieved4Q15 showed a clear improvement versus those reported in

the course of the year. Consolidated gross operainfit (EBITDA) came to approximately

Euro 6.8 million, up from the figure achieved in ¥Q(Euro 6.6 million)._Operating profit
(EBIT) came to Euro 4.5 million (Euro 5.4 million #Q14). Profit attributable to the owners of

the parent came to approximately Euro 4.4 milligarg 4.9 million in 4Q14). Specifically, as
mentioned earlier, in 4Q15, the Group’s TV publighsegment (La7) achieved gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 4.7 million, up by approxiately 50% versus 4Q14.

Regarding weeklies, with approximately 1.8 milli@verage copies sold in the January-

December twelve-month period of 2015, the Grouginstits position as the leading publisher in



copies of weeklies sold at newsstands, with ancaqmately 28% market share. Taking also into
account the average sales of “Nuovo TV” in thetflt§ issues, overall copies sold increase to

approximately 1.9 million.

In 2015, La7’s average all-day share was 3.06%3an in prime timgfrom 8:30 PM to 11:30
PM), with a high-quality target audience. La7d’'sushwas 0.51%. The audience figures of the
channel’'s news and discussion programmes - sutiea® PM newscast (5.1% from Monday to
Friday), “Otto e mezzo” (5.1%), “Piazza Pulita” 4%0), “Crozza nel Paese delle Meraviglie”
(7.5%) “Servizio Pubblico” (5.5%), “Le invasioni Baariche” (3%), “Coffee Break” (4.4%),
“Omnibus” (4.3%), “La Gabbia” (3.5%), “L’aria che&a” (5.5%), “Bersaglio Mobile” (4%), “Di
martedi” (5.3%), “In Onda” (4%), and “L’Aria d’edt&l’ (4.6%) - were positive.

PERFORMANCE

Cairo Communication Group — Consolidated figures

The mainconsolidated income statemenfigures in 2015 can be compared with the figures in
2014:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Gross operating revenue 250,603 266,014
Advertising agency discounts (24,021) (25,748)
Net operating revenue 226,582 240,266
Change in inventory 33 (28)
Other revenue and income 9,403 11,627
Total revenue 236,018 251,865
Production cost (157,505) (163,048)
Personnel expense (60,955) (60,634)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 17,557 28,183
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (8,217) (5,221)
EBIT 9,340 22,962
Net financial income 692 1,829
Income (loss) on investments - (2)
Pre-tax profit 10,032 24,789
Income tax 1,040 (973)
Non-controlling interests (18) (24)
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the owners of 11,054 23,792
the parent

Profit/ (loss) from discontinued operations atttdhle to the (1)
owners of the parent (1)

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 11,053 23,791




In 2015, consolidated gross revenue amounted toogimpately Euro 260 million, comprising

gross operating revenue of Euro 250.6 million atietiorevenue and income of Euro 9.4 million
(Euro 277.6 million in 2014, comprising gross opieg revenue of Euro 266 million and other

revenue and income of Euro 11.6 million). Consdbdagross operating profit (EBITDA) and

operating profit (EBIT) came to approximately Eurd.6 million and Euro 9.3 million (Euro
28.2 million and Euro 23 million in 2014). The c®gtcurred in September and October 2015 to
launch the new TV weekly amounted to approximakiyo 1.4 million. Consolidated profit was
approximately Euro 11.1 million (Euro 23.8 millian 2014). The increase in “amortization,
depreciation, provisions and impairment losses20i5 is attributable to the amortization of

television rights acquired by La7 effective fronviay 2013.

As mentioned earlier, in 2015 operating profit (EBIin the TV publishing segment (La7)

benefited in the consolidated financial statemérms lower amortization and depreciation of

Euro 9.2 million, due to the write-down of tangilded intangible assets made in 2013 in the
purchase price allocation of the investment in LE&af. the same reason, in 2014, operating profit
(EBIT) in the TV publishing segment (La7) benefitedthe consolidated financial statements

from lower amortization and depreciation of Euro2l&illion.

The Groupstatement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Profit attributable to the owners of the parent 11,053 23,791

Other non-reclassifiable items
of the comprehensive income statement

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans (38) (1,367)
Tax effect 10 376
Total comprehensive income 11,025 22,800

The Group’s performance can be read better by aimgiythe 2015 results byain business
segment [magazine publishing, advertising, TV publishinga?), network operator (Cairo

Network) and Il Trovatore]:



2015 Maggzi_ne Ac!ver TV ) Trovatore Network Intra- Total
Publishing  tising publishing operator group
(€ thousands) tan Ngt:vigi) unaﬁggated
Gross operating revenue 95,037 168,588 102,098 893 - (116,013) 250,603
Advertising agency discounts - (24,021) - - - - 4,@21)
Net operating revenue 95,037 144,567 102,098 893 - (116,013) 226,582
Change in inventory 33 - - - - - 33
Other income 1,803 1,151 6,349 2 98 - 9,403
Total revenue 96,873 145,718 108,447 895 98 (118)01 236,018
Production cost (62,640) (136,368) (73,684) (684) 143} 116,013 (157,505)
Personnel expense (19,615) (8,015) (33,191) (77) 7) (5 - (60,955)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 14,618 1,335 1,572 134 (102) - 17,557
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and  (1,139) (632) (6,445) -
impairment losses (1) - (8,217)
EBIT 13,479 703 (4,873) 134 (103) - 9,340
Income (loss) on investments - - - - - - -
Net financial income (16) 73 631 4 - - 692
Pre-tax profit 13,463 776 (4,242) 138 (103) - 10,032
Income tax (4,658) (726) 6,447 (51) 28 - 1,040
Non-controlling interests - - - (18) - - (18)
Profit from continuing operations 8,805 50 2,205 69 (75) - 11,054
attributable to the owners of the parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations - - - - - 1) 1)
Profit 8,805 50 2,205 69 (75) ()] 11,053
2014 Maggzihe Ad_ver TV ) Trovatore Network Intra- Total
Publishing tising publishing operator group
(€ thousands) tan Néﬁg&) unaﬁ:gated
Gross operating revenue 96,708 181,332 110,913 834 - (123,773) 266,014
Advertising agency discounts - (25,748) - - - ,(28)
Net operating revenue 96,708 155,584 110,913 834 - (123,773) 240,266
Change in inventory (28) - - - - (28)
Other income 1,321 919 9,323 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,001 156,503 120,236 896 2 (123)773 251,865
Production cost (65,098) (144,026) (77,016) (673) 8) ( 123,773 (163,048)
Personnel expense (19,120) (7,251) (34,221) (42) - - (60,634)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 13,783 5,226 8,999 181 (6) - 28,183
Amortization, depreciation, provisions (1,261) (1,181) (2,778) - (5,221)
and impairment losses (1) -
EBIT 12,522 4,045 6,221 181 ()] - 22,962
Income / (loss) on investments - 2) - - - - )
Net financial income 17 390 1,423 (1) - - 1,829
Pre-tax profit 12,539 4,433 7,644 180 (@) - 24,789
Income tax (4,502) (1,795) 5,385 (61) - - (973)
Non-controlling interests - - - (24) - - (24)
Profit from continuing operations 8,037 2,638 13,029 95 ) - 23,792
attributable to the owners of the parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - - - - 1)
operations - (1)
Profit 8,037 2,638 13,029 95 7) @ 23,791




Gross operating revenuein 2015, split up by main business segment, cararmyzed as

follows versus the amounts of 2014:

Gross revenue 2015
(€ thousands)

Magazine  Advertising TV Trovatore Network Intra-group Total

publishing publishing operator eliminations

(La7) (Cairo and
Network) unallocated

Magazine over-the-counter 72,557 - - - - - 72,557
sales
Print media advertising 20,106 26,675 - - - (19,865) 26,916
TV advertising - 137,427 98,706 - - (94,284) 141,849
Stadium signage - 3,057 - - - - 3,057
Internet advertising - 828 971 552 - (1,021) 1,330
Revenue from concession of - 1,200 - - - 1,200
programming schedule spaces i
Other TV revenue - - 1,221 - - - 1,221
Subscriptions 2,831 - - - - - 2,831
Books and catalogues 971 - - - - - 971
Other revenue 4 601 - 341 - (843) 103
VAT relating to publications (1,432) - - - - - (1,432
Total gross 95,037 168,588 102,098 893 - (116,013 250,603
operating revenue
Other revenue 1,803 1,151 6,349 2 98 - 9,403
Total revenue 96,840 169,739 108,447 895 98 (116,013) 260,006
Gross revenue 2014
(€ thousands)

Magazine Advertising TV Trovatore Network Intra-group Total

publishing publishing operator eliminations

(La7) (Cairo and
Network) unallocated

Magazine over-the-counter 73,400 - - - - - 73,400
sales
Print media advertising 20,931 27,687 - - - (20,641) 27,977
TV advertising - 149,636 106,991 - - (101,412) 155,215
Stadium signage - 2,537 - - - - 2,537
Internet advertising - 870 759 494 - (878) 1,245
Revenue from concession of - - 982 - - - 982
programming schedule spaces
Other TV revenue - - 2,181 - - - 2,181
Subscriptions 2,883 - - - - - 2,883
Books and catalogues 980 - - - - - 980
Other revenue - 602 - 340 - (842) 100
VAT relating to publications (1,486) - - - - - (1,486)
Total gross 96,708 181,332 110,913 834 - (123,773) 266,014
operating revenue
Other revenue 1,321 919 9,323 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,029 182,251 120,236 896 2 (123,773) 277,641
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The main figures of the consolidatethtement of financial positionat 31 December 2015 can

be analyzed versus the situation at 31 Decembet:201

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Statement of financial position

Property, plant and equipment 3,080 3,069
Intangible assets 60,917 56,871
Financial assets 1,702 1,175
Deferred tax assets 4,186 3,983
Net current assets (17,438) (19,071)
Total assets 52,447 46,027
Non-current borrowings and provisions 41,973 43,741
(Net financial position)/Net debt (105,776) (124196
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 6,196 126,311
Equity attributable to non-controlling interests 54 36
Total equity and liabilities 52,447 46,027

At their Meeting on 28 April 2015, the shareholdepproved the distribution of a dividend of
0.27 Euro per share, inclusive of tax, with coudetachment date on 11 May 2015.

It should be noted that in the consolidated finahsiatements for the year ended 31 December
2013, the acquisition of La7 had been accountedifider IFRS 3, applying the "acquisition
method", by measuring the fair value of identif@ablssets and liabilities acquired, considering
the future profit-generating capacity of La7 S.p(fermer La7 S.r.l.) at the date of acquisition.
This approach determined:

e the recognition of “provisions for future risks amtiarges” of Euro 21.4 million,
regarding certain contracts whose non-discretionapgts to fulfill obligations
exceeded the assumed economic benefits, and spesifisituations related to existing
and/or performed contracts and pending and potéditiggtion,

e the full write-down of non-current assets at théedaf acquisition of La7 (30 April
2013), consisting primarily of TV broadcasting tigh and specific technical
equipment, whose value was deemed unrecoverabiewnof the income prospects of

La7 S.r.l. at the acquisition date.

The consolidatedhet financial position at 31 December 2015, versus the situation at 31

December 2014, can be summarized as follows:

11



(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change

Cash and cash equivalents 125,776 149,061 (23,285)
Current financial assets - - -
Bank loans (20,000) (25,000) 5,000
Total 105,776 124,061 (18,285)

The bank loan granted by Unicredit S.p.A. and use@airo Network to pay part of the rights of

use of the TV frequencies, is secured by a guaedasseied by the parent Cairo Communication.

To analyze the major financial indicators, the abidaited asset structure at 31 December 2015

can be examined using a reclassified statementisgomcreasing liquidity/settlement:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
(€ thousands)
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible asset 63,997 59,940
Financial assets 1,702 1,175
Deferred tax assets 4,186 3,983
Total non-current assets 69,885 65,098
Current assets
Inventories 3,141 3,296
Trade receivables (unavailable liquid funds) 38,5 79,957
Other unavailable liquid funds 8,464 14,969
Total current operations assets 90,144 98,222
Available liquid funds 125,776 149,061
Total current assets 215,920 247,283
Invested capital 285,805 312,381
Equity attributable to owners of the parent 116250 124,347
Consolidated liabilities
Post-employment benefits and provisions for reskd
charges 41,973 43,741
Non-current borrowing liabilities 15,000 20,000
Total consolidated liabilities 56,973 63,741
Current liabilities
Current operating liabilities 107,582 117,293
Current borrowing liabilities 5,000 5,000
Total current liabilities 112,582 122,293
Financing capital 285,805 312,381
Profit 11,053 23,791
Operating profit (EBIT) 9,340 22,962
Sales 226,582 240,266

An analysis of the financial position of the Grouging the main financial indicators indicates

that the Cairo Communication Group is suitably taed to maintain financial equilibrium in

the medium/long term and has a very sound equisitipa as it has significant cash resources,
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and generates positive results in its traditiomgnsents, and can finance its current operations
even within the dynamics of its current assets.kirap at the TV publishing segment, in 2016,
the Group will continue to work on strengthening ttesults of the rationalization and cost-

curbing measures achieved in 2013 and 2015.

(€ thousands) Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Solvency indicators
Current assets less current Current assets-current liabilities 103,338 124,990
liabilities margin

Current assets less current Current assets /current liabilities 1.92 2.02
liabilities ratio
Treasury margin (Unavailable liquid funds + 100,197 121,694
available liquid funds)-current
liabilities
Treasury ratio (Unavailable liquid funds + 1.89 2.00
available liquid funds)/current
liabilities
Non-current asset financing
indicators
Own funds less fixed assets Own funds — non-current assets 46,365 61,249
margin
Own funds less fixed assets ratio Equity /non-current assets 1.7 1.9
Own funds plus non-current ~ (Own funds+ non-current 88,338 104,990
liabilities less non-current assets liabilities) — non-current assets
margin
Own funds plus non-current (Own funds+ non-current
liabilities less non-current assets liabilities)/
ratio 2.3 2.6

Financing structure indicators

Total debt ratio (non-current + current liab.)/own 15 15
funds

Financing debt ratio Third-party funds/Own funds 0.2 0.2

Current operating assets - (17,438) (19,071)

current operating liabilities

Profitability indicators
ROE Profit /Own funds 9.5% 18.8%

ROI (Inv. op. capital — op. liabilities) 5.2% 11.8%

Other indicators
Receivables turnover 105 101

13



Solvency indicators (liguidity) represent the abilof the company to maintain short-term

financial equilibrium, to meet short-term outflowfsurrent liabilities) with existing cash
(available liquid funds) and short-term inflows @wailable liquid funds). Specifically, available
and unavailable liquid funds fully cover currerdtilities. The statement is used to analyze
overall dynamics and origins of cash movements.

The financing structure and non-current assetsiimg indicators express the strength of equity,

and the ability of the company to maintain finaheiquilibrium in the medium/long term, which
depends on:

- the methods of funding medium/long term commitments

- the composition of funding sources.

Specifically, these indicators, overall, disclobattthere are no risks related to stability in the
composition of the assets and liabilities/equity.

Regarding profitability indicators, the ROI (Retuom Invested capital) is an indicator that
expresses the level of efficiency/effectivenessmporate management. Invested capital as the
denominator is restated for an equivalent amouniatilities without explicit maturity since
their cost is substantially included in operatimgfi.

As further non-financial key performance indicatotise Group mainly uses data relating to
circulation and audience ratings that indicate“thuecess” of each title and programme.

Performance for weeklies and monthlies may be aedlyas follows:

. Dipiu’
Weeklies Dipiu’ Dva& ey V. Nuovo  F Ty Mia
donna .
Cucina

ADS average 2015 523,754 194,562 319,409 153,067 219,092 125,892 143,864

ADS average 2014 536,601 202,572 335,709 164,151 213,816 136,755 154,109

Monthlies Fongn Natural Bell'ltalia BelEuro- _In_ Airone  Gardenia
—_ Magazine  Style pa Viaggio

ADS average 2015 45,779 49,793 51,033 24,071 21,473 55,431 56,014

ADS average 2014 54,894 50,866 51,808 26,727 26,126 61,544 56,298

These figures show how circulation managed to gobdind, despite the tough market in 2015.
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In 2015, La7’s average all-day share was 3.06%3arh in prime timgfrom 8:30 PM to 11:30
PM), with a high-quality target audience. La7d’sughwas 0.51%. The audience figures of the
channel's news and discussion programmes - suttea® PM newscast (5.1% from Monday to
Friday), “Otto e mezzo” (5.1%), “Piazza Pulita” 4%), “Crozza nel Paese delle Meraviglie”
(7.5%) “Servizio Pubblico” (5.5%), “Le invasioni Bzariche” (3%), “Coffee Break” (4.4%),
“Omnibus” (4.3%), “La Gabbia” (3.5%), “L’aria ch&d” (5.5%), “Bersaglio Mobile” (4%), “Di
martedi” (5.3%), “In Onda” (4%), and “L’Aria d'eg&d’ (4.6%) - were positive.

Cairo Communication S.p.A. — Parent performance

The mainincome statement figureof Cairo Communication S.p.A.in 2015 can be compared

as follows versus those in 2014:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Gross operating revenue 106,026 116,595
Advertising agency discounts - -
Net operating revenue 106,026 116,595
Other revenue and income 528 350
Total revenue 106,554 116,945
Production cost (101,646) (108,636)
Personnel expense (3,045) (2,990)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 1,863 5,319
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainhne

losses (259) (290)
EBIT 1,604 5,029
Net financial income 23 365
Income (loss) on investments 7,218 7,084
Pre-tax profit 8,845 12,478
Income tax (735) (1,891)
Profit from continuing operations 8,110 10,587
Loss from discontinued operations (1) (1)
Profit 8,109 10,586

In 2015, Cairo Communication continued to operatelV advertising sales (La7, La7d and
theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerang and CHMN) on the Internet through its
subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita on a sub-concessiomsbassoicing advertising spaces directly to its
customers and returning to Cairo Communication @ estof revenue generated by resources

managed on a sub-concession basis. Specifically:
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gross operating revenue was approximately Euro51@@llion (Euro 116.9 million in

2014);

parent_gross operating profit (EBITDA) was approxiely 1.9 million (Euro 5.3 million in

2014);

operating profit (EBIT) was approximately Euro in@lion (Euro 5 million in 2014);

profit was approximately Euro 8.1 million (Euro &0nillion in 2014).

“Income (loss) on investments” includes the dividemapproved by the subsidiary Cairo Editore,

amounting to Euro 7.5 million, as well as the vahajustment of the investment held in Cairo

Publishing S.r.I., amounting to a negative Euro idiffion. In 2014, it included the dividends

approved by Cairo Pubblicita, amounting to Euro illion, and Cairo Editore, amounting to

Euro 6.2 million, as well as the value adjustmehth® investment held in Cairo Publishing

S.r.l., amounting to a negative Euro 0.2 million.

The Parent’statement of comprehensive incomean be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Statement of comprehensive income of the Parent
Profit 8,109 10,586
Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehengigeme
statement
Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans

28 (135)
Tax effect (8) 37
Total comprehensive income 8,129 10,488

The main figures of thetatement of financial positionat 31 December 2015 can be analyzed

versus the situation at 31 December 2014:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Statement of financial position

Property, plant and equipment 368 457
Intangible assets 296 320
Financial assets 23,027 23,124
Other non-current financial assets 8,963 1,663
Net current assets 3,908 7,325
Total assets 36,562 32,889
Non-current borrowings and provisions 1,452 1,485
(Net financial position)/Net debt (9,039) (25,768)
Equity 44,149 57,172
Total equity and liabilities 36,562 32,889
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As mentioned in the notes to the consolidated siame of financial position, at their Meeting on
28 April 2015, the shareholders approved the thistion of a dividend of 0.27 Euro per share,
inclusive of tax, with coupon detachment date okl 2015.

The increase in "other non-current financial assetsnounting to Euro 7.3 million, is

attributable to the shareholder loan granted tcsthmsidiary Cairo Network S.r.l.

The net financial position of the Parent at 31 December 2015, versus thatiituat 31

December 2014, is summarized as follows:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 9,039 25,768 (16,729)

Current financial assets - - -
Total 9,039 25,768 (16,729)

Statement of reconciliation of the Parent’s equityand profit and
Group equity and profit

The statement of reconciliation of equity and profit of Cairo Communication S.p.and

Group equity and profit can be analyzed as follows:

(€ thousands) Equity Net profit
Financial statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. 44,149 8,109
Elimination of the carrying amount of consolidatuity investments:
Difference between carrying amount of investments their equity value 113,225
Share in subsidiaries’ profit net of investment amment losses

276
Effects of the purchase price allocation of La7.8.p (29,462) 9,952
Allocation of excess consideration paid:
Goodwill 7,198
Elimination of intra-group profits net of incomexta (18,914) 181
Elimination of intra-group dividends (7,465)
Consolidated financial statements of Cairo Communition S.p.A. 116,196 11,053
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Main business segment operating results and relatedsk factors and

strategic opportunities
PRINT MEDIA PUBLISHING

CAIRO EDITORE - CAIRO PUBLISHING

The results achieved by Publishing in 2015 cannadyaed as follows:

Publishing 31 Decembel 31 December
(€ thousands) 2015 2014
Operating revenue 95,037 96,708
Other income 1,803 1,321
Change in inventory 33 (28)
Total revenue 96,873 98,001
Production cost (62,640) (65,098)
Personnel expense (19,615) (19,120)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 14,618 13,783
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (1,139) (1,261)
EBIT 13,479 12,522
Income (loss) on investments - -
Net financial income (16) 17
Pre-tax profit 13,463 12,539
Income tax (4,658) (4,502)
Non-controlling interests -
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the owners of 8,805 8,037
the parent

Loss from discontinued operations - -
Profit 8,805 8,037

In 2015, Cairo Editore strengthened the resultgsopublications and worked on improving the
levels of efficiency reached in containing prodogti publishing and distribution costs.
Specifically:

- Cairo Editore continued its growth strategy by lkehing “Nuovo TV”, the new TV
weekly led by Riccardo Signoretti, out on newsssafrdm 21 September 2015; in the
first 22 issues, it posted average sales of apprabely 142 thousand copies, highly
satisfactory results in line with forecasts;

- the operating results of the Group’s publishingnsewgt increased sharply versus 2014,
despite incurring total costs of approximately Etird million in September and October
to launch the new weekly;

- the period under review basically confirmed the edenit circulation results, with

revenue reaching Euro 72.6 million (Euro 73.4 mwiilin 2014);
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- Group gross advertising sales, which reached EuBal 2million, dropped by

approximately 4% versus Euro 27.2 million in 2014.

In 2015, gross operating profit (EBITDA) and opeérgtprofit (EBIT) came to approximately

Euro 14.6 million and approximately Euro 13.5 roitlji up by approximately 6.1% and 7.7%
versus 2014 (Euro 13.8 million and Euro 12.5 mil)iodespite total costs of Euro 1.4 million

incurred to launch the new weekly.

The Group weeklies confirmed the excellent cirdalatresults achieved, with an average ADS
circulation in the January-December twelve-monthriqae of 2015 of 523,754 copies for
“Settimanale DIPIU”, 319,409 copies for “DIPIU’ TY'153,067 copies for “Settimanale DIPIU’
e DIPIU'TV Cucina”, 194,562 copies for “Diva e Daailh 219,092 copies for “Settimanale
Nuovo”, 125,892 copies for “F”, 143,864 copies f6FvVMia” and 110,105 copies for
“Settimanale Giallo”, reaching a total of approxielg 1.8 million average copies sold, and
making the Group the leading publisher in copieswekklies sold at newsstands, with an
approximately 28% market share. Taking also intwoant the average sales of “Nuovo TV” in
the first 22 issues, overall copies sold increasapproximately 1.9 million.
Thanks also to the results achieved by “Nuovo Taf,26 January 2016, the Group launched
"Nuovo e Nuovo TV Cucina", the fortnightly magazitedicated to good food for every cooking
connoisseur, presenting easy, affordable and ssfttagcipes, sold as an option with the two
weeklies “Nuovo” and “Nuovo TV”, which reported aege sales of approximately 165
thousand copies in the first 5 issues.
As far as circulation is concerned, the featureghef Group’s publications and the Group
strategy help maintain a strong lead over comgstim the current publishing market.
Specifically:
- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some hadf price of those of the main
competitors; this gap increases appeal and allpasesfor potential price increases,

hence for increased profitability;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with aimmiim impact of revenue generated
by gifts and sundry editorial material (approxintat2% on total publishing revenue,
including advertising), whose sales figures havilapeed in the publishing segment;
the Group has opted to focus on the quality of pitdblications; in 2015, gross
advertising revenue generated by the Group’s patidios accounted for 26% (26% in

2014 too) - an extremely low figure, therefore lobhsea lesser extent on the economic
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cycle - while the remaining 74% (74% in 2014 to@me from direct sales and

subscriptions, proof of the high editorial qualitypublications;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximatél9%f publishing sales revenue,
are sold as single copies and not bundled withrotleeklies and/or dailies to bolster

sales;

- the remarkable sales volumes achieved, both inlateseerms and versus Cairo
Editore’'s competitors, make the advertising pagéghlih appealing in terms of
advertising cost per copy sold (equal to the diffele between the price of the
advertising page and copies sold), currently lowlean the publications of its

competitors.

In 2016, Cairo Editore will continue its growthategy with the launch of new products, and will
continue to pursue opportunities to optimize prdigdun; publishing and distribution costs, with
the revision and reorganization of printing proessshe optimization of bordereau costs, and the

revision of a number of other corporate processes.

ADVERTISING

Looking at the advertising segment, in 2015 ther&C&@ommunication Group continued to
operate as advertising broker - with its subsidi@airo Pubblicita - selling space in the print
media for Cairo Editore (“For Men Magazine”, “NaaliStyle”, “Settimanale DIPIU™, “DIPIU’
TV” and weekly supplements “Settimanale DIPIU’ ePDJ)'TV Cucina” and “Settimanale
DIPIU’ e DIPIUTV Stellare”, “Diva e Donna”, “TV Ma’, “Settimanale Nuovo”, “F”,
“Settimanale Giallo” and “Nuovo TV"), the Editor@iGiorgio Mondadori division (“Bell’ltalia”,
“Bell’Europa”, “In Viaggio”, “Airone”, “Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Antiquariato”) and for
Editoriale Genesis (“Prima Comunicazione” and “Unimé Comunicazione”), for the sale of
advertising space on TV for La7 and La7d, and farn€r Broadcasting (Cartoon Network,
Boomerang, CNN), on the Internet (La7.it, TG.La7CGartoon Network.it) and for the sale of
stadium signage and space at the Olimpico in ToriTorino FC.

The results achieved by Advertising in 2015 camahayzed as follows:
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Advertising 31 December 31 December
(€ thousands) 2015 2014
Gross operating revenue 168,588 181,332
Advertising agency discounts (24,021) (25,748)
Net operating revenue 144 567 155,584
Other income 1 919
Change in inventory 1,151 -
Total revenue 145,718 156,503
Production cost (136,368) (144,026)
Personnel expense (8,015) (7,251)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 1,335 5,226
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (632) (1,181)
EBIT 703 4,045
Income (loss) on investments - (2)
Net financial income 73 390
Pre-tax profit 776 4,433
Income tax (726) (1,795)
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit from continuing operations attributable to the owners 50 2,638

of the parent
Loss from discontinued operations - -

Profit for the year 50 2,638

In 2015, total gross advertising revenue, whicludes TV advertising revenue invoiced directly
by La7 (Euro 5.4 million), came to approximatelyr&d73 million (Euro 187.5 million in 2014).
Gross advertising sales on La7 and La7d channetsiated to Euro 140.1 million (Euro 152.9
million in 2014); specifically, thanks to the retsubchieved in December, the performance of
advertising sales (approximately -3%) in 4Q15 sltba@emarked improvement versus the first

nine months of the year (over -10%);

Gross operating profit (EBITDA) and operating pt¢&BIT) came to Euro 1.3 million and Euro
0.7 million (Euro 5.2 million and Euro 4 million 2014).

TV PUBLISHING (La?)

The Group started operations in the TV field in 20fbllowing acquisition from Telecom Italia

Media S.p.A. of the entire share capital of La7.&.ffformer La7 S.r.l.) as from 30 April 2013,
with the upstream integration of its concessionausiness for the sale of advertising space,
diversifying its publishing activities previouslgdused on magazines.

At the acquisition date, the financial situationlaf7 had called for the implementation of a
restructuring plan aimed at reorganizing and sthe@mg the corporate structure and at curbing

costs, while retaining the high quality levels loé forogramming.
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Starting from May 2013, the Group began to implenisnown plan to restructure the company,

achieving, as early as the May-December eight-mpaetiod of 2013, a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 3.7 million, and strengthed in 2014 and in 2015 the results of the cost
rationalization measures implemented, succeediaglineving in 2014 a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 9 million and, in 2015, deite the drop in advertising revenue, a

positive gross operating profit (EBITDA) of Eurc@Imillion.

The trend of results (gross operating profit, EBR)Cachieved by La7 is shown in the chart

below:
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The results achieved by TV Publishing (La7) in 2845 be analyzed as follows:

TV publishing 31 December 31 December
(€ thousands) 2015 2014
Gross operating revenue 102,098 110,913
Other income - -
Change in inventory 6,349 9,323
Total revenue 108,447 120,236
Production cost (73,684) (77,016)
Personnel expense (33,191) (34,221)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 1,572 8,999
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnesses (6,445) (2,778)
EBIT (4,873) 6,221
Income (loss) on investments - -
Net financial income 631 1,423
Pre-tax profit (4,242) 7,644
Income tax 6,447 5,385
Non-controlling interests - -
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 2,205 13,029
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In 2015, the TV publishing segment (La7) achievaubsitive_gross operating profit (EBITDA)

of approximately Euro 1.6 million. Operating profiEBIT) came to a negative figure of

approximately Euro 4.9 million and benefited in tomsolidated financial statements from lower
amortization and depreciation of Euro 9.2 millichye to the write-down of tangible and
intangible assets made in 2013 in the purchase @fiocation of the investment in La7. The
increase in “amortization, depreciation, provisi@m& impairment losses" is attributable to the
amortization of television rights acquired by LaTeetive from 1 May 2013. In 2014, gross
operating profit (EBITDA) and operating profit (EBI came to approximately Euro 9 million

and Euro 6.2 million, Operating profit (EBIT) beiiefl in the consolidated financial statements

from lower amortization and depreciation of EuroZl@illion;

Specifically, in 4Q15, the Group’s TV publishinggegent achieved a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of approximately Euro 4.7 millioryp by approximately 50% versus the figure
achieved in 4Q14, due also to the trend in advedisales on La7 and La7d channels in

December, up by more than 10% versus December ZDfdrating profit (EBIT) came to a

positive figure of approximately Euro 2.8 millioand in 4Q15 benefited in the consolidated
financial statements from lower amortization angrédeiation of Euro 1.3 million, due to the
write-down of tangible and intangible assets mawd2013 in the purchase price allocation of the

investment in La7. In 4Q14, gross operating pr@BITDA) and_operating profit (EBIT) came

to approximately Euro 3.1 million and Euro 2.4 ioitl. Operating profit (EBIT) benefited in the

consolidated financial statements from lower araation and depreciation of Euro 2.8 million.

In 2015, La7’s average all-day share was 3.06%3arh in prime timgfrom 8:30 PM to 11:30
PM), with a high-quality target audience. La7d’sughwas 0.51%. The audience figures of the
channel's news and discussion programmes - suttea® PM newscast (5.1% from Monday to
Friday), “Otto e mezzo” (5.1%), “Piazza Pulita” 4%), “Crozza nel Paese delle Meraviglie”
(7.5%) “Servizio Pubblico” (5.5%), “Le invasioni Bzariche” (3%), “Coffee Break” (4.4%),
“Omnibus” (4.3%), “La Gabbia” (3.5%), “L’aria ch&d” (5.5%), “Bersaglio Mobile” (4%), “Di
martedi” (5.3%), “In Onda” (4%), and “L’Aria d'eg&d’ (4.6%) - were positive.

At end 2015, with a view to focusing activitiesabst Group level, La7 chose WebSystem 24 (24
ORE Group) for the exclusive management of advedisales on the websites La7.it, TgLa7.it,
La7d.it and on the apps TgLa7 and Crozza nel Paelte Meraviglie, in order to also speed up

revenue growth in its digital business. The corntrexpires on 31 December 2016 and is
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renewable for a further year, subject to the adrnimnt of important pre-established annual

advertising revenue targets.

On 23 February 2016, the Extraordinary General Mgetof La7 S.r.l. approved its
transformation into a joint-stock company; the stgjied office, corporate object, share capital

and the duration remain unchanged.

IL TROVATORE

In 2015, Il Trovatore continued operations, maiptpviding technological services to develop

and maintain the online platforms of the Group’mpanies.

NETWORK OPERATOR (CAIRO NETWORK)

As mentioned earlier, in 2014 the subsidiary Caieiwork took part in the tender procedure

opened by the Ministry of Economic Development fbe assignment of rights to use TV
frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastingteyns, submitting its binding bid and winning
the rights to use a lot of frequencies (“mux") égperiod of 20 years.

In January 2015, Cairo Network and El Towers S.§'BIT”) entered into the agreements firstly
for the realization and then long-term technicahagement in full service mode (hospitality,

service and maintenance, use of broadcasting tnficiare, etc.) of the mux.

Alternative performance indicators

In this Report, in order to provide a clearer pietof the financial performance of the Cairo
Communication Group, besides of the conventionahrfcial indicators required by IFRS, a
number of alternative performance indicators a@shthat should, however, not be considered
substitutes of those adopted by IFRS.

The alternative indicators are:

EBITDA: used by Cairo Communication as a target to momi@rnal management, and in
public presentations (to financial analysts ancegters). It serves as a unit of measurement to
evaluate Group and Parent operational performawdd, the EBIT, and is calculated as
follows:

Profit from continuing operations, pre tax

+/- Net finance income

+/- Share in associates
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EBIT- Operating profit

+ Amortization & depreciation
+ Bad debt impairment losses
+ Provisions for risks

EBITDA — Operating profit, before amortization, depreciation, write-downs and

impairment losses

The Cairo Communication Group also considegs financial position as a valid indicator of
the Group’s ability to meet financial obligatiofmth current and future. As can be seen in the
table used above, which details the equity figunesed for the calculation of Group net
financial position, this figure includes cash atidep cash equivalents, bank deposits, securities

and other current financial assets, reduced bynuand non-current bank borrowings.

Transactions with parents, subsidiaries and assodis

In 2015, transactions with related parties, inatgdivith Group companies, were not considered
to be atypical or unusual, and were part of theénamrg activities of Group companies. These
transactions were carried out on market terms,ntpkiccount of the goods and services
provided.

Information on transactions with related partiesdisclosed in_Note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements and in Note 28 of the sepdia@cial statements.

Main risks and uncertainties to which Cairo Communcation S.p.A.

and its Group are exposed

Risks associated with the general economic climate

The financial position, results and cash flows leé tCairo Communication Group may be
influenced by various factors within the macro-emoit environment, such as the increase or
decrease of GNP, the level of consumer and compornfidence, the advertising
expenditure/GDP ratio, interest rate trends antl@osw materials.

In 2015, the general economic and financial climatarked by a high degree of uncertainty,
continued to show its negative effects, creatingr@neasingly complex competitive scenario.
To date, there remains uncertainty over the peréguired for a return to normal market
conditions.

Should this situation of uncertainty continue fome time, the operations, strategy and outlook

for the Group may be impacted.
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To challenge the tough market scenario, the Groygemented, starting in previous periods,

and also in 2015, a series of measures to inceffiseency and effectiveness of the production,

publishing and distribution processes, and willtoare in 2016 to benefit from the high levels of

efficiency achieved. Looking at the TV publishinggsent, in 2016, the Group will continue to

work on strengthening the results of the ratiorditn and cost-curbing measures achieved in
2013-2015.

Risks associated with advertising and publishingketarends

In 2015, the persisting short and medium-term egdoancertainty impacted negatively on the

advertising market.

Based on AC Nielsen figures, in 2015 advertisingestments in Italy amounted to
approximately Euro 6.3 billion, down 0.5% versusl2Qspecifically, -4.1% the magazine
advertising market and +0.7% the TV advertisingkegr The Cairo Communication Group
holds approximately 3.9% of the TV advertising narkd.4% in 2014) and approximately
5.7% of the magazine advertising market (5.7% ih420This market share leaves the Group
room enough for growth, given the high quality amghificant distribution of its own titles, in
particular weeklies, and of the TV resources (owd ander concession), quality, circulation
and audience ratings that provide significant cditipe edge.

The economic climate has slowed the pace of the afatlailies and magazines. Despite the
challenging market, in 2015, it confirmed the rekadte circulation results, with revenue at
Euro 72.6 million versus Euro 73.4 million in 2014.

Advertising

The Cairo Communication Group is significantly egp0d to advertising sales performance,
which has progressively decreased over time assaltref significant developments in the
publishing business. Advertising sales are curyetitt main source of revenue for the TV
publishing segment.

Advertising sales of the advertising segment todegpresent approximately 65%
(approximately 65% in 2014) of total Group reven@ensidering also advertising revenue
directly generated by La7 (approximately Euro 5ilian), the impact of advertising revenue
increases to 67% (approximately 68% in 2014).

Considering the Group’s publishing business aladeertising revenue in 2015 accounted for

26% - an extremely low percentage, therefore bésedlesser extent on the economic cycle -
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while the remaining 74% was generated by distrdsutiand subscription revenue,
demonstrating the great publishing strength of eahieg products.

The sale of advertising space is monitored dailydfgrence to the percentage saturation of the
catchment time, average sales price and the amidtom forecasts. Daily monitoring also
provides/enables a review of the sales forecastaidayth in order to act — with reference to

print media — on advertising pages and thus omtiiueture of product costs.

Management’s attention is focused on the definitidnstrategy and commercial policy to
ensure an effective presentation of the high valuéhe product offering. The features of the

resources offered represent strength for the Girothpe current competitive climate.
La7 boasts an exceptional audience profile, pdaibuappealing in terms of advertising.

Regarding Group titles, the remarkable distributrofumes, in absolute terms and considering
competition, which enabled the Group to becomeldhding publisher of weeklies by copies

sold on newsstands, net of weeklies attached tmslamnake the advertising pages appealing in
terms of advertising cost per copy sold (equahwratio between the price of the advertising

page and the copies sold), which is currently lotlhan competition.
Distribution

Regarding distribution, the features of the produgtiblished by the Group as well as its
strategy, are such as to build a significant coitipetedge in the current climate of the

publishing segment. This is largely explained by fict that:

- cover prices of the weeklies are lower, some siggriftly lower than those of the main

competitors;

- sales are mostly over-the-counter (95%), with aimmimmn impact (approximately 2% on
total publishing revenue, including advertising) r@venue generated by gifts and

sundry editorial materials;

- weekly magazines, which account for approximatedpo9of the total publishing
segment revenue, are sold as single copies anbunoied with other weeklies and/or

dailies to bolster sales.
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Risks associated with extraordinary transactions

As mentioned earlier, the Group started operatiorise TV field in 2013, following acquisition
from Telecom Italia Media S.p.A. of the entire shaapital of La7 as from 30 April 2013, with
the upstream integration of its concessionaire nass for the sale of advertising space,
diversifying its publishing activities previouslgdused on magazines.

At the acquisition date, the financial situationlaf7 had called for the implementation of a
restructuring plan aimed at reorganizing and sthiedémg the corporate structure and at curbing
costs, while retaining the high quality levels loé forogramming.

Starting from May 2013, the Group began to implenigsnown plan to restructure the company,
achieving, as early as the May-December eight-mpetiod of 2013, a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 3.7 million, and strengthed in 2014 and in 2015 the results of the cost
rationalization measures implemented, succeediaglineving in 2014 a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of Euro 9 million and, in 2015, deite the drop in advertising revenue, a
positive gross operating profit (EBITDA) of EurdImillion.

In 2016, the Group will continue to work on strémgting the results of the rationalization and

cost-curbing measures achieved in 2013-1514.

Risks associated with developments in the medimeay

The media segment has seen an increase in thedéysnetration of new communication
resources, in particular the Internet, and the neencrypted theme channels on the digital
terrestrial platform, together with technology inations that may lead to changes in demand
by consumers, who in future will probably requestsonalized content by even directly
selecting the source. As a result, this may chaingeelative importance of the various media

and audience distribution, with consequent greataket fragmentation.

Whereas the development of the Internet may impacthe share of print media, mainly on
dailies and to a much lesser extent on the weeglidkdished by the Group, the growth of the
Internet and of digital theme television may impact the generalist TV audience. Any

development of new TV channels by the Group maynait to take advantage of this situation.

The Group constantly monitors the level of pen&irabf new resources as well as changes in
the business model related to the distributionaftent available to assess the opportunity to

develop the various distribution platforms, withrtpaular attention to the Internet.
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Developments in the regulatory framework are alsatioually monitored for the media

segment and their disclosure within the Group &suesd.

Risks associated with Management and “key staff”

The Group’s success depends on the talents ofxé@suéive Directors and other members of
Management to efficiently manage the Group andrtti¥idual business segments.

Editors and TV personalities, too, have a signifta@le in the titles published and programmes
hosted.

The loss of the services of an executive Direatditor, TV personality or other key resource
without an appropriate substitute, as well as tifiécdlty in attracting and retaining new and
qualified resources, may impact negatively on trespects, operations and financial results of

the Group.

Risks associated with retaining the value of trents of the Group titles and TV programmes

The Cairo Communication Group publishes a numbehighly successful Italian weeklies,
“Settimanale Dipiu” (523,754 copies), “DipiuTV” (81409 copies), “Settimanale Dipiu e
DipiuTV Cucina” (153,067 copies), “TVMia” (143,864opies) “Diva & Donna” (194,562
copies), “Settimanale Nuovo” (219,092 copies), “@25,892 copies), Settimanale Giallo”
(110,105 copies) and “Nuovo TV” (approximately 1000 copies in the first 22 issues). Among
the monthlies, “Gardenia”, “Bell'ltalia”, “For MeMagazine”, “Natural Style” and “Arte” are
leaders in their own segment.

The audience figures of the channel’'s news andudgon programmes - such as the 8 PM
newscast (5.1% from Monday to Friday), “Otto e nodz£5.1%), “Piazza Pulita” (4.4%),
“Crozza nel Paese delle Meraviglie” (7.5%) “SermwizPubblico” (5.5%), “Le invasioni
Barbariche” (3%), “Coffee Break” (4.4%), “Omnibu&.3%), “La Gabbia” (3.5%), “L’aria che
tira” (5.5%), “Bersaglio Mobile” (4%), “Di martedi(5.3%), “In Onda” (4%), and “L’Aria
d’estate” (4.6%) - were positive.

The value of Group brands and TV programmes musobénuously protected by maintaining
the current level of quality and innovation.

The Group publishing strategy has always been &xtas the quality of its products, driven by
the efforts of Management and the editors. Underatireements with the directors, a significant
part of their remuneration may be linked to theulssof distribution, audience ratings and/or

sale of advertising space of the titles and TV prognes.
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Risks associated with business with suppliers

A number of the Group’s production processes, @adrily magazine printing and use of
broadcasting capacity in the TV publishing segmerte outsourced. The outsourcing of
production processes requires close cooperatidntivi suppliers which, on one hand, can result
in economic benefits in terms of flexibility, effemcy and cost reduction, but on the other hand,

results in the Group’s reliance on these suppliers.

Risks associated with legal and requlatory develmm

La7’s activity is mainly governed by Legislative @ee no. 177 of 31 July 2005 as amended by
Legislative Decree no. 44 of 15 March 2010 (herftéémalegislative Decree no. 177/05 as
amended, also called "Consolidated Act"), whicls ske¢ general principles for the provision of
audiovisual and radio media services.

With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbars currently in use (7 for La7 and 29
for La7d) are those assigned by the Ministry of ri&guic Development in 2010, under
AGCOM resolution 366/2010/CONS. The Resolution baén challenged by Telenorba and
other local broadcasters, with partial annulmengécHjrally regarding the assignment of
numbers 7-8 and 9 by the Council of State througlng 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (A®@) unanimously approved the New
Automatic Numbering Plan for digital terrestrialeigision (LCN) by Decision 237/13/CONS.
The decision confirmed, for national traditionab&adcasters, the assignment of numbers 0-9 of
the first block of LCN numbering (see p. 39-40 aAd of AGCOM Decision no.
237/13/CONS).

Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council ofeStaruling (given that it confirmed
assignment to the national traditional broadcasténsumbers 0-9 in the first block of LCN
numbering), Telenorba filed an appeal for comple&andgth ruling n. 4660/12. The appeal was
upheld by the Council of State (ruling no. 6021L.6fDecember 2013), which declared the New
Numbering Plan void (pursuant to Resolution 23780for numbers from 8 to 9, and
appointed a special commissioner tasked with viagfthe correct assignment of numbers from
8 to 9 within 90 days from the beginning of the ga@edings, which started on 24 February
2014. However, since the partial annulment of ttexipus Plan initially included number 7, on
initiation of the procedure, the special commissioninappropriately in the opinion of La7 -

also referred to number 7, which instead, undeRikng, is not subject to verification by the
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Commissioner. AGCOM has in the meantime re-extertdedrevious Plan (based on current
assignments), as also suggested in the State Csunding, in order to avoid a regulatory
void.

In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Consigiser launched a public consultation on an
outline provision named "Automatic numbering pldrligital terrestrial free-to-air and pay TV
channels, procedures for allocating numbers toigess of audiovisual services authorized to
broadcast audiovisual content using digital teéri@lstechnology and relating conditions of
use." Telenorba, All Music and AGCOM have challahgthe acts adopted by the
Commissioner, lodging enforcement reviews and ddaimfore the State Council (the court of
compliance), arguing that the Commissioner had edee the requirements of sentence no.
6021 of 2013.

Following orders n. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 201d mn27 of 2015, under which the Council
of State has given the Commissioner certain reigmst to discharge the task, the
Commissioner adopted a new outline provision (nof Z015), accompanied by an explanatory
report.

With such orders, deeming his task completed, tham@issioner stated that LCN numbers 7, 8
and 9 established by AGCOM in the first plan of @QResolution no. 366/2010/CONS) should
be confirmed. Specifically, the Commissioner deiaged that: a) in light of user preferences
and habits at the time of the switch-off, number8 and 9 were to be assigned to a national
broadcaster; b) in March 2010, seven national pgiv@mmercial analogue broadcasters and
three public channels were in operation (includiray); c) 9 broadcasters had a generalist
schedule (including La7).

Telenorba lodged a complaint with the Council o&t8trequesting the annulment of or a
declaration of invalidity and/or ineffectivenesstié Special Commissioner’'s Resolution No. 7
of 2015, and relating annexes (and of any othelluéens adopted by the Commissioner to the
extent that Telenorba is concerned). All Music dtsiiged a complaint against the resolution
and the report recently adopted by the Commissioner

Through sentence no. 432 of 2016, the Council @fteStuled for the fairness of the
Commissioner's provision, specifically on the paoirtere all three positions - 7, 8, 9 - were to
be assigned to national, not local, broadcasterd, @nfirmed that Telenorba, as a local
broadcaster, had no entitlement to be assigneduaty positions.

Through concurrent ruling no. 1836 of 2016, thenfosession of the Court of Cassation

overturned ruling no. 6021 of 2013 of the CounéiBtate (which, as explained, had annulled
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AGCOM'’s 2013 Plan and had appointed the Commissjosving to violation of the outer
limits of administrative jurisdiction.

To date, the effects of the Court of Cassation’'snguon AGCOM activities (and the
Commissioner’s) are difficult to predict, espegiallith regard to the effectiveness of AGCOM
resolutions no. 366/2010/ Cons and no. 237/13/Cons.

In any case, in the opinion of La7 and its legalisets, further assessments on number 7 are

unlikely to be made, nor will the allocation ofghiumber to La7 be revoked.

Liquidity risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed toidiiy risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held, with a net availglsitive financial position of Euro 105.8 million
whilst on the other hand, it generates positiveltesn its traditional segments, and can finance
its current operations within the dynamics of itsrent assets, even in the current market. An
analysis of the company’s equity structure showth dmuidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidityr the ability to maintain financial stability in
the medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhnd or short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimgdycts, with the prime objective of
maintaining a ready liquidity of the said investrigemhe investment products are selected on the

basis of their credit rating, their reliability attte quality of services rendered.

Interest rate and currency risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed teratt rate and currency risk, in that on
one hand, the net financial position shows a pesfigure, while on the other hand, Group
operations are carried out exclusively in Italy,abrevenue is generated in Italy and main
costs are incurred in Euro.

Interest rate risk only affects the yield on aualéacash.

Movements in the cash flows and the liquidity ob@s companies are centrally monitored and
managed by Group Treasury in order to guaranteect®fé and efficient management of
financial resources.

Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &KOREX risk, the Group limited use of

financial hedging instruments, to hedge currensly an the acquisition of TV rights from film

companies.
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Credit risks

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily @hation to its advertising sales activities. This
risk is however mitigated by the fact that exposigralistributed across a large number of
customers and that credit monitoring and contracpdures are in place. In terms of
concentration, the top 10 customers represent appately 11% (12% in 2014) of total sales,
whilst the top 100 customers represent 50% (54%0i¥). These ratios are basically in line
with prior years.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short ardlium term, along with the resulting credit
squeeze, may of course impact negatively the quallicredit and general payment terms.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, preskmited exposure to credit risk as
publishing revenue is basically generated by om@lsi party - the Group - while for
distribution revenue, the distribution contract \pdes for an advance payment equal to a
highly significant percentage of the estimatedsalecach magazine.

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to cresliis at 31 December 2015 is given by the
carrying amount of trade receivables and othergezed current assets totaling Euro 83.8
million (88.4 million at 31 December 2014), andthg nominal amount of guarantees given on
third-party debts or commitments as indicated ineN\8B.

The credit risks associated with cash and cashvalgmts, with a maximum theoretical
exposure of Euro 125.8 million (Euro 149.1 milliah 31 December 2014), are considered

irrelevant as they are deposits spread acrossugabianks.

Risks associated with litigation

The notes on dther informatiofi (Note 33 to the consolidated financial statemgtntain
information on a number of cases of litigation. Tdaluation of the potential legal and tax
liabilities requires the Group to use estimates asglimptions in relation to forecasts made by
the Directors, based upon the opinions expressethdyGroup’s legal and tax advisers, in
relation to the probable cost that can be reasgnedmsidered to be incurred. The actual

results may vary from these estimates

Report on corporate governance and ownership struatre

1 Issuer profile
Cairo Communication has adopted a traditional systBadministration and control.
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The Shareholders are the corporate body that esgseabe will of the shareholders through its
resolutions at its meeting. It typically appoirtte Chairman.

The Board of Directors has the broadest managempewers to achieve corporate objects,

within the rules, including self-regulatory rulebat apply. Elected every three years at the
Shareholders’ Meeting, it appoints one or more Chieecutive Officers and determines their
powers, and those of the Chairman.

The Remuneration Committee and the Control and Bmkmittee, set up within the Board of

Directors, comprise members of the Board of Directind provide consultative and proposal-
making functions to the Board of Directors. The ibednow also include the Related Party
Committee, provided for by the procedures for eglgparty transactions adopted in 2010. For

the following reasons, it was deemed not to esthldin Appointment Committee.

The Board of Statutory Auditors is the body witle flunctions of overseeing observance of the
law and the company bylaws and management control.

The audit process is entrusted to_an Audit Firnisteged in the relevant professional roll and is
the Company’s external control body. The Firm clsethkroughout the year, that the company’s
accounts are kept properly and that accountingesnéiccurately reflect its operation. It is also
its responsibility to ensure that the separate @nsolidated financial statements match the
accounting entries and verifications performed, #uad these accounting documents conform to
the governing rules.

The duties and methods of operating of these catpdvodies are governed by the law and
regulations, by the company bylaws and by the dmtwsadopted by relevant bodies, in

conformity with the regulations set forth in ther@orate Governance Code drawn up by the
Corporate Governance Committee of Borsa ItaliapadSin July 2014,

The company bylaws are available at the registeffide and in the corporate governance

section on the Company’s website/w.cairocommunication.it

2 Information on ownership structure (pursuant to at. 123 bis, paragraph 1 of the
Consolidated Finance Act — TUF) at 14 March 2016
a) Share capital structure (pursuant to art. 123dzisagraph 1, letter a), T.U.F.)

The version of the Corporate Governance Code foedliStompanies approved in July 2015 will come infectf as
provided for therein, by the end of the year beigigrin 2016.
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At 14 March 2016, the share capital of Cairo Comication S.p.A. was Euro 4,073,856.80,
fully paid and subscribed, and it compris@é#,343,400 shares, with no indication of the

nominal amount.

N° shares % of share capital Listed Rights and
obligations
Borsa Italiana In accordance with
Ordinary shares 78,343,400 100% Star the law and
Segment company bylaws

No financial instruments have been issued attrilguthe right to subscribe to newly-issued
shares.

No share incentive plans are foreseen involvingrestaapital increases, even on a freely

allocated basis.

b) Restrictions on transfer (pursuant to art. 123 gmsagraph 1, letter b), T.U.F.)

There are no restrictions on the transfer of sdesriexcept as required by the provisions of
representation, legitimization, circulation of tkempany investment required for securities

traded on regulated markets.

C) Significant shareholdings (pursuant to art. 123 jigagraph 1, letter ¢), T.U.F.)
At 14 March 2016, based on the information receipasuant to art. 120 of the T.U.F. and the

update of the shareholders’ register, the princgbareholders in Cairo Communication S.p.A.

were as follows:

Declarer Direct shareholder % %
of ordinary of voting
capital capital
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO U.T. COMMUNICATIONS S.p.A. 44.876% 44.876%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO U.T. BELGIUM HOLDING S.A. 15.710% 15.710%
URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO URBANO ROBERTO CAIRO 12.387% 12.387%

d) Securities carrying special rights (pursuant ta 4&3 bis, paragraph 1, letter d),

T.U.F.)

No securities carrying special controlling rights/b been issued.
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e) Employee shareholdings: voting right proceduresdipant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 1,
letter e), T.U.F.)

There are no employee shareholdings and/or voityingsrprocedures.

f) Restrictions on voting rights (pursuant to art. b3 paragraph 1, letter f), T.U.F.)

There are no restrictions on voting rights othantthose provided by law.

Q) Shareholders’ agreements (pursuant to art. 12®aiagraph 1, letter g), T.U.F.)

No shareholders’ agreements are in place pursaanrt.t122 of the T.U.F.

h) Change of control clauses (pursuant to art. 123daisagraph 1, letter h), T.U.F.) and

by-law provisions on takeover bids (pursuant tacks 104, paragraph 1 ter, and 104
bis).

The Parent Company and/or its subsidiaries haveedigno significant agreements that come

into effect, are altered or terminate in the ewan& change in the control of the contracting

entity.

As explained in the notes to the statements irctmsolidated financial statements (Note 26),

the bank loarof initial Euro 25 million, granted by Unicredit SA. in July 2014 to Cairo

Network S.r.l. (wholly owned by Cairo CommunicatiStp.A.) for the purchase of the rights to

use television frequencies, provides for early yepent in the event of a change of control of

Cairo Network.

Moreover, the bylaws:

- do not depart from the provisions on the passiutg provided by art. 104, paragraphs 1
and 2, of the TUF;

- do not provide for the enforcement of the neutedlon rule set out in art. 104 bis,

paragraphs 2 and 3, of the TUF.

i) Delegations to increase share capital and authimizdo acquire and dispose of

treasury shares (pursuant to art. 123 bis, parbdraletter m), T.U.F.)

There are no delegations to increase the shareataprsuant to art. 2443 of the Italian Civil

Code or to issue equity financial instruments.
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At their meeting on 28 April 201%fter revoking a similar resolution adopted on 38iA2014,

the Shareholders approved the proposal to acgnadal®spose of treasury shares in accordance
with art. 2357 and subsequent articles of thedtalivil Code, for the purpose of stabilizing the
Company share price and sustaining liquidity, aifidjeemed necessary by the Board of
Directors, through an independent intermediaryegifiblishing a “shares stock” as provided in
Consob regulation 16839/2009. The Board was awborio acquire treasury shares up to the
maximum number permitted by law, for a period ofdi@nths from the date of authorization, by
use of available reserves, including the share jpmanreserve, as resulting from the last
approved annual financial statements. Specificély Board of Directors will be authorized to
acquire treasury shares on one or more occasiogsjring shares directly on the market and
through authorized intermediary — in accordancén thie procedures provided by art. 144 bis,
paragraph 1, letter b of the Issuer Regulations ratelvant Instructions — and, in case such
operations are carried out, according to acceptarkeh practices, pursuant to the regulations
introduced by Consob Resolution No. 16839/2009.iMim price and maximum acquisition
price per share are set at an amount equal tovilrage official purchase price of the share on
Borsa lItaliana S.p.A. for the 15 working days pdieg the purchase, respectively reduced or
increased by 20%. In case such operations aredaotit according to accepted market practices
under Consob Resolution 16839/2009, the purchateadury shares shall be subject to further
limits, including price limits, provided thereinh@ Board was authorized to sell, on one or more
occasions, any acquired treasury shares, settngithimum sale price per share no lower than
the minimum price calculated following the critega@opted for their purchase. Should the
treasury shares be sold according to accepted mareetices under Consob Resolution
16839/2009, the sale of treasury shares shall beauto further limits, including price limits,
provided therein.

In 2015, as part of the share buy-back plans, eastiry shares were sold or purchased. At 31
December 2015, Cairo Communication held a total.of79 treasury shares, or 0.001% of the

share capital, subject to art. 2357-ter of thedtaCivil Code.

) Management and coordination

Cairo Communication, though subject to rightful toh by U.T. Communication S.p.A. —
which is directly controlled by Urbano R. Cairo s mot subject to the management and
coordination of such company, nor of any othertgnifhe Board of Directors of Cairo
Communication has come to such conclusion takingaa of the absence of further elements

(with respect to mere control) that may lean towale existence of a unitary direction and the
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circumstance that UT Communication S.p.A. is, dg&daa holding company and has never
actually exercised any policy-making functions andhterference in the management of the
Issuer, restricting its activities to the managenudrits own controlling investment.

ok
It should be noted that information prescribed by. 423-bis, paragraph letter (i)
(“agreements between the Company and the directemmbers of the management board or
supervisory board providing for indemnity in theeet/of resignation or unjust dismissal ....”
is found in the section of the Report on Remunenatpublished pursuant to art. 123-ter of the

TUF, and that there is no information to discloader art. 123-bis, paragraphetter (1).

3 Compliance (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragrapl2, letter a), T.U.F.)

The Cairo Communication Group has adopted a Compo@overnance Code for Listed
Companies, the 2014 versfoof the Corporate Governance Committee and promuwyeBiorsa
ltaliana, published on the website of Borsa ltadian at

http://www.borsaitaliana.it/borsaitaliana/regolanieerporategovernance/codice2014.pdfo

Group company is subject to non-Italian law thatuldoinfluence the structure of Corporate

Governance.

4 Board of Directors

4.1 Appointment and replacement of directors and ciinges to the bylaws (pursuant to
art. 123 bis, paragraph 1, letter h), T.U.F.)

The Board of Directors is appointed by the Shamsl on the basis of lists presented by

shareholders pursuant to articles 14 and 15 adbyteaws.

Under the bylaws:

- lists must be filed with the registered office wiitlthe 25th day before the date on which
the Shareholders’ Meeting is called to decide anappointment of the members of the
Board of Directors, and made available to the pmuldli the registered office, on the
Company website and in accordance with the proesdprovided for by the law and
regulations, at least 21 days before the dateeoMbeting;

- lists admitted to the voting are those submittedtgreholders who, either individually or

jointly with other shareholders, represent at |€aS% of the shares entitled to vote in the

2 See note on p. 34.
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ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount set by, which was set at an amount
equal to 2.5% by resolution 19499 of 28 January620Dwnership of the minimum stake
required for submission of the lists is determioedthe basis of the shares recorded in the
name of the shareholder on the date the lists ibr@ With the Company. The relevant
prescribed certification may also be submitted egbent to the filing, provided
submission is made within the time limit prescritfedpublication of the lists;

candidates shall appear in the lists in sequeati@dr and shall be in a number no higher
than the maximum amount of directors provided unidetbylaws (eleven);

each list must contain candidates possessing thereenents of independence referred to
in art. 147-ter, paragraph 4, of the TUF, and fertlequirements set forth in the Corporate
Governance Code of Borsa ltaliana S.p.A., in thaeimmuim amount established by the
provisions of law and regulations, taking also iatttount the share listing segment, and
where the number of candidates is equal to or highen three, the minimum number of
candidates of the less represented gender undapfiieable law and regulations in force;
in order to be admitted to the voting, each lissthe accompanied by detailed information
on the professional and personal qualificationthefcandidates (including gender), by the
statement on possession of the requirements opérdience prescribed by law and by
further requirements set forth in the Corporate €épnance Code of Borsa Italiana S.p.A.,
and by indication of the identity of the sharehotderho have submitted the lists and total
percentage of shares held;

for the purposes of the appointment of the diregtaccount is taken exclusively of lists
that have received at least half the votes estaaliby the bylaws for the submission of
lists;

Should more than one list receive at least halfubies as required by the bylaws for
submission of the lists, candidates appointed ® ghbsition of director shall be those
appearing in the list that has received the higineshber of votes, except for the last
candidate appearing in the list and the candidpmearing on top of the list that has
received the second-highest number of votes thiat i® way, even indirectly, connected
with the shareholders that have submitted or vobedlist that has received the highest
number of votes, subject to the possession ofdfairements of independence set forth in
art. 148, paragraphs 3 and 4 of the TUF and ohéurrequirements set forth in the
Corporate Governance Code of Borsa ltaliana S.pfailing which the appointed

candidate, in his/her place, shall be the firstdidete appearing in sequential order on the
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list possessing the foregoing requirements of ieddpnce. Should two or more lists reach
a tie, the prevailing list shall be the list poséeg the largest shareholding or, in the event
of a tie, the highest number of shareholders. Bhonly one list be submitted or should
one list obtain a number of votes equal to at IeaHtthe votes set out in the bylaws for the
submission of a list, all the directors shall bavdn from that list. Should no list obtain the
percentage of votes set out in the above paragoéphis article, all directors shall be
drawn from the list that has obtained the highestimer of votes;

- according to the above procedure, should the numbédirectors of the less represented
gender be less than the requirements of the laicr@e, as many candidates as necessary,
elected among those who have come last in the ofdmeference in the majority list shall
be excluded, replacing them with the candidatessgrsing the necessary gender
characteristics drawn from the same list, basedhensequential order of listing. Should
this procedure fail to complete the number of divecto elect, the missing directors shall
be immediately elected, in compliance with gend=ruirements — by the Shareholders’
Meeting through a resolution passed by simple ritgjon the proposal of the attending
shareholders;

- should no list be submitted or admitted, the decshall be elected by the Shareholders’
Meeting by relative majority vote, in compliancethvihe regulations in force on the less
represented gender, in the context of the nominatgubmitted by the shareholders and
filed with the registered office at least sevengdagfore the date set for the Shareholders’
Meeting on first call, together with the full infoation referred to in paragraph seven of

this article.

Succession planning

To date, the Board has not adopted any succeskions pegarding the executive directors. The
Board of Directors is, in any event, the body empeed to prepare and manage early

replacement.

4.2 Composition (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragnah 2, letter d), T.U.F.)
At their meeting on 29 April 2014:
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Board of Directors Control and | Remuneration Related Party
Risk Committee Committee
Committee
Role Members Year of Date of first From Until List Exec. | Non-exec.| Indep. ag Indep. as N. other % hid *) bl (*) [ *)
birth appointment bl per Code | per TUF posts
Chairmar® | Urbano Cairo 1957 09/07/1997 01/01  31/12 M X - - - 5/5 - - - - -
CEO Uberto Fornara 1959 22/04/1999 01/01  31/12 M X - - - - 5/5 - - - - - -
Director’ | Marco Pompignoli 1967 23/05/2003 01/01  31/12 M X - - - - 5/5 - - - - - -
Director | Laura Maria Cairo 1973 29/04/2014 01/01 1/12 M - X - - 5/5
Director | Roberto Cairo 1965 22/04/1994 01/01 31/12 M - X - - 5/5 - - - - - -
Director | Antonio Magnocavallo 1937 31/05/200( aifo 31/12 M - X - - - 4/5 M 4/4 P 2/2 - -
Director | Stefania Petruccioli 1967 29/04/2014 a1{0 31/12 M - X X X 1 5/5 - - M 2/2 M 1/1
Director | Roberto Rezzonico 1941 20/11/2000 0101 /131 M - X X X - 5/5 P 4/4 M 2/2 - -
Director | Mauro Sala 1944 28/04/2011 01/p1  31/12 M - X X X - 5/5 M 4/4 - - M 1/1
Director ° | Marco Janni 1937 31/05/200Q 01/p1  31/12 M - X X X 3 5/5 - - - - P 1/1
N. of meetings held in 2015: BoD: 5 CRC: 4 RC: 2 RPC: 1

Quorum required for the submission of lists by noneontrolling interests for the appointment of one ormore members: 2.5%

Notes:

Regarding the symbols appearing in the “Positiaitimn:
" This symbol indicates the director in chargehaf internal control and risk management system.
¢ This symbol indicates the key person in chargdefmanagement of the Issuer (Chief Executive &fftc CEO).
° This symbol indicates the Lead Independent Dine(itID).

* Date of first appointment of each director me#tresdate on which each director was appointedi®fitst time (ever) in the Board of Directors bétlssuer.

** This column indicates M/m depending on whethes tlirector was elected by the majority (M), mityo(m) list or BoD (BoD) list.
*** This column indicates number of directorships statutory auditor positions held in other compariisted on either national or foreign stock exges, including finance companies, banks and

insurance companies, or of major companies In #@R on Corporate Governance, positions are shioril.

(*) This column indicates the participation peraaye of directors to the BoD and committee meet{ngsf times present/n. of meetings held durirgrtterm, for instance 6/8; 8/8, etc.).
(**) This column indicates the position of the bdamember in the Committee : “C”: Chairman; “M”: Meer.
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Specifically, at their meeting on 29 April 2014:
- the Shareholders appointed for a three-year peuiaiil, approval of the financial statements

at 31 December 2016, on the basis of the sindi@tssented by the majority shareholder,

UT Communications S.p.A., approved with a favougakbte by 75.97% of the share

capital, the Board of Directors of the company cosga of:

o three Executive Directors: the Chairman Urbano &alsberto Fornara and Marco

Pompignoli,

o three Non-Executive Directors: Laura Maria Cairotério Magnocavallo and Roberto

Cairo and

o four independent directors: Marco Janni, StefargUecioli, Mauro Sala and Roberto

Rezzonico.
Urbano Cairo is the founder of the Group and hddtkegrowth and development. A graduate
in business administration from the Bocconi Uniitgrshe has significant experience in the
publishing and advertising segments. He startediwgrwith Fininvest in 1982. He went to
work for Publitalia '80 in 1985, where he was apped Deputy-General Manager in 1990. In
1991 he was appointed as managing director of Maoril@ubblicita. In December 1995 he
founded Cairo Pubblicita, which initiated its adisng sales broker activity for a number of
RCS Group magazines. He has therefore been the lewder behind Cairo Communication
Group’s growth, whose main phases are associatddtiaé 1998 acquisition of the company
Telepiu Pubblicita, followed by Cairo TV, dedicat®d\Y TV advertising sales broker, the
February 1999 acquisition of Editoriale Giorgio Miaalori, Cairo Communication’s listing in
2000, the contract for the exclusive rights for slade of advertising space on La7 at the end of
2002, the birth of Cairo Editore in 2003 and hibseguent activity in developing successful
new publishing initiatives (launch of “For Men Ma@e” and “Natural Style” in 2003,
“Settimanale Dipiu” in 2004, “Dipiu TV” and “Diva &®onna” in 2005, “TV Mia” in 2008,
“Settimanale Nuovo” and weekly magazine “F” in 201ettimanale Giallo” in 201,3'Nuovo
TV” in 2015 and the fortnightly “Nuovo e Nuovo TVuCina” at the start of 2016), artde
acquisition of La7 in 2013, which marks the entrytie TV publishing field.
Uberto Fornara is a graduate in business admitictrérom the Bocconi University, and has
worked within the Group since its inception, havprgviously gained significant experience in
the publishing segment with Publitalia ‘80 from 898nd then in Mondadori Pubblicita, of
which he was appointed Director of Customer Senwited994. He is also CEO of Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A.
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Marco Pompignoli was appointed as Chief Financifficér in June 2000 and is Financial

Reporting Manager of Cairo Communication S.p.A.i$le graduate in business administration
and has previously worked in leading audit firmsyihg gained experience in Italy and abroad.

Laura Maria Cairo, sister of Urbano Cairo. A gragua law, she has worked with several law

firms in Milan and Alessandria, gaining experierinebankruptcy, civil and corporate law;
since 2006, she has practised as a lawyer in Aldsisa

Roberto Cairo, Urbano Cairo’s brother, is an emgapur in real-estate brokerage through Il
Metro Immobiliare, with offices in Milan and in Ligia.

Antonio Magnocavallo has been a civil and corpodatgyer in Milan since 1961 and is

currently in a partnership (Magnocavallo e Assagidtle is presentlypoard member of
Fondazione Gruppo Credito Valtellinesend chairman of a number of well-known foundations
and associations. Mr. Magnocavallo has providedllagsistance and consultancy to the Cairo

Communication Group since 1998.

Stefania Petruccioli, a graduate in business adnation from the Bocconi University - where

she worked until 2004 as an adjunct and assistafiégsor - chartered accountant, has gained
significant experience as a manager and partnendnagement companies specializing in
private equity and venture capital. She is curyeftind managerin Principia SGR and

independent director in the listed comparidesLonghi S.p.A. anthterpump Group S.p.A.

Marco Janni, graduated in civil procedural law B6Q and was assistant to the chair of civil
procedural law at the University of Milan. He isafunsel at the NCTM law firm, which deals

with civil, commercial and corporate law. He wadii@ctor in large banking groups.

Roberto Rezzonico, chartered accountant, is cuyreflhairman of the Board of Statutory

Auditors or statutory auditor in a number of impmittindustrial groups.

Mauro Sala, chartered accountant and auditor, judgthe Regional Tax Commission of
Lombardy from 1996 to 2007, is currently Chairmaintioe board of statutory auditors,

statutory auditor and/or director of a number ahpanies.

At its meeting approving this Report, the Boardabbshed the following general criteria on the
maximum number of administrative and control posisi in other companies considered
compatible with the effective performance of thkeraf director of the Issuer:

. executive directors may not hold any other exeeutbffice, or, in any case, be

appointed as statutory auditors in other compdrgtsd on regulated markets, financial
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companies, banks, insurance companies or major aaiegy and may hold up to five
non-executive positions in such companies;

. non-executive directors may hold up to five exeautor statutory auditor positions in
other companies listed on regulated markets, fi@hreompanies, banks, insurance
companies or major companies, up to eight non-d¢kecpositions in such companies
and, in any case, up to a total of fifteen posgion

. independent directors, without prejudice to theiténset for non-executive directors,
which also apply to independent directors, may hafd to eight positions as
independent director in other companies listed egulated markets, financial
companies, banks, insurance companies or major @oeg

major companies meaning those where at least twtheffollowing parameters have been

exceeded: turnover above Euro 500 million, emplsya&eove 500 units, balance sheet assets

above Euro 50 million, excluding from the calcuaticompanies in which the Company (or its
parent) holds a controlling and/or relevant interéss set out in art. 177 of the Issuer

Regulations).

The directors of Cairo Communication hold no otpesition in companies listed on regulated

markets, financial companies, banks, insurance aoiep or major companies, except for

Stefania Petruccioli, who is director in De Londhip.A. and Interpump Group S.p.A., and

Marco Janni, who is chairman of CO.MO.Il. SIM S.pahd Comoi Group SA, companies that

are not part of the Group to which the Issuer bgdon

Given the directors' vast knowledge of the Companyg their wealth of experience in the
specific areas of operation of the Cairo CommurocatGroup, as well as the personal and
professional background of each member of the Bo#iirectors, the Board of Directors did
not deem it necessary to have them attend (indugiimgram), following appointment and
during their term of office, initiatives to provideem with adequate knowledge of the area of
operation of the Issuer, of company dynamics arauéion, as well as the relevant regulatory

framework.

4.3 Role of the Board of Directors (art. 123 bigaragraph 2, letter d), T.U.F.)

In 2015, the Board of Directors met five times. TBeard meetings lasted an average of 2

hours. Six meetings are planned for the current,yéao have already been held at 14 March
2016.

44



To ensure that the Directors be prepared, all twichents and information on the facts taken
into consideration by the Board are sent to theanevimail in reasonable advance (at least two
days in advance, a term which, save for urgendgesisually met) before the date of the
meeting. The term was generally met in 2015. Ireottases, the Chairman ensured necessary
and appropriate analysis at Board meetings. At d8oagetings, the items on the agenda were
given the necessary time to allow an effective uis@n, while the directors were encouraged

to give their own contribution.

The Board of Directors holds the power to (i) pa®f, sell or exchange company branches,
and companies for amounts in excess of Euro 10iomiland (ii) the power to furnish
guarantees and endorsements for amounts in exédasr@ 5 million. These powers, or the
following powers, cannot be delegated to individdiabctors:
a) review and approval of company strategic, busimedsancial plans or those relating
to the Cairo Communication Group, and regular nowitig of their implementation;
b) Group’s system of corporate governance and streic@ad, specifically, definition of
the nature and level of risk consistent with thratsigic objectives of the Issuer;
c) granting or revocation of powers to managing does;t
d) review and approval of (i) extraordinary transagsioand (ii) transactions involving a
potential conflict of interest.
The Board of Directors has also identified the gigant transactions which may only be

reviewed and approved by the Board.

Such transactions have been identified and defistagiting with the term “transaction” which

has been taken to mean:

i) disposals of intangible assets or property, pladt@juipment, even those with no

related cost or payment;

i) granting of either temporary or permanent rightkatieg to intangible assets

(trademarks, brands, copyrights, databases, etc.);

iii) provision of work or services;
iv) granting or obtaining of loans and guarantees|fuliog letters of patronage);
V) any other action pertaining to property rights.

Significant transactions are those that must belalied to the market in accordance with art.

114 of the Consolidated Finance Act, by their matuprocedure or the nature of the
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counterparty, or those with a value of over EurondiBion. The signing of advertising sales
contracts, the Company'’s typical activity, is neethed a significant transaction if it does not
involve cost commitments or other financial comngtits beyond the granting of a percentage

of the revenue generated by the contract to theéanmeher.

With regard to regulations, these transactionseaduded from the powers conferred on the
Directors and as such are subject to prior apprbyahe Board of Directors. If the Board of
Directors cannot meet, for reasons of time pressurether particular circumstances, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Compaawg carry out the transaction pending the

approval of the Board of Directors which would threeet at the earliest possible opportunity.

Significant related party transactions - as describelow in paragraph 12R€lated party
transactions - are also reserved to the exclusive competeficheoBoard of Directors of the

Company and cannot be delegated.
During the year, the Board:

- evaluated the appropriateness of the organizatiaamhinistrative and general accounting
structure of the company and of its strategicathpartant subsidiaries (based on their
contribution to Group profits and revenue, Cairdté@ S.p.A., La7 S.p.A. (former La7
S.r.l.), Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. and Cairo PublighiS.r.l.), with particular reference to the
internal control and risk management system andrtheragement of conflicts of interest;
such valuation was undertaken on the basis of imdition and evidence gathered through
investigation performed by the Control and Risk @uttee and through contribution by

Company Management and the internal audit manager,

- evaluated the general management trend, takingplant account of information received

from the bodies responsible, in addition to conmariesults achieved with forecasts.

At its meeting on 15 May 2015, the Board of Direstoarried out an evaluation on the size,

composition and role of the Board of Directorslitamd of its committees, noting that:

- the size of the Board of Directors (ten memberghasbylaws require from five to eleven
members) appears adequate, taking into consider#ti® size and nature of corporate

activities;

- the composition of the Board of Directors, condiugithat the three executive directors,

with specific experience in company management,anghom in finance, are supported

46



by seven non-executive directors, of whom three lamgyers, three are chartered

accountants, four of whom independent, is approgria

- the role of the Board of Directors and its Comneitteas shown in the above table, appears
consistent with the size and nature of corporatéesiies with sufficient delegation of

powers granted to the Chairman and to one otherutive director.
The Board did not resort to the services of extezoasultants in the self-evaluation process.

At their Meeting on 29 April 2014, the shareholdezsolved to exempt candidates elected to
the position of board member from competition liegons under art. 2390 of the Italian Civil
Code for the duration of their term. None of theediors resorted to this exemption and,

therefore, the Board was not called to make assggsm

4.4 Executive directors

Given the size of the Group and Parent Companynthi@ executive and managerial powers
are entrusted to the Chairman Urbano Cairo, whthéskey person in charge of defining
corporate and management strategies (chief execofiicer). Such powers do not include
those to (i) purchase or relocate company branchesmpanies for amounts in excess of Euro
10 million and (ii) provide guarantees of everyito third parties for amounts in excess of
Euro 5 million, without prejudice, in any case,tt@ responsibilities of the Board regarding
significant transactions and decisions that cameotielegated, as identified by the Board and

mentioned above, and regarding significant transastwith related parties.

Director Uberto Fornara is entrusted with the reseand development of activities regarding
the sale of advertising space and/or advertisirakdrage (except for initiatives requesting
commitments and obligations by the Issuer), managerof the development of advertising
sales, in accordance with the guidelines approwedhe Board or by the Chairman, and

management of staff and the sales network invoivedivertising sales.

Director Marco Pompignoli is responsible for ovelisg and supervising the Group’s
administration, finance and management controltfans, which include the power to manage
and coordinate the activities of staff working irese areas and to coordinate the activities of

the Issuer’s legal and tax advisers.

The Chairman is also the controlling shareholde€afro Communication. He does not hold

the position of director in any other issuer, th@me excluding cases of interlocking directorate.
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The executive directors have provided appropriatk regular information every three months

to the Board and to the Statutory Auditors. Thered executive committee.

45 Other executive directors

There are no other executive directors. None ef rthn-executive directors i) are CEO or
executive chairman in a subsidiary of strategievahce of the Issuer or ii) hold executive

positions in the Issuer or in a subsidiary of stgat relevance or in the Parent.

4.6 Independent directors

Marco Janni, Stefania Petruccioli, Roberto Rezamnimd Mauro Sala are independent

directors.

As disclosed to the market on 14 May 2014, sooer dfteir appointment, at the meeting of 14
May 2014, the Board of Directors and Board of StajuAuditors had verified that they met the
requirements to be deemed independent directorsugnt to art.148, paragraph 3, Legislative
Decree no. 58 of 24 February 1998, and to the suiese requirements of the Corporate
Governance Code issued by Borsa ltaliana S.p.A.

Specifically:

« with regard to the verification of the independemegquirements of Directors Marco
Janni, Roberto Rezzonico (directors of the comdanyover nine years out of the last
twelve) and of Mauro Sala (statutory auditor of tmenpany for over nine years out of
the last twelve), the Board, given the recurrentéhe requirements of independence
under art. 148, paragraph 3, of the TUF, and noofrence of the most typical cases
regarding absence of independence listed in apjglicariterion 3.C.1 of the Corporate
Governance Code (letters from a) to h), exceptsids e€) (under which, as a rule, a
director of an issuer who has held this positiandeer nine years out of the last twelve

years is deemed not to be indepentjegtven the non-binding natufefor the purposes

3t should be noted, however, that the criterionarding duration in office for over nine years hai regularly
disregarded by other listed companies that havetadaheCorporate Governance Code for Listed Compantse

2013Annual Report 2013 -*1report on application of the Corporate Governancal€@repared by the Corporate
Governance Committee of Borsa Italiana S.p.A.

“In 2011,the company had decided to request an opiniomemiatter from Prof. Matteo Rescigno, full professbr

commercial law at the University of Milan.
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of attributing the requirements of independencéd the application criteria, considering

in general terms the absence of objective and uigaobs elements proving the

existence of particular relations with the Issuemith subjects linked with the Issuer

(such as the majority shareholder, etc.) and, itiqudar:

() the absence of commercial, professional or persatations between Marco Janni,
Roberto Rezzonico and Mauro Sala, on the one aitt the Issuer, and companies
belonging to the same group and the controllingnesy on the other, and

(i) the acknowledged professional and moral qualitiegshe directors in question,
renowned professionals with their own businesses,

(iii) the minor impact of remuneration decided by ther8halders to the Board of
Directors, which includes remuneration for the jgggation of certain directors in
the committees as per law and the bylaws, on tkeeathamount of the fees of these
directors, as resulting from the information praddoy the persons involved,

(iv) given also the interest of the Company to stillibitself of the directors’ specific
experience and in-depth knowledge of the Compainyisr workings gained during
their term in its various bodies,

had confirmed the recurrence of the independerguinrement of the foregoing directors;

« with regard to the independence of Stefania Peiolicdollowing evaluation of the
recurrence of the independence requirements untlet 48, paragraph 3, of the TUF,
and non-recurrence of the most typical cases regaabsence of independence listed in

application criterion 3.C.1 of the Corporate Gowarce Code (letters from a) to h),

considering in general terms the absence of obethd unambiguous elements proving

the existence of particular relations with the &sor with subjects linked with the Issuer

(such as the majority shareholder, etc.), the Bded confirmed the existence of the

independence requirement of this director.

The Board of Statutory Auditors had formally ackimesged such conclusions, having verified
the correct application of the criteria adopted thg Board of Directors to evaluate the
independence of its members.

At its meeting on 15 May 2015, the Board asses$ed existence of the independence
requirements for each of the above directors. hiiqudar, after hearing the parties involved, and

deeming that in 2014, no elements had emergedasith change the assessment made with the
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decision of 14 May 2014, confirmed — with the pestinvolved abstaining from the vote - the
existence of the independence requirements oftdiredlarco Janni, Roberto Rezzonico, Mauro
Sala and Stefania Petruccioli.

The Board of Statutory Auditors formally acknowledgand verified the correct application of
the criteria adopted by the Board of Directorsualeate the independence of its members.

The number of independent directors and their fjoations were deemed appropriate for the
size of the Board of Directors and the Company'sividies, and such as to allow the
establishment of the Remuneration, Control and Risk Related Party Committees (for further
information, see 8§ 8 and § 10 and § 12 below).

During the year, the independent directors, in ti@llito meeting regularly as members of the
Related Party Committee, held informal discussimmsarious occasions without reporting any

situation requiring clarification or further dis&isn.

The Directors who, in the lists for the appointmehthe Board, have indicated their eligibility
to qualify as independent, have committed to résgn the event of a subsequent loss of

these requirements.

4.7 Lead Independent Director

Given that the Chairman of the Board of Directoss in actual fact, the main person
responsible for the management of the company f(aecutive officer) and is also the

controlling shareholder of the company, the BodrDicectors elected an independent director,
Marco Janni, as Lead Independent Director, to wimam-executive directors report, for an
increased contribution to the activities and rdiehe Board. The Lead Independent Director
works together with the Chairman to guarantee ttetirectors receive a complete and timely
flow of information. In addition, he has the power call, whether autonomously or on the
request of other directors, appropriate meetingsdépendent directors for the discussion of
issues deemed of being in the interest of the ofldhe Board of Directors or of the

management of the company.

5 Treatment of privileged information

Under the provisions regarding treatment of pryélé information, the Company established a
register of persons (physical persons, legal estitir associations) who, through their work or

professional dealings or the function they carry oo behalf of the Issuer, have regular or
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occasional access to privileged information (aB2-bis), which is constantly updated (art. 152-

ter). All relevant persons have been fully infornadmbut the establishment of this register.

The Company also enacted the regulations whichreplacement of the self-regulation
included in the Code of Conduct on Insider Dealipigces strict disclosure obligations on
“relevant persons” of listed companies in relattonshare trading carried out by them or
persons closely linked to them.

In addition, the Company banned “relevant persomsth binding effect, from trading in
Company shares or related financial instrumentdngbeurchase, sale, subscription or
exchange, either directly or through a third padyring the 15 days ahead of any Board
meeting called to approve the financial statemtthat period. The exercise of stock options
or option rights relating to financial instrumerfiis any case, currently not in progress) is not
included in the ban. The sale of shares deriveth fstock option plans, including sales carried
out as part of the exercise of options, is alsargteThe restrictions, however, do not apply to
exceptional situations which are subjectively neaeg and appropriately motivated in the
interest of the Company.

The Company also has a procedure in place fornatenmanagement and the publication of
documents and confidential information, particylgotice sensitive information governed by

the following directives:

a) Confidential information (Information) is taken teean every piece of information and
news which relates to Cairo Communication S.p.Be €ompany) and its subsidiaries,
both direct and indirect (the Cairo Group) whici@ in the public domain or is by its
nature confidential or of exclusive pertinencette €Cairo Group. Even if expressed as
a personal opinion, a piece of information whichuldoaffect the price of Group
company financial instruments if made public (ijgrice sensitive) is deemed

Information.

b) The management of Information is the sole respdiigibf the Company Chairman. In
particular, the communication of Information to Goh, the Communications
Regulatory Authority (Agcom), Borsa Italiana S.p.the media, press agencies, public
relations consultants, financial analysts, joustaliand any other administrative or
regulatory authorities overseeing the activitieshaf Cairo Group must be carried out
exclusively by the Company Chairman directly orasionally through representatives

chosen by him. All Directors and members of the loaf Statutory Auditors must
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show the utmost discretion in relation to Inforroatiacquired while carrying out their

duties and must respect Company procedures relatitinge publication of Information.

c) Directors are responsible for the secrecy of docuat®mn given to them in advance of
meetings of the Company Board of Directors. In aage, Directors must exercise

discretion in relation to Information acquired venlerforming their duties.

d) The Chairman takes all measures necessary to ethsur®lanagement and other Cairo
Group employees do not transmit Information to dhparties if not by law or
regulation, and in respect of market best practitesrder to ensure that discretion is

exercised in relation to Information acquired whgkrforming their duties.

e) Should a Director be bound to disclose a piecenfdrination by the civil or legal
authorities, he must communicate this to the Chairimmediately unless otherwise

bound by law or the relevant authority.

f) Further to the provisions relating to the publioatof Information, in order to transmit
any other information to third parties, or to pshlian interview to the media that
relates partially or completely to the Cairo Gro@mmpany Directors and Statutory

Auditors must obtain specific prior approval of tBeairman.

6 Board of Directors’ Committees

The Board of Directors has set up three commite#éhin the Board itself — the Remuneration
Committee, the Control and Risk Committee and teéafed Party Committee (see section 12 below).
The Board decided not to form an Appointment Con@eitas it was confirmed that the powers reserved
by the Code to said Committee should continue toarged out by the Board in its entirety (seeisecg

7 below).

7 Appointment Committee

At its meeting of 14 May 2014, the Board of Diragst@valuated the block holdings of the
company and the absence of issues reported inasterglating to the sphere of competence of
the Appointment Committee, managed efficiently amdompliance with the principles of the
Corporate Governance Code directly by the Boar®ioéctors, and decided not to form an
Appointment Committee, as it was confirmed that posvers reserved by the Code to said

Committee should continue to be carried out byBbard in its entirety

52



8 Remuneration Committee

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointed,d three-year period, until approval of
the financial statements at 31 December 2016, #mabers of the “Remuneration Committee”,
composed of non-executive directors Antonio Magmalta, Chairman, Roberto Rezzonico
(independent) and Stefania Petruccioli (independeRibberto Rezzonico and Stefania
Petruccioli have adequate experience in the acoauand financial area.

The Remuneration Committee has advisory and propesiing functions for the Board of

Directors, specifically:

- formulation of proposals to the Board of Directoegarding remuneration to executive
directors, of other directors with particular respibilities and of key management

personnel;

- to periodically evaluate the adequacy, overall tarscy and application of the general
policy adopted for remuneration to executive divext of other directors with
particular responsibilities and of key managemeetspnnel, using for the latter
information furnished by the managing directorsd darmulating proposals to the

Board of Directors on the matter;

- to formulate proposals to the Board of Directors femuneration to the managing
directors and to other directors with particulaspensibilities, and to set performance
targets related to the variable component of rematioe, by overseeing the application
of the decisions adopted by the Board, verifyimgparticular, actual achievement of

the performance targets;

- to periodically evaluate the criteria adopted femuneration to key management
personnel, in addition to overseeing the applicatbany stock option plans (there are
no plans underway to date), on the basis of infaonaprovided by managing
directors, and to provide the Board of Directorsthwirelevant general

recommendations.

To ensure correct performance of its duties, then@isitee has the power to access all
necessary corporate information, in addition to enake of external consultants, in accordance
with the terms established by the Board of Dirextdihe Committee is assisted by a secretary

appointed for such purpose (Marco Bisceglia), wetords the minutes of the meetings.
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The functioning of the Remuneration Committee ivegned by a policy approved by the
Board of Directors. The meetings of the RemunenaGommittee were generally not attended
by the Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditor®ther auditor delegated by the Chairman;
these bodies formulated their opinion on propopatsforth by the Remuneration Committee
within the Board of Directors. In actual fact, nmposals were put forward to the Board on the

remuneration of directors who are members of thimittee.

The Board of Directors has made financial resouasgesiable to the Remuneration Committee

for the execution of its functions.

In 2014, the Remuneration Committee met 2 times,afiout 1 hour and with all members

attending. At least 2 meetings are scheduled tas.y

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors allocatedoE20 thousand as annual remuneration to
the Remuneration Committee and Euro 2 thousand &ecretary.

9. Directors’ Fees

The general policy for directors’ fees is illusgdtin the Remuneration Report, prepared
pursuant to art. 123-ter of the TUF, and will béritted to the Shareholders at their meeting

held to approve the 2015 financial statements,hichvreference is made for all the details.

At its meeting on 14 March 2016, the Board of Dioes established the general remuneration
policy for 2016 (illustrated in Section | of the Reneration Report) regarding executive
directors, other directors with particular respbilgies and key management personnel, which

sets out, among other things, the guidelines fer th

a) balancing of the fixed and variable components,ctviénvisage ceilings, with regard to
strategic objectives and company risk managemetitypoand ceilings for variable

components,

b) appropriateness of the fixed component for a dirgstduties, should the performance
targets indicated by the Board of Directors notrigt and the resulting variable component

not be paid,

c) measurability of performance targets and connecdtibthese targets to the creation of

value for shareholders in the medium to long term,

54



Incentivized remuneration criteria have gradualgef introduced for some years now for
executive directors and key management persomrmekder, fundamentally, to base a sizeable
portion of their fees on the achievement of spegqiferformance targets previously set and
determined, consistent with the guidelines helthin general remuneration policy adopted by

the Board of Directors, as described in the Rematiwr Report.

To date, a medium/long term incentive system (LlahPhas yet to be defined and is still being
assessed.

The Group has started to study and develop long-teicentivized remuneration criteria;
however, given the crisis affecting the advertisisggment and, generally speaking, the
publishing industry for a few years now, a segntbat is the core business of the Group, and
the resulting instability - based on Nielsen figuia 2012, 2013, 2014 and 2015, magazine
advertising fell by 18.4%, 23.9%, 6.5% and 4.1%pestively, while TV advertising fell by
15.3%, 10.0%, and 0.5%, then increased by 0.7991% 2 the Group has considered, thus far,
to defer application of these criteria, owing te thifficulty of setting relevant, attainable goals.
The 2016 remuneration policy envisages the inctusibclaw-back clauses, which allow the
company to request the return, in whole or in gaErtariable components of remuneration paid
(or to withhold sums subject to deferral), detemxinon the basis of data which has

subsequently proven to be manifestly misstated.

Directors’ fees for the year 2015 are illustratedSection I, Part Il of the Remuneration

Report.
Marco Pompignoli is also the Financial Reportingridger.
No incentive mechanisms have been introduced foirtternal audit manager.

There are no share-based incentive plans in ptadavour of executive directors and/or key

management personnel.

Remuneration to non-executive directors is not thase company performance. They do not

receive any share-based incentive plans.

There are no agreements in place between the Conapahthe directors for any indemnity in
the event of resignation or unjust dismissal, orthie event their employment relationship

ceases following a takeover bid.
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10 Control and Risk Committee

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointadafthree-year period (until approval of the
financial statements at 31 December 2016) the memifethe Control and Risk Committee,
composed of non-executive directors Roberto Rezmofindependent), Chairman, Mauro Sala
(independent) and Antonio Magnocavallo. The Contmotl Risk Committee, in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code, is currentlynéal of non-executive directors, the
majority of whom are independent. Roberto Rezamréamd Mauro Sala have adequate

experience in the accounting and financial area.

The role of the Control and Risk Committee is tovinle an early opinion to the Board of
Directors in order to discharge the internal candrad risk management duties assigned by the

Code, in order to:

i) define the guidelines of the internal control arsk management system, so that the
main risks affecting the Company and its subsidirare correctly identified and
appropriately measured, managed and monitored;migiag the level of compatibility
of such risks with management of the company thatansistent with the strategic

objectives;

i) assess, at least annually, the adequacy of thenateontrol and risk management

system with respect to the nature of the Compasyisk profile and its effectiveness;
iii) appoint an executive director to supervise the atpar of the internal audit system;
the Committee also

iv) evaluates, together with the Financial Reportingndger, after hearing the Audit Firm
and the statutory auditors, the proper applicatibaccounting policies, and in the case

of groups, overall consistency of the consoliddieancial statements;

V) expresses an opinion on specific aspects relatnthe identification of the main

corporate risks;

vi) reviews the periodical reports on the evaluationtld internal control and risk
management system, and those of particular relevanepared by the internal audit

manager;

vii) monitors the independence, adequacy, effectivesmedfficiency of the internal audit

function;
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viii) may request the internal audit function to perfassessments on specific operating

areas, providing immediate notice to the Chairmfath@ Board of Statutory Auditors;

iX) reports to the Board of Directors, at least evéxynsonths, on the date of the approval
of the financial statements and of half-year repah their activities carried out and on

the appropriateness of the internal control arkdirianagement system.

To ensure correct performance of its duties, then@ittee has the power to access all
necessary corporate information, in addition to enake of external consultants, in accordance
with the terms established by the Board of Dirext@uring the year, the Committee decided
not to resort to external consultants, on the amelhbecause it already has the tax, legal and
accounting skills needed for the due evaluatiors an the other, because it did not report the
existence of specific, significant facts that regditheir services. The Committee is assisted
by a secretary appointed for such purpose (Marcadgjlia), who records the minutes of the

meetings.

In 2015, the Control and Risk Committee met fomes. Minutes of the meetings, lasting for
about 2 hours, were recorded. Five meetings dredsded this year, two have already been
held at 14 March 2016.

The meetings were generally attended, upon ingitatby the Chairman of the Board of
Statutory Auditors, by representatives from the i&irm, by the Executive Director in charge

of the internal control system and by the inteaalit manager.

The operation of the Control and Risk Committegyaserned by an appropriate regulation
approved by the Board of Directors. The Board ofebiors has made financial resources

available to the Remuneration Committee for thecatien of its functions.

During the above activities, and based on the tepeceived from the internal audit manager,
no facts of particular relevance emerged that n¢alde reported and the Committee deemed

the internal control system as being adequate.

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors had allodateuro 20 thousand as annual
remuneration to the Control and Risk Committee B 2 thousand to the secretary.
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11. Internal control and risk management system

Purposes and aobjectives

The internal control and risk management systeth@fCairo Communication Group consists
of a set of rules, procedures and organizationaicstres, which, through an appropriate
process of identification, measurement, manageraedt monitoring of major risks, ensures

that financial information is fair, accurate, réli@ and timely.

The Board of Directors, assisted by the Control Rigk Committee:
- has defined, in the frame of the definition of #teategic, business and financial plans,

the nature and level of risk consistent with theués’s strategic objectives;

- has defined the guidelines of the internal contirdl risk management system, so that
the main risks affecting the Company and its subsib are correctly identified and
appropriately measured, managed and monitored;ndigieg the level of compatibility
of such risks with management of the company thatansistent with the strategic

objectives;

- has assessed, at least on an annual basis, theaagiarf the internal control and risk
management system with respect to the nature o€tmpany, its risk profile and its

effectiveness.

The Control and Risk Committee analyzed, at leasam annual basis, the plan drafted by the
person in charge of internal audit, with the opinaf the Board of Statutory Auditors and the

director in charge of the control and risk managarsgstem;

The Board of Directors, on proposal of the diredtocharge of the internal control and risk
management system and the favorable opinion ofQbetrol and Risk Committee, after
hearing the Board of Statutory Auditors, appoimd aevokes the internal audit manager, and
sees that the manager is adequately resourcedftwmpaluties, and defines the manager’s fees

consistent with corporate policies.

Over the past financial years, the Group has sepdiicy lines of the internal control system in
order to rationalize the overall system by map@nd classifying subjects involved, organize
the main reporting flows within the Group and ezpte the responsibilities and areas of

activities taking place.

The evaluation of the internal control and risk agement system is regularly conducted to

verify its ability:
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- to react to significant situations of risk in a éily manner, ensuring appropriate control

mechanisms;

- in terms of corporate processes, to guarantee propqate degree of segregation of
duties between operating functions and control tions to avoid conflicts of interest

in the responsibilities assigned,;

- in terms of the operating activities and accountimgl administrative activities, to
guarantee systems and procedures that assure dheatecrecording of company and
management events, in addition to the provisiometiible and timely information,

both internal and external to the Group;

- to provide for methods to ensure the timely commatidon of any significant emerging
risks and anomalies in control to the appropriateu Management, and to enable the

identification and timely execution of remedies.

The reference model adopted by the Group for theeimentation of its internal control system
complies with domestic and international best picastand with the indications set by the laws
and regulations Cairo Communication is requireccamply with as a company listed on a
regulated market, such as in particular law 2628280d consequent articles 154-bis and 123-
bis of the Consolidated Finance Act and Legislabdeeree 195/07 (“Transparency Decree”) as
well as the Corporate Governance Code of Borsaatta) to which Cairo Communication

conforms.

The system has been designed and implemented foljaive guidelines issued by a number of

sector bodies regarding the activities performethieyFinancial Reporting Manager.

Main characteristics of existing risk management and internal control system in relation to

thefinancial reporting process (pursuant to art. 123 bis, paragraph 2, letter b), T.U.F.)

Stages of the existing system of risk managemehinégrnal control system in relation to the

financial reporting process

The risk management and internal control systemrelation to the Group's financial
information rests basically on the application amghitoring of relevant corporate procedures

for the purposes of the preparation and disclostifmancial information.

Specifically, the internal control system is spiit into the following stages:
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a) Identification and evaluation of risks relatedihancial information;
b) Identification of controls upon identificatiof iisks;
c) Evaluation of controls upon identification ofks.

The evaluation procedures and instruments useldedgtoup are periodically subject to review
processes aimed at the verification of their silitgland function as compared to the corporate
reality, which is by its very nature mutable. THere, where possible, an information flow has

been put in place in order to maintain, updateiammove system quality.

a) Risk identification and evaluation for financiabiating: the identification of both the

scope of the entries and their “significant” pramssin terms of potential impact on
financial reporting, and of the risks consequerdrng missed control objectives, comes
about by way of a quantitative analysis of the fiicial statement items and a

qualitative evaluation of the processes.

The quantitative analysis, aimed at the identifmatof the relevant entries, is
performed through the application of the concept‘'rofiteriality” to the combined

items in the trial balance of the Cairo CommunimatGroup. The materiality threshold
was determined as a fixed percentage in compliaiitbethe indications in article 2621

of the Italian Civil Code.

Once the significant accounts have been identiftedugh the account-processes

combination, the significant processes are theiindisished.

The qualitative analysis, through the evaluationtld significance of the business
processes and of their level of complexity, intéggathe quantitative analysis,
determining the inclusion or the exclusion of thregesses in regard to the scope of

reference.

For each process identified as significant, theeetlaen also identified specific process
risks, which in the event of their occurrence, vdocbmpromise the achievement of the
objectives connected to the system: that is to #agse of accuracy, reliability,

credibility and timeliness of financial reporting.

The financial reporting manager reviews the definiof the scope of reference at least
annually and also, each and every time that eleggneritich might change the analysis

performed in a significant manner, are manifested.
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b) Identification of the controls corresponding to thentified risks: the identification of

the controls necessary for the mitigation of theeasmined risks is performed
associating the risks identified to the relativatcol objectives, meaning the group of
objectives that the financial reporting controlteys intends on achieving in order to

ensure a true and correct representation.

The controls established have been formalized énaidpecific matrix (“Matrix of risks

and controls”).

c) Evaluation of the controls corresponding to thentidied risks: the evaluation of the

administrative and accounting control system isegerformed at least annually.

The valuation of the suitability of the actual dpgtion of the controls is performed
through specific verification activities, aimed gwaranteeing the programming and
implementation of the identified controls, uponigation and coordination on the part

of the financial reporting manager.

Based on the results of the verification work, tin@ncial reporting manager, with the
aid of the support staff, defines a remedy plaasto correct any deficiencies that may
impact negatively on the effectiveness of the msknagement and internal control

system in relation to financial reporting.

At least annually, the financial reporting manageports to the Control and Risk
Committee and the Board of Statutory Auditors aanchmunicates with the company
supervisory boards, regarding the methods with whie suitability evaluation and the
application of the controls and administrative camting procedures have been
conducted, then expressing his own evaluation erstiitability of the administrative -

accounting control system.

Roles and functions

The subjects involved in the internal control aist management system, each with their own

specific role, are:

1. the Board of Directors, which guides and assesseadequacy of the system, identifying

within the system:

61



() the director in charge of the formation and maiatere of an effective internal control
and risk management system (the “director in chafgthe internal control and risk

management system”), and

(i) the Control and Risk Committee, in charge of &isgs through appropriate
preparatory work, the assessments and decisiahe &oard of Directors regarding the
internal control and risk management system, akagsahose regarding the approval of

periodical financial reports;

2. The internal audit manager, in charge of verifyithgt the internal control and risk

management system is working properly and adegyatel

3. other roles and functions with specific tasks rdgay internal control and risk

management,

4. the Board of Auditors, which monitors the effectiess of the internal control and risk

management system.

Art. 154-bis of the Consolidated Finance Act pr@ddfor the presence, in the corporate
organization of listed companies, of the “FinandRéporting Manager”, appointed by the
Board of Directors in concert with the Managing daitor. The Manager is responsible for
planning, implementing and approving the accounting administrative control model, and
for assessing its application, issuing a certifaat half-year, annual and consolidated financial

statements.

The Manager is also responsible for preparing aatequadministrative and accounting
procedures for the formation of the separate ambaaated financial statements, and for
providing subsidiaries, considered as significantities for the preparation of the Group’s
consolidated financial reporting, with instructioms how to perform an appropriate evaluation
of their accounting control system.

Overall evaluation of the appropriateness of the internal control and risk management
system

Based on the information and evidence gatheredvitig preliminary analysis conducted by
the Control and Risk Committee, supported by Mamaagd and by the internal audit manager,
Board of Directors deems the internal control aisd management system to be, as a whole,
appropriate for allowing, with reasonable assuraachievement of the Company's objectives.
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The evaluation, as it refers to the overall inteantrol system, is by nature limited. While
well-structured and in operation, the internal conhsystem is designed only to guarantee
accomplishment of corporate objectives with “readie assurance”.

11.1 Executive director in charge of the internatontrol and risk management system

Marco Pompignoli, executive director, is resporsilibr overseeing the operation of the

internal control and risk management system. Duttiiegyear, he was responsible for:

- identifying main corporate risks (strategic, opienadl, financial and compliance), taking
account of the nature of the operations carriedbguhe company and its subsidiaries, to

submit them for the review of the Board of Direstor

- executing the policies as identified by the Boafdwectors, providing for the planning,
realization and management of the internal consygdtem, constantly monitoring the

overall appropriateness, effectiveness and effagien

- adapting the system to the dynamics of the Groapkrating conditions and to the legal

and regulatory framework.

The director in charge of the internal control aigk management system has requested the
internal audit manager to perform assessments ennthin areas of operations and on
compliance with company rules and procedures in d¢kecution of business operations,
informing the Chairman of the Control and Risk Cdttee and the Chairman of the Board of

Auditors and reporting to the Control and Risk Cdttee on the findings.

11.2 Internal audit manager

The role of internal audit manager is carried oytanm external professional, Ezio Micheli,
appointed at the end of 2007 on the proposal madbebexecutive director responsible for the
internal control system and taking account of thaion of the Control and Risk Committee,

who reports to the Control and Risk Committee anthé Board of Statutory Auditors.

The Board of Directors has assigned the internditamanager the responsibilities foreseen by
the Corporate Governance Code and has definedenisirreration, in line with corporate

policy, providing him with the appropriate meandutill his duties.

The Board of Directors has verified that this perpossesses the necessary professional and

independence requirements to perform such functioparticular, he is not in charge of any
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operating area and is not subordinate to any peirsaharge of operating areas, including

administration and finance.

The internal audit manager has been allowed dimecess to all useful information for the
performance of his duties and has reported ondiigities to the Control and Risk Committee
and to the Board of Statutory Auditors and to tkecative director responsible for overseeing

the operation of the internal control system.

During the year, the activities of the internal udanager mainly focused on verifying the
updating and implementation process of corporatecquures. He is a member of the

Supervisory Board pursuant to Legislative DecreB 2301, as indicated in section 11.3 below.

The internal audit manager, also assisted by ueatlaxternal consultants, experts in these

areas, made available to the Company:

< verified on a continuous basis (not having reporpdcific needs) the operation and
adequacy of the internal control and risk managersgstem through an audit plan,

based on the structured analysis and ranking of fk&lys and the reliability of

information systems, including the accounting sysie

« regularly referred to the Control and Risk Comnaiteluring the meetings of the
Committee, also attended by the Chairman of thedo# Statutory Auditors and the
director in charge of the internal control and rislanagement system, providing
appropriate information on the tasks performedfisk management procedures, and
compliance with defined plans for risk mitigatioas well as an opinion on the

adequacy of the internal control and risk managemsygstem;

e assessed, as part of the audit plan, the reliafitinformation systems, including

accounting systems.

11.3 Organizational Model pursuant to Legislative [@cree 231/2001

On 31 March 2008, the Board of Directors adoptddioalel for organization, management and
control pursuant to Legislative Decree 231/2001géDizational Model), thereby providing
itself with a set of principles of conduct and prdares to comply with the requirements of
Legislative Decree 231/2001, both in terms of thevention of crime and illicit acts, and in

terms of control measures to ensure implementatiothe Model itself. The Model was
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updated by the Board of Directors, on a proposahefSupervisory Board (most recently in
May 2015, then in February 2016, following a numbéregulatory changes to Legislative
Decree no. 231/01), mainly including “bribery amopgvate individuals”, environmental
crimes and crimes of association, incitement toerfalkse statements, crimes against industry
and self-laundering. A similar model was also addptand later updated, in keeping with the
Organizational Model of Cairo Communication S.p.By, the subsidiaries Cairo Pubblicita
S.p.A., Cairo Editore S.p.A. and La7 S.p.A. (forrhai7 S.r.l.).

The Organizational Model adopted is made up oftaokerinciples, rules and organizational
hierarchies relating to the management and coofrobrporate activities and is presented in an

explanatory document which:
- identifies the activities in which crimes could tmmmitted;

- provides for specific rules directed at planning tarmation and performance of corporate

decisions relating to crimes to be prevented,;
- identifies methods for the management of finaneaburces directed at crime prevention;

- provides for the provision of information to thedyodeputized with oversight of the

operation and observation of the models (SuperyiBoard);

- introduces a disciplinary system directed at punigfailure to respect measures identified

by the Organization Model.

The Organizational Model adopted provides for thespnce of a corporate body responsible
for assuming the functions of a control body (Swuisery Board) with autonomous
responsibilities for the supervision, control amdtiative related to the Model, composed of
three members who must be selected from personsmdhgroven abilities in inspection,
management, administration and legal matters, ammb wnust also possess minimum

requirements of professionalism and integrity.

Specifically, the Supervisory Board verifies tha tompany has an appropriate Organizational
Model in place and ensures it is effectively catrat, certifying its own effectiveness whilst
carrying out its functions, ensuring the progressipdate, thus guaranteeing constant process

of adjustment to the above-mentioned operatingaratganizational principles.

In 2015, the members of the Supervisory Board afacC&ommunication S.p.A. were Ezio

Micheli, internal audit manager, Giacomo Leone Bfadco Bisceglia, Chairman.
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11.4  Audit Firm

At their meeting on 28 April 2011, on proposal thetBoard of Statutory Auditors, the
Shareholders conferred the audit assignment for201L-2019 nine-year period to KPMG

S.p.A., approving the relevant fee.

11.5 Financial Reporting Manager

The Board of Directors appointed Marco Pompign@lhief Financial Officer of the Cairo
Communication Group, as the Financial Reporting &fgm. He has the appropriate
professional requirements (graduate in businessnégtnation, previously working for a major
audit firm, gaining significant experience in ItaBnd abroad, and a certified accountant
registered in Forli).

Marco Pompignoli, as board member of the compasypriovided with executive and
management powers to oversee the administratioandie and management control functions

of the Group to which the Issuer belongs.

11.6 Coordination among parties in the internal cotrol and risk management system

Regarding coordination among the various partie®lired in the internal control and risk

management system (Board of Directors, directochiarge of the internal control and risk

management system, Control and Risk Committeernate@udit manager, Financial Reporting

Manager, Supervisory Body and Board of Statutorgifans), the meetings of the Control and

Risk Committee are generally attended also by the:

- Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors,

- partner or manager of the Audit Firm,

- director in charge of the internal control and riskanagement system, Marco
Pompignoli, who is also the Financial Reporting ldger,

- the internal audit managedfzio Micheli, who is also member of the SupervisBody.

Furthermore, the Board of Statutory Auditors ane 8upervisory Board schedule a specific

joint annual meeting also attended by the direatocharge of the internal control and risk

management system and the partner or manager dutii Firm to take stock of activities

performed during the year, to plan those for thi®fang year and to jointly discuss any issues

of common interest from their respective areasoofipetence.
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In any event, during the year, information is coun#lly exchanged between the Board of

Statutory Auditors and the Supervisory Board.

12 Related party transactions

Consob, through Resolution no. 17221 of 12 Marchi020amended through subsequent
Resolution no. 17389 of 23 June 2010, adopted,upntsto art. 2391-bis of the Italian Civil

Code, and to articles 113-ter, 114, 115 and 15%fethe TUF, the regulations regarding
provisions pertaining to related party transactiagnswhich management bodies of issuers of

widely distributed securities must comply (tHeegulation”).

At its meeting on 11 November 2010, the Board akeBtors of Cairo Communication S.p.A.,
on the favourable opinion of the independent de;tadopted the procedures for related party
transactions (the “Procedures”), for the purposguadranteeingsubstantial and procedural
transparency and fairness of related party trangatd’ carried out by the Company directly or

through its subsidiaries, establishing a RelatetyRzommittee.

Pursuant to the Regulation, Cairo Communicationoissidered a “small company”, since its
assets and its revenue shown, shown in the lasbegy financial statements (31 December
2014), are lower than Euro 500 million, amountiegpectively to approximately Euro 312
million and to approximately Euro 240 million. Feach companies, the Regulation provides
for the possibility to “apply to transactions ofegter importance, as a waiver to art. 8, a

procedure identified pursuant to art. 7 of the Ratipn” (transactions of lesser importance).

The procedures adopted by the Company, availablevww.cairocommunication.it in the
Corporate Governanceection, to which reference is made for complettaits, have also
identified:

a) the definition of related parties and transactions;

b) roles and responsibilities;

c) transactions of greater importance, being thosevhich at least one of the ratios of
significance (equivalent value relevance ratiogtssand liabilities relevance ratio) set out
in the Regulation are higher than the threshol8%f or of 2.5% for transactions whose

purpose is the disposal of intangible assets afesjic importance;

d) the exemptions provided in the Regulation and optethe Company, mainly transactions
of smaller amounts (Euro 150,000), remunerationgfaursuant to art. 114-bis of the TUF

(which comply with the obligations regarding traasgncy and substantial and procedural
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correctness provided by the temporary provisionf®iioe), regular transactions concluded

under market-equivalent or standard conditions #ied transactions with and between

subsidiaries and/or associates;

e) the procedures regarding the preliminary proceediagd approval of related party
transactions and the regulations in cases wherectimnepany examines or approves

transactions with subsidiaries;

f) the procedures and timing adopted to provide in&tiom on the transactions, and the
related documentation, to the directors or indepandirectors who express opinions on
related party transactions, as well as to the memagt and independent advisors, before

their approval, during and after their execution.

Related party transactions of greater importaneereserved to the exclusive competence of
the Board of Directors and may not be delegatelde @xecution of such transactions, as well
as those of lesser importance, is subject to abmmfing opinion of the Related Party

Committee, or of other bodies indicated in the pthoes.

In the event one or more transactions are approwuetlyithstanding a negative opinion
expressed by the Committee and/or other bodie<C tinegpany draws up and makes available to
the public at its main registered office within dl&ays from the close of each quarter of the
financial year, a document containing indicatiorthed counterparty, of the object and counter
value of such transactions approved in the quafteeference, as well as the reasons why that
opinion has not been shared. Within the same tilhig opinion is made available to the public

in attachment to the above document or on its vielsivw.cairocommunication.it.

Regarding transactions of greater importance fallinder the competence of the Shareholders,
in the event the resolution proposal is approvetlyvithstanding contrary advice by the Related
Party Committee (or by other bodies), the transacts not carried out if the majority of
unrelated shareholders votes against the transacpimvided the unrelated shareholders
attending the Meeting represent at least 10% oEhase capital with voting right (whitewash
mechanism). For such purpose, in the resolutiopgsal, the Board adds a provision that

specifies that the effectiveness of the transasi@ubject to the foregoing majority.

Related party transactions must comply with trarspesy and substantial and procedural

correctness criteria and are executed in the eixeluisterest of the Company:

- substantial correctness means correctness of ahsaiction from an economic point of

view when, for instance, the transfer price of goaglin line with market prices and,
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more in general, when the transaction has not lieftmenced by the related party
relationship, or at least said relationship hasdebermined the acceptance of conditions

that are unjustifiably penalizing for the Company;

- procedural correctness means compliance with pwyesdaimed at ensuring the
substantial correctness of the transaction andefiie, observance of the rules through
which it is at least potentially ensured that retbparty transactions do not determine any

unjustified prejudice to the reasons of the Compamy its investors.

At the Board of Directors’ meeting called to reslen such related party transactions,
directors who have even a potential or indirectri@st in the transaction must provide prompt
and exhaustive information in person to the Boardhe existence of such interest and on the
circumstances thereof, leaving the meeting at tlmnemt of the resolution. Should the

directors’ presence be needed to maintain the sapgesjuorum, the Board may decide, upon

the unanimous decision of the attendants, for itextbrs not to leave the meeting.

The Regulation also provides for a series of olibge to inform the public on transactions of
greater importance, as well as for those of legsportance, at least every quarter in the latter

case.

The Committee for the approval of related partysections (hereinafter, th&®élated Party
Committe€”), regardless of the importance, is appointedh®yBoard of Directors and can be

composed of three members:

() in the event at least three independent directave lbeen elected to the Board of

Directors, the members of the Committee are akjpahdent directors;

(i)  otherwise than under the case indicated in theapoint (i), its members are non-
executive directors, the majority of whom are inglegient. In such case, the

Committee may coincide with the Control and Rislkattee.

On 14 May 2014, the Board of Directors appointed thembers of the Related Party
Committee, composed of the three independent directMarco Janni, Chairman, Stefania
Petruccioli, and Mauro Sala, and allocated Eurafusand as annual remuneration to the
Related Party Committee. The Committee is asstsyesl secretary appointed for such purpose
(Marco Bisceglia), to whom the Board of Directotdoeated Euro 2 thousand as annual
remuneration.

The Committee is required to perform all the tabidicated in the Regulation and in the

procedures. Specifically, its task is to releasenativated opinion on the interest of the
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Company (or, if the case, of its subsidiaries) loa éxecution of related party transactions and
on the convenience and substantial correctneserufitions thereto. If required by the nature,

extent and characteristics of the transaction Rbkted Party Committee may also be assisted
by one or more independent experts of its choitmse fees are paid by the Company, through

the acquisition of specific reports and/or fairnaad/or legal opinions.

The Board of Directors may decide on remuneratayrspecial responsibilities pursuant to art.
2389, paragraph 3, of the Italian Civil Code, te @ommittee members for each transaction it

is required to express an opinion on.

13 Appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors

Under art. 26 of the company bylaws, the Boardtafusory Auditors is appointed on the basis

of lists submitted by the shareholders containinggaimum of five candidates.
Under the bylaws:

- members of the Board of Statutory Auditors are agppd on the basis of lists that must
be filed with the registered office of the Compawithin the 2%' day before the
Shareholders’ Meeting called to decide on the agpmnt of the members of the Board
of Statutory Auditors, made available to the pubdt the registered office, on
www.cairocommunication.iand in accordance with the other procedures pealvioy
law and regulations, at least 21 days before tle dfathe Meeting. Upon expiry of the
time limit of 25 days prior to the Meeting, in tlegent only one list has been filed, or
lists submitted by shareholders who are connegiadsuant to applicable provisions,
lists may be submitted until the fourth day (asfegth in the bylaws) subsequent to such
date. In this event, the foregoing 2.5% threshad dqther minimum amount set by

prevailing laws) is reduced by half;

- the lists consist of two sections: one for candidéab the position of standing auditor,
and the other for candidates to the position @ralite auditor, and where the number of
candidates is equal to or higher than three, theaystnmensure minimum gender

representation required by the laws and regulaiiofgrce at the time;

- lists admitted to the voting are those submittegshgreholders who, either individually
or jointly with other shareholders, represent aste2.5% of the shares entitled to vote in

the ordinary meeting, or other minimum amount setGonsol which was set at an
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amount equal to 2.5% by resolution 19499 of 28 dan2016). Ownership of the

minimum stake is determined on the basis of theesheecorded in the name of the
shareholder on the date the lists are filed with @ompany; candidates may appear in
one list only, under penalty of ineligibility; caiddtes holding the position of statutory
auditor in 5 (five) other listed companies (exchgltheir subsidiaries, although listed) or
holding a number of positions exceeding the curuddimit prescribed by law and by

Consob, or failing to possess the requirements mégrity and professionalism

established by prevailing laws, shall not appearthe lists. Each list shall be

accompanied by a) information regarding the idgntit the shareholders who have
submitted the list, indicating total percentage sbfares held, and by prescribed
certification on ownership of the stake, which magy submitted also subsequent to
filing, provided within the time limit set for pubhtion of the lists; b) a statement of the
shareholders other than those who hold, also jgimtlcontrolling or relative majority

interest, declaring they have no relationship ohraxtion, pursuant to applicable
provisions; c) detailed information regarding tlezqonal and professional qualifications
of the candidates (including gender), and a statémvéh which each candidate accepts
nomination and attests, under own responsibilityat tthere are no reasons for
ineligibility or incompatibility with the position,and confirms possession of the

requirements prescribed by law and the bylawsHemréspective positions;

- the chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditanalkbe the candidate indicated on top of the
list that has received the second-highest numbeotefs. The bylaws do not provide for
the appointment of more than one minority statunsgitor, nor do they provide for the
possibility of drawing a number of alternate auditbrom the minority list to replace the

minority member greater than the minimum requirgcCbnsob;

- should two or more lists reach a tie, the prevgilist shall be the list possessing the

largest shareholding or, in the event of a tie Highest number of shareholders;

- should only one list be submitted, the three stamdiuditors and two alternate auditors
shall be drawn from this list, in the sequentiaderin which they appear, in which case
the Chairman of the board of statutory auditordl $leathe candidate appearing on top of
the list;

- according to the above procedure, should the coitimosof the board of statutory

auditors fail to comply with gender balance reqdile law or regulations currently in
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force, the necessary replacements shall be madel lmasthe sequential order of listing

of candidates;

- should no list be submitted or admitted, the ba#rgtatutory auditors and its Chairman
shall be appointed by the Shareholders’ Meetingetative majority vote, in compliance

with the laws and regulations in force on gendéarze.

14 Composition and operation of the Board of Statutry Auditors (pursuant to art. 123

bis, paragraph 2, letter d), T.U.F.)

At their meeting on 29 April 2014 the Shareholdappointed the Board of Statutory Auditors
for a three-year period, until the approval of timancial statements at 31 December 2016, on
the basis of a single list submitted by the majbarsholder, UT Communication S.p.A.
approved with the favourable vote of 76.34% of #iare capital. The Board of Statutory
Auditors comprises three standing auditors, Maraardvii, Chairman, Maria Pia Maspes and
Marco Giuliani, and two alternate auditors, EmiFano and Enrico Tamborini, who have
certified that they know of no relative cause ofligibility or incompatibility, and that they
meet the requirements for the position under caitegislation and the bylaws, specifically, the
requirements of independence provided by art. Jge8agraph 3 of the TUF, and the
requirements of independence provided by industguliations if applicable on account of

business activities performed.

| Board of Statutory Auditors
Post Members |Year of | Date of first | From Until List Independence | *** Number of
birth  |appointment* (M/m)** as per Code other posts
*kkk
Chairman Marco Moroni| 1963 | 05/05/2008 01/0] 31/12 M X 17
Standing auditor Marco 1959 | 28/04/2011] 01/01 31/12 M X Y 9
Giuliani
Standing auditor| Maria Pia 1970 | 30/01/2006/ 01/01 31/12 M X Y 12
Maspes
Alternate Emilio Fano | 1954 | 29/04/2014 o01/o0  31/12 M X n/a n/a
auditor
Alternate Enrico 1967 | 28/04/2011 01/01 31/12 M X nja n/a
auditor Tamborini
Quorum required for the submission of lists at res appointment: 2.5%
N. of meetings held in 2015: 4
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NOTES:

* Date of first appointment of each statutory aodimeans the date on which each statutory audi@s appointed for the first
time (ever) in the Board of Statutory Auditorstuf tssuer.

** This column indicates M/m depending on whetlner $tatutory auditor was elected by the majority viminority (m) list

*** This column indicates the participation percage of statutory auditors to the BoA meetings (ntirmes present/n. of
meetings held during their term, for instance @8, etc.).

**** This column indicates number of directorships statutory auditor positions held, pursuant td.&r48-bis TUF and related
implementation provisions contained in Consob’siéssRegulations. The complete list of appointménsublished by Consob
on its website pursuant to Art. 144-quinquiesdeofeSonsob’s Issuer Regulations.

In 2015, four meetings were held, each lasting @gprately 2 hours. Five meetings are

scheduled for the current year, one has already belgl.

The Board of Statutory Auditors assessed the imiigrece of its members following their
appointment. For its assessments, it based ie®ibng other criteria, also on those prescribed
by the Corporate Governance Code regarding indegpexadof directors. In any event, auditors
who, either or on their own behalf or of third pest may have an interest in a specific
transaction involving the Issuer, shall prompthddnlly inform the other auditors and the

Chairman of the Board of Directors as to the natieens, origin and extent of their interest.

The Board of Statutory Auditors also oversaw thadejrendence of the Audit Firm, verifying the
respect of relevant regulatory requirements in $eaithe nature and overall service provided
other than the audit services provided to the Caomp@nd its subsidiaries by the same Audit
Firm and the entities forming part of its network.

In the performance of its duties, the Board of 8taly Auditors coordinated its activities with
the internal audit manager and with the Control Risk Committee, also with the attendance of
its Chairman or other statutory auditor delegatedthte meetings of the Control and Risk
Committee.

Given the vast knowledge of the Company accumullayetthe statutory auditors and their wealth
of experience in the specific areas of operatiothef Cairo Communication Group, as well as
the specific personal and professional backgroundash member of the Board of Statutory
Auditors, it was not deemed necessary to have thtend (induction program), following
appointment and during their term of office, initi@s to provide them with adequate knowledge
of the area of operation of the Issuer, of compdynamics and evolution, as well as the relevant

regulatory framework.
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15 Investor Relations

Cairo Communication has set up an appropriate@eati its website, which is easy to find and
easily accessible, in which all important companfgiimation of interest to shareholders is made
available.

To put a communication flow in place with the gerlébody of shareholders, also taking
account of the size of the Company and Group, anogpiate “investor relations” function has
been set up, managed by Mario Cargnelutti, whaperted by top management, particularly

in relation to dealings with institutional invessor

16 Shareholders’ Meetings

The functioning of the Shareholders’ Meeting, i@impowers, shareholders’ rights and terms of
their exercise are those prescribed by the appéqatiovisions of law and regulations.
Multiple-voting shares or increased voting rights aot envisaged.

The By-laws contain no provisions that reserve ehalders the authorization of specific actions
taken by the directors. Pursuant to art. 21, papg2 of the bylaws, without prejudice to the
competence of the Shareholders at their Extraorglibi@eting, who have the authority to decide
on the matter, pursuant to art. 2365 of the ltal@inil Code, the Board of Directors is
authorized, inter alia, to adopt resolutions conitey merger, in the cases set forth in articles
2505 and 2505 bis of the lItalian Civil Code, cdpiteduction in the event of shareholder
withdrawal, harmonization of the bylaws to mandgatprovisions of law, relocation of the
registered office to other premises in Italy.

For those entitled to participate to the Meetingng rights and representation at meetings is
governed by the provisions of law and regulatiohg. 12 of the bylaws states as follows:
“Shareholders entitled to vote at meetings and tmepresentation is governed by the
provisions of law and regulationgn particular, shareholders authorized to cast gevonay
send notice by electronic means of the proxiesetssuursuant to the prevailing laws, by
accessing a specific section on the Company’s weelagicording to the procedures to be

indicated in the notice of call of shareholders’etiegs”

Voting by correspondence, e-voting and/or votingngisaudiovisual links has not been

established.

Given the number of attendants at Company ordiaadyextraordinary shareholders’ meetings,

which has never posed any risk to the rights ofesgion of any member in relation to matters
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discussed, no regulations relating to the ordemly fainctional operation of the Meetings have

been proposed for the approval of the Shareholders.

Shareholders’ Meetings are an opportunity for infation regarding the Issuer to be
communicated to shareholders, in accordance wihctde of practice relating to privileged
information. In particular, at Shareholders’ Megtn the Board of Directors reports on
activities completed and planned, and ensuresstiateholders have appropriate information
on all topics required in order to make decisiantha meeting with full knowledge of the facts.
All members of the Board of Directors attendedMeeting held on 28 April 2015.

In order to meet this objective, the Board of Dioes makes available to shareholders all
company information they deem relevant, in a timagnner, in accordance with the code of
practice relating to privileged information. Forchupurpose, a dedicated section of the
Company website has been set up where this tyjpgaination is displayed, with particular

detail on attendance at Shareholders’ Meetingsexkecise of voting rights and documentation

relating to items on the agenda.

No proposals were made at the Shareholders’ Metdingte on items on which a proposal had

not been made in advance by the Board of Directors.

At the last Shareholders’ Meeting, the Presidemt diher member) of the Remuneration
Committee was not required to report to the shddehs on the manner of exercising the
functions of the Committee, which are appropriatetplained in the Remuneration Report and

Corporate Governance Report.

In 2015, no significant changes were reported i ¢bmposition of the Issuer’'s corporate

structure.
17 Further corporate governance practices

There are no corporate governance practices furbhttie ones mentioned above applied by the

Company, aside from the legal or regulatory reaquémsts.
18 Changes after year end

There were no changes in the Corporate Governanadge after year end.
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Treasury shares

Movements in treasury shares are disclosed in 1@t the separate financial statements of

the Parent Company.

Stock Options

Cairo Communication has no current stock optiompkt this time.

Shares held by directors, statutory auditors and geeral managers

Shares held directly by Directors, Statutory Auditand General Managers are illustrated in

the Remuneration Report prepared pursuant to 28ttdr of the TUF.

Other information

Research and development activities

There are no research and development activitieggort having a significant effect on the
performance of the Company or the Group.

Human resources

By the nature of the activities it carries out, lmmresources form a critical factor for the

success of the Group. The evaluation of staff, degelopment of their abilities and the

recognition of their achievements and responsigdiaire the principles which govern personnel
management, from the selection phase, which iditited by the high degree of the Group’s

visibility and its ability to attract personnel.

Staff turnover during 2015 and its composition &t Becember 2015 can be analyzed as

follows:
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Description 01/01/2015 Recruitments Terminations Advancements 31/12/2015
Open-ended contracts 712 24 a7 8 727
Senior managers 25 3 - 2 30
Managers 82 (1) (2) 80
Employees 384 14 (112) 8 395
Journalists and freelance 221 6 (5) 222
Fixed-term contracts 25 116 (87) (8) 46
Senior managers 0 0 0

Managers 0 0 0

Employees 11 66 (53) (5) 19
Journalists and freelance 14 50 (34) 3) 27
Grand total 737 140 (104) 0 773

Personnel can also be analyzed by average agedigation and seniority:

Senior Managers Employee Journalists and

managers S freelance
Men (number) 29 50 211 109
Women (number) 1 30 203 140
Average age 50 49 45 47
Seniority 14 15 12 13
Open-ended contracts 30 80 395 222
Fixed-term contracts - - 19 27
Graduates 24 34 95 127
Diploma holders 5 47 296 120
Middle school graduates 0 1 22 2

Most of the employees (438) work in the TV segméuoitpwed (225) by the magazine and

book publishing segment. The advertising segmenil@s 74 people and draws on a sales

force of approximately 100 agents (direct and iecty who are coordinated by senior sales

managers and staff who, together with their seffo ensure coordination with the editors and

the promotion of special initiatives.

The Group is committed to pursue health and safejgctives at the workplace. There were no

accidents in the workplace or charges for occupatidiseases during the year.
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Environment

The Cairo Communication Group has outsourced tslytion processes. There are no major
environmental aspects which could affect the fimgngosition or results of operations of the
company.

Privacy

Regarding privacy regulations, Cairo Communicatiand Group companies update the
Personal Data Policy Document, which establisheatrment followed, resources subject to
security measures, risks, rules (physical and &gineasures, and security organizational
measures) and the relating training plan.

In previous years, technical and organizationalsuezs and methods had been put in place -
integrating those already operational where necgssaegarding storage of the identifying
details of system administrators and verificatidrwork performed, in order to guarantee the

monitoring of their work.

EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD AND BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2015, despite the high degree of uncertaintytref economic context in general and

specifically of its relevant markets (advertisingdgpublishing), and despite the drop reported

by advertising revenue also as a result of the etdrknd, the Cairo Communication Group:

- reported in 4Q15 a strong improvement in the reswméind versus the first nine months of

the year, achieving gross operating profit (EBITD#) approximately Euro 6.8 million,

exceeding the result achieved in 4Q14 (Euro 6.6an)t
continued its growth strategy by launching “Nuov®”Tthe new TV weekly led by
Riccardo Signoretti, out on newsstands from 21 &aper; in the first 22 issues, it posted
average sales of approximately 142 thousand colpigkly satisfactory results in line with
forecasts; Thanks also to the results achievetNoypvo TV", on 26 January 2016, the
Group launched "Nuovo e Nuovo TV Cucina”, the fayily magazine dedicated to good
food for every cooking connoisseur, presenting eagrdable and successful recipes, sold
as an option with the two weeklies “Nuovo” and “NoolV”, which reported average sales
of approximately 165 thousand copies in the firEshies;

- reported a strong growth in results in the magazguoblishing segment which, despite

incurring total costs of Euro 1.4 million in Septeen and October to launch the new

weekly, achieved gross operating profit (EBITDApasperating profit (EBIT) of Euro 14.6
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million and Euro 13.5 million (up by approximate§.1% and 7.7% versus 2014),
confirming the high circulation levels of the pudations, and worked on improving the
levels of efficiency reached in containing cost®uction, publishing and distribution);

- continued - in a persistently weak advertising rarkto work on strengthening the results
of the rationalization and cost-curbing measurdsiexed in the TV publishing segment
(La7) in 2013 and 2014, and succeeded in posting@Qil5 too, a positive gross operating
profit (EBITDA) of approximately Euro 1.6 milliorthanks to the results reached in 4Q15,
when gross operating profit (EBITDA), amountingajeproximately Euro 4.7 million, grew
by about 50% versus the figure achieved in 4Q1ldnkk also to the trend in advertising

sales on La7 and La7d channels in December, updog than 10% versus December 2014.

Based on the order book at 14 March 2016 for athiegtaired and to be aired on La7 and La7d
in 1Q16, amounting to approximately Euro 35.8 miili revenue achieved in 1Q15 (Euro 35.2
million) has already been beaten, and forecastst foia growth of approximately 4% in the
quarter. In 1Q16, based on the order book at 14cMa016, amounting to Euro 5.1 million,
advertising sales on the Group's magazines showexremely positive trend, up by

approximately 15% versus revenue achieved in 1@U50(4.4 million).

In 2016, the Cairo Communication Group will conenio:

- pursue the development of its traditional segmémiagazine publishing and advertising
sales), also continuing, in the publishing segmestgrowth strategy with the launch of
new titles; in these segments, despite the ecanamil competitive backdrop, given the
high quality of the publications and of the medmnmler concession, the Group considers it a
feasible target to continue to achieve positiveratieg results;

- work on strengthening the results of the ratiormdion and cost-curbing measures achieved
in 2013-2015 in the TV publishing segment, whicHasecast to achieve a positive gross
operating profit (EBITDA) in 2016 too.

However, the evolution of the general economicagitun could affect the full achievement of

these targets.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano Cairo
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Dear Shareholders,

at the meeting held on 14 March 2016, the BoarBidfctors resolved to submit the financial

statements as at and for the year ended 31 Decexfithérto the approval of the Shareholders

and to propose the distribution of a dividend @00Euro per share, inclusive of tax.

Shareholders are invited:

- to approve the financial statements as at anchioyéar ended 31 December 2015;

- to resolve on the proposal to distribute to shdddre a dividend of 0.20 Euro per share,
inclusive of tax, with the exception of treasunasds held the evening prior to the record
date pursuant to art. 88rdeciesf Legislative Decree 58/1998:

= distributing profit for the year of Euro 8,109,548,

= drawing the difference from the share premium reser
If approved by the Shareholders, the dividend aoEHu20 per share will be made payable
from 11 May 2016 (record date pursuant to ariteB8eciesf Legislative Decree 58/1998:
10 May 2016), prior to detachment of coupon n. A®day 2016.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano Cairo
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Consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2015

€ thousands 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Notes
Revenue 1 226,582 240,266
Other revenue and income 2 9,403 11,927
Change in inventory of finished products 3 33 (28)
Raw materials, consumables and supplies 4 (21,864) (24,589)
Services 5 (113,550) (113,827)
Use of third-party assets 6 (20,420) (22,811)
Personnel expense 7 (60,955) (60,634)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaintiesses 8 (8,217) (5,221)
Other operating costs 9 (1,672) (2,121)
EBIT 9,340 22,962
Income / (loss) on investments 10 0 )
Net financial income 11 692 1,829
Pre-tax profit 10,032 24,789
Income tax 12 1,040 (973)
Profit from continuing operations 11,072 23,816
Loss from discontinued operations 13 1) 1)
Profit for the year 11,071 23,815
- Owners of the parent 11,053 23,791
- Non-controlling interests - discontinued operatio 0 0
- Non-controlling interests - continuing operations 18 24
11,071 23,815

Eamings per share (euro)
Earnings per share - continuing and discontinuedtadipns 15 0.141 0.304
- Earnings per share - continuing operations 15 0.141 0.304

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2015

31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Profit for the year 11,071 23,815
Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehensimeome statement
Actuarial proft (loss) from defined benefit plans 25 (38) (1,367)
Tax effect 10 376
Total comprehensive income for the year 11,043 22,824
- Owners of the parent 11,025 22,800
- Non-controlling interests - discontinued operatio 0 0
- Non-controlling interests - continuing operations 18 24

11,043 22,824
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Consolidated statement of financial position at 3December 2015

€ thousands

Assets Notes 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Property, plant and equipment 16 3,080 3,069
Intangible assets 17 60,917 56,871
Investments 18 62 62
Non-current financial assets 18 1,640 1,113
Deferred tax assets 19 4,186 3,983
Total non-current assets 69,885 65,098
Inventories 20 3,141 3,296
Trade receivables 21 78,539 79,957
Receivables from parents 30 3,167 6,539
Other receivables and other current assets 22 5,297 8,430
Cash and cash equivalents 23 125,776 149,061
Total current assets 215,920 247,283
Total assets 285,805 312,381
Equity and liabilities Notes 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Share capital 4,074 4,074
Share premium reserve 30,495 41,062
Prior-year earnings (losses) and other reserves 70,573 57,384
Profit for the year 11,054 23,791
Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 116,196 126,311 )
Non-controlling interests share capital and reserves 54 36
Total shareholders’ equity 24 116,250 126,347
Non-current financial payables and liabilities 26 15,000 20,000
Post-employment benefits 25 13,315 13,398
Provisions for risks and charges 27 28,658 30,343
Total non-current liabilities 56,973 63,741
Current financial payables and liabilities 28 5,000 5,000
Trade payables 29 82,382 87,884
Payables to parents 30 818 156
Tax liabilities 31 3,560 5,487
Other current liabilities 32 20,822 23,766
Total current liabilities 112,582 122,293
Total liabilities 169,555 186,034
Total equity and liabilities 285,805 312,381
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

€ thousands

31 December 2015

31 December 2014

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Amortization/ Depreciation

Income / (loss) on investments

Net financial income

Income tax

Change in post-employment benefits
Change in provisions for risks and charges

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables

Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables
(Increase) decrease in inventories

TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income tax received (paid)
Financial expense paid

TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) disposal net of PPE and intangible assets
Interest and financial income received

Net increase in other non-current assets

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect
Increase (decrease) in financial payables

Other changes in equity

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A)+(B)+(C)

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE
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149,061 172,915
11,071 23,815
7,217 3,609

0 2

(692) (1,829)
(1,040) 973
(280) 1,439
(1,685) (4,639)
14,591 23,370
4,551 10,047
(8,445) (15,098)
155 808
10,852 19,127
2,944 557
(95) (512)
13,701 19,172
(11,274) (47,734)
983 2,468
(527) (622)
(10,818) (45,388)
(21,152) (21,152)
(28) (991)
(5,000) 25,000
11 5
(26,169) 2,862
(23,286) (23,854)
125,775 149,061



Statement of changes in consolidated equity

€ thousands

Balance at 31 December 2012

Effects from application of amended IAS 19
Balance at 1 January 2013

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Disposal of treasury shares

Actuarial prof (loss) from defined benefit plans
Other movements

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2013

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans
Other movements

Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance at 31 December 2014

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial prof (loss) from defined benefit plans
Other movements

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

Share capital Share premium  Prior-year Interim Profit for the Equity Non- Total
reserve earnings dividend year attributable  controlling
(losses) and to owners of interests share
other reserves the parent capital and
reserves
4,074 45,452 2,287 (10,126) 18,663 58,226 4 58,230
(%4) 94 0 0
4,074 45,452 2,193 (10,126) 18,757 60,350 4 60,354
18,757 (18,757) 0 0
(21,031) 10,126 (10,905) (10,905)
1,382 1,382 1,382
(370) 370 0 0
7 7 7
73,824 73,824 8 73,832
4,074 45,452 938 0 74,194 124,658 12 124,670
74,194 (74,194) 0 0
(4,390) (16,762) (21,152) (21,152)
(991) 991 0 0
5 5 5
22,800 22,800 24 22,824
1,074 141,062 57,384 0 23,791 126,311 36 126,347
23,791 (23,791) 0 0
(10,567) (10,585) (21,152) (21,152)
(28) 28 0 0
11 11 11
11,025 11,025 18 11,043
4,074 30,495 70,573 0 11,053 116,195 54 116,249
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Consolidated income statement pursuant to Consob Relution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

31 December 2015 related parties % of total 31 December 2014 % of total % of total
*)

Revenue 226,582 178 0.1% 240,266 165 0.1%
Other revenue and income 9,403 ) 0.1% 11,927 51 0.4%
Change in inventory of finished products 33 (28)

Raw materials, consumables and supplies (21,864) (24,589)

Services (113,550) (2,436) 2.1% (113,827) @111) 1.9%
Use of third-party assets (20,420) (22,811)

Personnel expense (60,955) (60,634)

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses (8,217) (5,221)

Other operating costs (1,672) (2121)

Operating profit 9,340 22,962

Income / (loss) on investments 0 2

Net financial income 692 1,829

Pre-tax profit 10,032 24,789

Income tax 1,040 973)

Profit from continuing operations 11,072 23,816

Loss from discontinued operations 1) 1)

Profit for the year 11,071 23,815

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 34
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Consolidated statement of financial position pursuat to Consob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

€ thousands

Assets 31 December 2015 related parties % of total 31 December 2014  related parties % of total
*) *)

Property, plant and equipment 3,080 3,069

Intangible assets 60,917 56,871

Investments 62 62

Non-current financial assets 1,640 1,113

Deferred tax assets 4,186 3,983

Total non-current assets 69,885 65,098

Inventories 3,141 3,296

Trade receivables 78,539 97 0.1% 79,957 471 0.6%

Receivables from parents 3,167 3,167 100.0% 6,539 6,539 100.0%

Other receivables and other current assets 5,297 47 0.9% 8,430 47 0.6%

Cash and cash equivalents 125,776 149,061

Total current assets 215,920 247,283

Total assets 285,805 312,381

Equity and liabilities 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Share capital 4,074 4,074

Share premium reserve 30,495 41,062

Prior-year earnings (losses) 70,573 57,384

Profit for the period 11,054 23,791

Equity attributable to the owners of the parent 116,196 126,311

Non-controlling interests share capital and reserves 54 36

Total shareholders’ equity 116,250 126,347

Non-current financial payables and liabilities 15,000 20,000

Post-employment benefits 13,315 13,398

Provisions for risks and charges 28,658 30,343

Total non-current liabilities 56,973 63,741

Current financial payables and liabilities 5,000 5,000

Trade payables 82,382 1,285 1.6% 87,884 1,428 1.6%

Payables to parents 818 818 100.0% 156 156 100.0%

Tax liabilities 3,560 5,487

Other current liabilities 20,822 23,766

Total current liabilities 112,582 122,293

Total liabilities 169,555 186,034

Total equity and liabilities 285,805 312,381

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in Note 34

87



Consolidated statement of cash flows pursuant to @sob Resolution no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

€ thousands

31 December 2015 related parties 31 December 2014 related parties
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 149,061 172,915
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year 11,071 (2,250) 23,815 (1,895)
Amortization/ Depreciation 7,217 3,609
Income / (loss) on investments 0 2
Net financial income (692) (1,829)
Income tax (1,040) 973
Change in post-employment benefits (280) 1,439
Change in provisions for risks and charges (1,685) (4,639)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 14,591 (2,250) 23,370 (1,895)
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 4,551 3,746 10,047 (982)
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (8,445) 519 (15,098) 1,392
(Increase) decrease in inventories 155 808
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 10,852 2,015 19,127 (1,485)
Income tax received (paid) 2,944 557
Financial expense paid (95) (512)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) 13,701 2,015 19,172 (1,485)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) disposal net of PPE and intangible assets (11,274) (47,734)
Interest and financial income received 983 2,468
Net increase in other non-current assets (527) (622)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) (10,818) 0 (45,888) 0
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid (21,152) (21,152)
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect (28) (991)
Increase in financial payables (5,000) 25,000
Other changes in equity 11 5
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (26,169) 0 2,862 0
CASH FLOW OF THE PERIOD (A)+(B)+(C) (23,286) 2,015 (23,854) (1,485)
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 125,775 149,061
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ASA T AND FOR THE YEAR

ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. (the Parent) is a jetoick company listed in the Milan Company Register.
The Cairo Communication Group operates as a puslishmagazines and books (Cairo Editore — and its
division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — and Cairal#ishing), as a TV publisher (La7), as a multinaedi
advertising broker selling advertising time andcgpan television, in print media and in stadiumai(®
Communication and Cairo Pubblicitd), as a publisbierlectronic content (Il Trovatorejnd as a
network operator (Cairo Network S.r.1.).

The registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Mildhome also to the administrative offices, the
advertising brokerage services and Il Trovatore@ailo Network. The publishing business is managed
Cairo Editore, at 55 Corso Magenta, Milan. The midhg business of La7 is managed mainly in Rome at
the registered offices and the TV studios of Laj./As. (former La7 S.r.l.) at 229 Via della Pineta
Sacchetti and 32 Via Novaro, respectively.

Figures are shown in thousands of Euro.

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the consolidatedrfmal statements

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece@®&5 have been prepared in accordance with IFRS
issued by the International Accounting Standardr8¢dASB”) and endorsed by the European Union, as
well as with the provisions arising from art. 9Lafgislative Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS edus
mean all the international accounting standardaS”) and all the interpretations of the Internatibn
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IER, formerly the Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”).

The consolidated income statemenis presented by nature, highlighting interim opiegaresults and
pre-tax results, and in order to allow a better snea of ordinary operating management performance.
Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivorg évents or transactions which, by their nature o
size are considered non-recurring, are also segpidentified in the financial statements and rloges in
accordance with the definition of non-recurring mgeand transactions held in Consob Communication
No. 6064293 of 28 July 2006.

The economic effect of discontinued operationshims in a single line of the income statement katit
“Profit/loss from discontinued operations”, undeRIS 5.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive incomalso reflects the “changes arising from

transactions with non-owners”- separately showirggrelevant tax effects, that is:
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-- profit and loss that could be directly recogudize equity (for instance actuarial gains and lesse
from the measurement of defined benefit plans);

- the effects of the measurements of derivativerunsents hedging future cash flows;

- the effects of the measurements of availableséde-financial assets;

- the effects arising from any change in accounsitagidards.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive inqorasents the items relating to the amounts of the

components of other comprehensive income for th@ogdy nature and grouped into those which, in

accordance with the provisions of other IAS/IFRS:

- will not be subsequently reclassified to proffits§) for the year;

- will be subsequently reclassified to profit (Ip&sr the year, when certain conditions are met.

The consolidated statement of financial positiorpresents separately assets and liabilities divided

current and non-current, indicating, on two separites, “Assets held for sale” and “Liabilities

associated with discontinued operations”, in acancg with IFRS 5. Specifically, an asset or a lighis

classified as current when it satisfies one offtitlewing criteria:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or iteipected to be sold or utilized in the normal
operating cycle of the company;

- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withtnnionths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.

The consolidated statements of cash flowsave been prepared applying the indirect methoahich

operating performance is adjusted to reflect trati@as of a non-monetary nature, for whatever dafer

or accrual of previous or future operating receiptspayments and for revenue or cost components

connected to cash flows arising from investing ioaificing activities. Income and expense relating to

medium or long-term financial operations and thidating to hedging instruments, and dividends paid

are included in financing activities.

The statement of changes in consolidated equishows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with ownersdcpase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense definedtenes arising from transactions with non-owfeaso

shown in the consolidated statement of compreherissome.

Furthermore in order to comply with Consob ResolutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to financial
statements schedules, specific additional condelidancome statement, consolidated statement of

financial position and consolidated statement athclows have been added highlighting significant
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related party transactions in order not to compsemnthe overall readability of financial statements

schedules.

The consolidated financial statements are prepaned going concern basis. The Cairo Communication
Group believes that even in the presence of acdiffieconomic and financial situation, significant
uncertainties do not exist (as defined by paragrddh and 26 of IAS 1) on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, given both the ptafitg outlook of Group companies and the Company’s

financial position.

The main accounting policies adopted are unchamgexlis those used last year, and are explained/belo

Basis and scope of consolidation
The scope of consolidation, based on the full nakthocludes consolidated subsidiaries (control is

defined as the power of the Parent to determinditlaacial and operational policies of the compamy
order to derive benefits from its operations) avased on the single line method, consolidated &es¢
over which significant influence is exercised.

The consolidated financial statements at 31 Decer2b&5 include the financial statements of the

Parent and Cairo Communication S.p.A. and thevotlg direct or indirect subsidiaries and associates

Company Head  Share capital % Reporting Business Consolidation method
office at 31/12/15: of investment date

Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 10 60 31/12 In liquidation Full re assets and
liabilities (*)

La 7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) Rome 1,020 100 31/12 TV publishing Full from 30 April
2013

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full

Cairo Network S.r.l. Milan 5,500 100 31/12 Network operator Full

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full

Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full

Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

(*) the income statement is consolidated on a sifige basis in profit/(loss) from discontinued i®ns

In 2015, there were no changes to the scope ofolidation from the consolidated financial statensent
for the year ended 31 December 2014.

On 23 February 2016, through deed executed at ffime oan Milan of notary Luca Barassi, Index no.
16744, the Extraordinary General Meeting of thesglibry La7 S.r.l. approved its transformation iato

joint-stock company; the registered office, corperabject, share capital and the duration remain

unchanged.
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The financial results of subsidiaries acquired ad -during the year are included in the consolidate
income statement from the actual acquisition datél uhe actual date of sale. Where necessary,
adjustments to subsidiary financial statementsraagle in order to harmonize them with the Group
accounting policies.

The full consolidation method has been used fordhiesolidation of subsidiary financial statements,
assuming the total of assets, liabilities, incomd axpense of individual companies, regardlesshef t
share owned, eliminating the carrying amount ofRheent investment against the subsidiary’s equity.
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of otidated subsidiaries are disclosed separately &quity
attributable to owners of the parent. This stakeaisulated on the basis of the percentage stalteedair
value of the asset or liability on the original ghise date and subsequent changes in equity after s
date.

Unrealized gains and losses, provided they aramor, deriving from transactions between companies
included in the scope of consolidation, are elirtédaas are all significant transactions which gise to
intra-Group receivables and payables, income apeérese. These adjustments, like other consolidation
adjustments, where applicable, take account ofdlaed deferred tax effect.

Dividends distributed by consolidated companiesedirainated from the income statement and added to

prior-year profits if and to the extent they weggdpout of such profit.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is recognized udimg acquisition method. The acquisition price is
calculated by the sum of current values, at thédamxge date, of the assets acquired, liabilitiearasd,
financial instruments issued by the Group in exgledior the control of the acquired company.

The subsidiary’s assets, liabilities and identigatontingent liabilities that meet the conditi@idFRS 3
are recognized at their current value on the agmqnsdate.

Goodwill arising from the purchase is recognizegasntangible asset and is initially measuredost,c
corresponding to that portion of the acquisitioic@mpaid by the Group exceeding the carrying amoéint
the recognized assets, liabilities and identifiaddatingent liabilities.

The positive difference between assets and lisdslineasured at fair value at the acquisition datkthe
price paid is recognized in the consolidated inceta¢ement as non-recurring income. It may be stibje
to further adjustment within twelve months from ttege of acquisition.

Equity attributable to non-controlling interestsndae measured at fair value or in proportion toribe
assets recognized for the acquired company, aadhaisition date. The measurement method is chosen
based on type of transaction.

Non-controlling interests, investments in inactsugbsidiaries and investments in subsidiaries ofllsma

value are measured using the cost at the subseriptethod, reflecting any impairment losses.
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Investments

Associates

Associates are those over which the Group can meesignificant influence through participation in
decisions regarding financial and operating padiciut holds neither control nor joint control.

The financial results, assets and liabilities ciogsates are consolidated using the equity method.

Using this method, investments in associates aegrezed in the statement of financial positiorcasdt,
adjusted for changes subsequent to the acquisifitine net assets of associates, net of any impairm
losses on individual investments. Any losses exiogetthe Group share therein are not recognizeessnl
the Group has a commitment relating to loss cowerdgpe excess of acquisition cost over the Group
share of carrying amount of assets, liabilities mlehtifiable contingent liabilities of the assdeiat the
acquisition date is recognized as goodwill. Evesgiry goodwill is tested for impairment.

With regard to transactions between Group compasmesassociates, unrealized profits and losses are
eliminated in a proportion equal to the Group irtemnt in the associate, except when unrealizec$oss

are evidence of an impairment loss on the busiaegsired.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of a subsigi@orresponds to that portion of the acquisitioite

paid by the Group that exceeds the Group sharkeofair value of the assets, liabilities and idabie
contingent liabilities of a subsidiary, at the aisition date. Goodwill is recognized as an intafgydsset
with an indefinite life and is not amortized. It isviewed annually to identify any impairment loss.
Impairment losses are recognized directly in prafid loss and are not subsequently reversed. In the
absence of a standard or a specific interpretatiothe subject, in the case of the acquisition aba-
controlling interest in an existing subsidiary, top31 December 2009, the difference between theafos
acquisition and the carrying amount of the assaddiabilities acquired is recognized as goodwill.

Goodwill arising from acquisitions carried out befaransition to IFRS is maintained at the amounts

derived from the application of Italian GAAP at tlkate and is tested for impairment from that date.

Translation of foreign currency items

Transactions in foreign currency are initially rgnzed at the exchange rate in force on the traiosac
date. Monetary assets and liabilities denominatddreign currency are translated at the exchaatgein
force at year end.

Non-monetary items valued at historical cost irefgn currency are converted at the exchange rétegru
on the transaction date. Non-monetary items reeegnat fair value in foreign currency are convegdéed

the exchange rate ruling on the fair value measentiate.
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If a designated fair value hedging relationship basn set up between a hedging instrument and an
element being hedged in foreign currency, the atiog treatment applied is the same as for hedages,

explained under “Derivative financial instruments”.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedgnm an accruals basis, specifically:

* Revenue is recognized based on the probability witich the company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amount lmameliably determined. Revenue is stated net of
any adjustments.

« Advertising revenue is recognized at the moment ddeertisement is broadcast or published.
Revenue from publications is recognized at the ddt@ublication, net of reasonably estimated
returns.

* Revenue from the sale of magazine subscriptionsed®gnized on the basis of the magazines
published and distributed during the period.

e Pre-publication and launch costs are recognizguldfit and loss when incurred.

* Interest income and expense are recognized oncanads basis.

» Dividends are recognized when the right of the shalders to receive the payment is established.

* The recharges of costs incurred on behalf of thadies are recognized as a reduction in the cost t
which they relate.

Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuardtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based upon taxable income foyghe Taxable income differs from the results show

in the income statement as it excludes both pesitimd negative entries which would be taxable or

deductible in other tax years and excludes comgsnehnich are not taxable or deductible at any time.

Current taxes are calculated using the rates oefat the reporting date.

Cairo Communication and its subsidiaries Cairo &eitS.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei Sin

liquidation, Cairo Publishing S.r.l., La7 S.p.A.dafairo Network S.r.l. participate in the natiotax

consolidation scheme of UT Communications S.p#adcordance with art. 117/129 of the Consolidated

Income Tax Act.

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econaspects pertaining to the sums deposited or reteive

against the advantages or disadvantages arising tfie national tax consolidation scheme, also alow

for any increased costs or decreased benefits redtuby the companies, by participating in this

procedure, to be repaid by the parent.
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UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdmtdrmines a single taxable base for the group of
companies that participate in the national tax obdation scheme, which thereby benefits from the
ability of offsetting taxable profits against takakbosses in one tax return.

Each company that participates in the nationaktmsolidation scheme transfers its taxable prafibss

to the tax parent. For any such taxable profit reygb by a subsidiary, UT Communications S.p.A.
recognizes receivables equal to the IRES payaldavé&sely, for any such taxable loss, reported by a
subsidiary, UT Communications recognize a payalgeakto IRES due on the loss that has been
contractually transferred at Group level.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized &ll taxable temporary differences, while defdrtax
assets are recognized to the extent of the protyatiiat there will be future taxable profits whig¥ill
allow for the utilization of the deductible tempoyalifferences. Deferred taxes are calculated erbtsis

of the tax rates that are foreseen will be in foatehe moment of realization of the asset or ef th
liability, based on tax legislation in force at tteporting date. Where relevant, the effects of @mnges

in tax rate or tax legislation are disclosed intoges. Deferred tax assets and liabilities arevatat their

net value when there is a legal right to offsetrenir tax liabilities against tax receivable assetd when

taxes relate to the same taxation authority.

Post-employment benefits

Post-employment benefits, mandatory for all Ital@mpanies under art. 2120 of the Civil Code, are
deferred remuneration and are directly relatedhéoemployee’s length of service in the company, tand
the employee’s actual remuneration received duhieg period of service.

For Italian companies with at least 50 employeestemployment benefits take the form of a defined
benefit plan, solely for the amounts accrued priod January 2007 (and not yet paid at the remprtin
date), whereas subsequent to such date, they evgniged as a defined contribution plan. For Italia
companies with less than 50 employees, post-emm@oyrnenefits are considered as a defined benefit
plan. All defined benefit plans are discounted. Tscounting process, based on demographic and
financial assumptions, is performed by independeantiaries. Following the Amendment to IAS 19 -
Employee Benefitghe recognition of expenses related to work paréal and net financial charges are
recognized in the income statement, while the reitiogp of actuarial gains and losses arising froe tte-

measurement of liabilities and assets are recodiizthe statement of comprehensive income.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets
Costs, including ancillary costs incurred for tlegjaisition of resources with no physical substamace,

recognized under intangible assets when the captastifiable and the asset is clearly identifiahel
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controlled by the Group, and where the use of wmetawill generate probable future benefits to the
Group. These are valued at their acquisition odpetion cost, including related costs — to the mixte
which they are considered to have a finite lifend ghey are amortized to reflect their remainingfuk
economic lives. The amortization periods of intétgiassets of various types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and sin8lao 5 years for application software licenses

rights

Other:

Software 3 to 5 years

Publication titles 20 years

Television rights Based on their availability period

Publication titles are amortized over a period @fy2ars from the date of their acquisition basedheir
remaining useful lives. This amortization periodrégularly reviewed to take account of the finahcia
performance of the subsidiaries that own the title.

Registration rights (with a duration of more thahrhonths) for the broadcasting of films, seriespso
cartoons, classical concerts, short films, andlittee including ancillary charges (dubbing, editingd
materials), and contributions to productions puseldaunder license agreements, are carried undelidme
rights" and amortized on an annual straight-linsidahroughout the contractual term of the rights,
from the year they are available and ready for ligle rights have used up their airing time, religss

of the amortization already charged, the residaadunt is fully charged to the income statementim t
period of the last airing.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationenid applied are reviewed on a regular basis aretevh
change is deemed necessary, the amortization satestated in accordance with the “prospective”
method.

Assets under development include the costs incufoedthe acquisition or internal production of
intangible assets, to which title has not beeryfatiquired or for projects to be completed. Asseider
development continue to be accounted for in tieisitip to the time of their economic use, when trey
reclassified under the relevant items of intangédsisets and amortized.

Financial expenses are capitalized in the carrgngunt of the intangible assets acquired, where a

significant period of time is needed before they @ady to be used.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recogm#ezh their cost can be reliably determined and when
related future economic benefits can be enjoyethéyGroup.

They are recognized at acquisition price or pradactost, including directly associated expenses an

costs, plus the share of indirect costs which @rebsonably attributed to the asset.
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These assets are systematically depreciated amigldgtline basis each year at rates consistett thi

remaining useful life of the asset. Depreciatidesapplied are as follows

Property 3%
General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and equipment 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%

Land is not depreciated.

The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced by difg their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entryst af new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationenid applied are reviewed on a regular basis aretevh
change is deemed necessary, the amortization satestated in accordance with the “prospective”
method.

The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewadially and if incremental maintenance or otherkwor
has been carried out which changes the remainiefuluife of the investment, these are adjusted
accordingly.

Incremental and maintenance costs producing afiigni and tangible increase in the productive
capacity or security of assets, or lengthening tteehaining useful life, are capitalized and redogd as

an increase in the carrying amount of the asselin@ry maintenance costs are taken directly toitpaofl
loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE edpattis of the cost incurred. The depreciatiorogeri

corresponds to the lower of the remaining usefeldf the asset and the term of the contract.

Impairment of assets

At least once a year, the Group reviews the reetiy of the intangible assets with an indefiniseful
life, of intangible assets under development, @ndwestments and publication titles, and whendhkere
are potential indicators of an impairment loss ®ERand intangible assets with a finite useful life,
order to determine whether such assets may haferedifan impairment loss. When such indications are
present, the carrying amount of the asset is retidcereflect recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of an asset is the greater of its fair védge costs to sell, and its value in use. Thevigine of a
listed investment is determined according to itgketprice at the reporting date, in case the Stock
Market price is considered to represent the effectialue of the investment. In the absence of marke

values, estimates and valuation methods are applsdd on data which is in any case evident on the
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market. To determine an asset’s value in use, tioeiiscalculates the present value of future estithat
cash flows, inclusive of tax, by applying a pre-tdiscount rate which reflects the current market
valuation, including the time value of money and $ipecific risks inherent to the asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss on tladue of an asset no longer applies or is redubed,
carrying amount of the asset is increased up tod¢ineestimated recoverable amount, and may noteexce

the amount which would have been determined hadhpairment loss been recognized.

Current assets and liabilities

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of the pseeloa production cost, including all directly ditriable
expenses, net of discounts and allowances, cadcllasing the weighted average cost method, and
estimated realizable value. Estimated realizablaeveakes into account any production and direlgssa
costs. Inventories are adjusted for obsolete ao# shoving items through a specific write-down

provision.

Receivables

Trade and other current assets are recognize@iaestimated realizable value.

Financial assets

They are initially recognized at fair value, whibhsically corresponds to consideration paid anectir
expenses associated with their acquisition. Firrdr&ssets acquired and sold are recognized at their
trading date, when the Group intends to acquiretisete assets.

At the subsequent reporting dates, the financisétasthat the Company has the intention and tHityabi
to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity investmenisg recognized at amortized cost, net of any immpett
losses, to reflect write-downs, if any.

Investments other than those held to maturity Eesdied as held for trading or available for sahel are
measured at the end of each reporting period atfdievalue. When financial assets are held fading,
gains and losses arising from fair value changesenognized in profit and loss. In the case oflabke-
for-sale financial assets, gains and losses arfsomg fair value changes are recognized in comprsive
income. When available-for-sale financial asseés smld, redeemed or transferred, cumulative gains o
losses previously recognized in comprehensive ircamst be reclassified from equity to profit/ (Jpss
for the year. This reserve is also used if alignmerfair value results in subsequent impairmenthef
asset until the reserve is used up. Any additidoss exceeding the reserve, should it result in an

impairment loss, is taken to profit and loss.
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Regarding measurement of available-for-sale asgwsgirectors have chosen as impairment indicators

the decline in fair value below cost of over 50%far a period exceeding 24 months.

Cash and cash equivalents

This item comprises cash, bank current accountsdapdsits on demand, and other short-term highly
liquid financial investments which are easily cortide to cash and not subject to the risk of digant
value changes.

Cash and cash equivalents are recognized at thigiinal amount.

Borrowings, bank loans and overdrafts

Borrowings, interest-bearing bank loans and bardedrafts are recognized based on the amount cashed
net of transaction costs, and subsequently measatreanortized cost using the current interest rate
method.

Trade payables

These are recognized at their nominal amount.

Equity
Treasury shares
Treasury shares are measured at historical costi@ecognized as a reduction in equity. The tesul

the subsequent sale of treasury shares is recaldicesctly as a change in equity.

Dividends paid
Dividends payable are recognized as a change iityéguhe year they are approved by the Sharehslde
Meeting or by the Board of Directors in the evehto interim dividend, pursuant to art. 2433 bidhe

[talian Civil Code.

Provisions for risk and charges

Provisions for risk and charges are recognized whenGroup has a legal or constructive obligation
resulting from a past event and for which a prolitgbéxists for the fulfillment of that obligationThe
provisions reflect the best estimate of costs basehformation currently available in order toffilithe

obligation at the reporting date, and are discalimteen the effect is significant.
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Hedging transactions, qualified for accounting msgs as "Financial assets held for trading”, cover

Derivative financial instruments

exchange rate risks on foreign currency payableswérd currency purchases coinciding with the
maturity of contractual payments).
The initial valuation of derivatives is performedfair value at the date of initial recognition.iFaalue

changes are recognized in profit or loss.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements anchtites thereto, in application of the IFRS, recuiteat

the Company carry out certain estimates and assomspivhich affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosures about assets and cgetin liabilities at the reporting date. Estimates a
assumptions used are based on experience andanfattors considered significant. Actual resutisld
differ from these estimates. Estimates mainly estatprovisions for risks relating to receivablelssolete
inventory, publishing returns, investment measurgsjeamortization, depreciation, impairment of &gse
taxation, provisions for risk and charges, and iogieint liabilities.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed reguladytremeffects of each variation therein are recaghi

in the profit and loss in the period in which tratimate was revised. The effects of such revisames
reflected in the periods on which they have effeet,both in the current period, and in futureipes, if
relevant. In this context, the persisting uncettafactors in the short and medium economic termictv
make it hard to predict a return to normal marlaiditions, have led to the need to make assumptions
regarding future performance which are influencgdsignificant uncertainty, and the possibility of
achieving results different from those estimatednca be excluded for the next year, and which could
therefore require adjustments to the carrying amoewen significant, although these are obviously
neither currently quantifiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertaintiesttee allowance for impairment, inventory write-
downs, non-current assets (intangible assets awestiments), deferred tax assets, post-employment
benefits and the provisions for risk and charges.

A summary follows of all critical measurement preses used and key assumptions made by management
regarding the future in the process of applyingoaating policies and that could have a significeififiect

on the amounts recognized in the consolidated Giarstatements and for which there is a risk that
significant adjustments to the carrying amount sdeds and liabilities could arise in the next fitiah

period.

Allowance for doubtful accounts
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The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects mansgd’s estimate regarding the losses on the partfol
of receivables from end customers. The allowanestisnated based on the losses expected by thepGrou
according to past experience for similar receivabderrrent and past due dates, losses and reegigityy
from the careful monitoring of receivable managetmmmd from projections on market and economic
conditions.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short amedlium economic term, along with the resultinglitre
squeeze, could result in further deteriorationhaf financial conditions of Group debtors compared t

deterioration already considered in the quantificaof the recognized allowance for impairment.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extemthioh it is considered probable that future tagabl
income will be generated to allow the utilizatidhdeductible temporary differences. The realizaklkie

of deferred tax assets is periodically reviewedoadiog to the future taxable income foreseen in the

Group’s most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets (includimadwill)

Non-current assets include property, plant and mgent, intangible assets (including goodwill),
investments and other financial assets. Managepwiudically reviews the carrying amount of the hon
current assets held and used, and those of assdt$oh sale, as and when circumstances requirk suc
revision. This is performed by the comparison @& darrying amount of the asset and the greatdneof t
fair value, less costs to sell, and value in useé: ¥Value is determined according to market priteshe
absence of market value, estimates and valuatiaieln@re used based on data available on the market
Value in use is determined based on the estimagxmdcted cash flows from the use or sale of teetas
and is discounted using appropriate discount ratésen the carrying amount of a non-current assgt ha
suffered an impairment loss, the Group recognizegngpairment loss equal to the positive difference
between the greater of carrying amount of the amsdtits recoverable amount from its use or sale, a
determined according to the Group’s most recemtyla

For the preparation of the consolidated finandialesnents at 31 December 2015, and in particultrén
performance of impairment tests on intangible ass@d property, plant and equipment, the different
segments of the Group have taken into accountxtpected 2016 performance, whose assumptions and
results are in line with the information disclogedhe section onsignificant events after the reporting
period and business outlgbln the Directors’ Report. In addition, for thelmequent years of the plan,
necessary adjustments have been cautiously matd&doaccount of the deep market changes resulting
from the current economic and financial crisis. $ignificant impairment was required based on such

figures in the plan.
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Provisions for risks and charges
The provisions for risk and charges relating totoment liabilities of a legal or fiscal nature anade on
the basis of estimates made by the Directors, erbétsis of valuations made by the Company’s legdl a

fiscal advisers on the probable charge that caredésonably expected to fulfill the obligation.

Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whitle Cairo Communication Group is exposed, as well
as the policies put in place by Management forrtiginagement, are explained in Note 35. Reference i

made to the Directors’ Report for operational andihess risks.
1. Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios effective as from 1 January 2015

The following accounting standards, amendments elpretations, revised also following
IASB’s yearly improvement process, were appliedtifar first time starting from 1 January 2015:
IFRIC 21 — Levies The interpretation, issued by the IASB in May 20provides guidance on
when to recognize liabilities for a levy imposed éygovernment, with the exception of those
governed by other standards (i.e. IAS 12 — Incoamg. 1AS 37 establishes the recognition criteria
of liabilities, one of which is the existence opeesent obligation on an entity resulting from past
events (obligating event). The interpretation diesi that the obligating event that gives rise to
liability for payment of a levy is explained by thelevant legislation that gives rise to its paytnen
IFRIC 21 is applicable according to the IASB fomaal periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014, while, according to the EU, for annual pesidgbginning on or after 17 June 2014. The
application of the interpretation from 1 Januardl2Mad no effects on the figures of the Annual
Report at 31 December 2015.

Improvements to IFRS: 2011-2013 Cycl@n 12 December 2013, the IASB publishekhtual
Improvements to IFRS2011-2013 Cycle which acknowledges the amendments to the stasdar
as part of their annual improvement process. Adogrdo the IASB, the amendments became
effective for financial statements that begin orafter 1 July 2014. According to the EU, entry into
force has been postponed to the financial statesriseginning on or after 1 January 2015. These
amendments are applied prospectively and had eotsfbn the figures of the Annual Report at 31
December 2015.

The main amendments regard:

102



 |FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International FinaatReporting Standards It clarifies that a

first-time adopter, as an alternative to the agpion of a principle currently in force on the date
of the first IFRS financial statements, may optdarly application of a new standard intended
to replace the principle in force. The option ignitted when the new standard allows early
application. The entity is required to apply theneaversion of the standard in all periods
presented in the first IFRS financial statements.

 |FRS 3 Business combinations Fhe amendments aim to clarify the exclusion frame t

application scope of IFRS 3 of all types of joimtaaagements, not only of joint ventures.

* |FRS 13 Fair Value MeasurementiFRS 13, paragraph 5®drtfolio exceptiol in its current

version, restricts to financial assets and liabk#itincluded in the application scope of IAS 39
the possibility of fair value measurement on a basis. The amendment clarifies that the
possibility of fair value measurement on a net daaso applies to contracts within the
application scope of IAS 39, but that do not maetdefinition of financial assets and liabilities
in IAS 32, such as contracts to buy and sell noafftial items that can be settled net in cash.

* 1AS 40 — Investment PropertyThe amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 and IAS 40 raot

mutually exclusive and that, in order to determimeether the purchase of a property falls
within the scope of IFRS 3, it is necessary torrédethe specific indications in IFRS 3; instead,
to determine whether the purchase of such prodeity within the scope of IAS 40, it is

necessary to refer to the specific indicationstis H4O0.

2. Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatioa approved by the EU and applicable

from annual periods after 1 January 2015

Amendments to IAS 19Employee contributions to defined-benefit plandhe amendment, issued
by the IASB in November 2013, introduces simplifioas to account for defined-benefit plans that
provide for contributions by employees or third tpgs. Specifically, the amendments to IAS 19
allow recognition of employee or third-party cobtriions as a reduction of service costs during the
period in which services where rendered, if théofeing conditions are met:

- employee or third-party contributions are formadhpvided for in the terms of the plan;
- the contributions are linked to services rendeaed;

- the amount of the contributions is independenhefriumber of years of service.
In all other cases, the recognition of these cbations will be more complex, as they will be
allocated to each period of the plan through theiaa@l calculation of the relating liabilities.

According to the IASB, the amendments became é¥edor financial statements that began on or
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after 1 July 2014. According to the EU, entry irfftnce has been postponed to the financial
statements beginning on or after 1 February 20h&s@& amendments are applied retrospectively,
but will have no effects on the figures of the AahReport at 31 December 2015.

Improvements to IFRS: 2010-2012 Cycl@n 12 December 2013, the IASB publishHédnual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012 C¥clehich acknowledges the amendments to the stasdss
part of their annual improvement process. Accordmthe IASB, the amendments became effective
for financial statements that began on or aftenly 2014. According to the EU, entry into force has
been postponed to the financial statements begnmin or after 1 February 2015. These
amendments are applied prospectively.

The main amendments regard:

IFRS 2 Share-based paymentsA\mendments have been made to the definitions o$tiivg

condition" and "market condition”, while further fdetions have been added of "performance
condition" and "service condition" (previously inded in the broad definition of "vesting
condition”).

» |FRS 3 Business combination3he amendments clarify that a contingent considerat

classified as an asset or liability should be messat fair value at each balance sheet date,
regardless of whether the contingent consideragoa financial instrument to which IAS 39
applies or a non-financial asset or liability. Ces in fair value are presented in profit/(loss) fo
the year.

* |FRS 8 Operating segment3he amendments require an entity to disclose tfaxters used by

management to identify the entity’s reportable segi®: when operating segments have been
aggregated, including a description of the aggexbabperating segments and economic
indicators considered in determining whether th@serating segments have "similar economic
characteristics"The amendments also clarify that the reconcilrabetween total assets of the
operating segments and the total assets of thiy eéntprovided only in the event that the total
assets of the operating segments are regularlyigeavo the chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM").

* |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurementdmendments have been made to Basis for Conclusions

in order to clarify that short-term receivables gayables are still able to be measured on an
undiscounted basis where the effect of discounsingmaterial.

« |AS 16 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 3@dgible assets ¥he amendments have

eliminated inconsistency in the recognition of analated depreciation where the revaluation
method of a property, plant or equipment or anngiale asset is applied. The new requirements

clarify that the gross carrying amount is adjusted manner consistent with the revaluation of
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the carrying amount of the asset, and that accueudildepreciation is equal to the difference
between gross carrying amount and carrying amdesg,subsequent depreciation.

« 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosuredollowing the amendment to IAS 24, the IASB:

- has extended the definition of "related party" mtitees that provide within the group key
management personnel services (these entities aumlly named "management
companies");

- it has clarified that it is sufficient to provided total amount of the cost charged by the
management company without separately indicatingh etype of benefit that the

management company has paid its employees.

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangement$he amendments, published by the IASB in May
2014 and approved by the EU in November 2015, dewlarification on the accounting of
purchases of interests in a joint operation whaseity constitutes a business. The amendments are
effective prospectively for annual periods begignam or after 1 January 2016; early application is

allowed.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Property, plant aaduipment and Intangible asset§he
amendments, published by the IASB in May 2014 gmgr@/ed by the EU in December 2015, aim
to clarify that depreciation criteria regarding jpecty, plant and equipment, determined in
accordance with revenue are not appropriate, asetrenue generated by an activity that includes
the use of an asset generally reflects factorsrdti@ the consumption of economic benefits that
arise from the asset itself.

The IASB also clarified that revenue is not appiatgrto measure the consumption of the economic
benefits generated by an intangible asset. Thisupnption may, however, be overcome in limited
circumstances. The amendments are effective prigelycfor annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016; early application is allowed.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate financial statemerithie amendments to IAS 27, published in
August 2014 and approved by the EU in December 28l5allow entities to use the equity method
to account for investments in subsidiaries, joiahtures and associates in the separate financial
statements. The amendments will be retrospectaablicable for financial statements beginning on
or after 1 January 2016; early application is addw

Improvements to IFRS: 2012-2014 Cycldén September 2014, the IASB published “Annual
Improvements to IFRSs2012-2014 Cycle”, approved by the EU in Decembel520which

acknowledges the amendments to the standards asfpdeir annual improvement process. The
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amendments are applied to financial periods begioh or after 1 January 2016. Early application
is allowed.
The main amendments regard:

« |FRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and disooptl operations —The amendment

introduces specific guidance to IFRS 5 in caserdityereclassifies an asset (or disposal group)
from held for sale to held-for-distribution (or gizversa), or when recognition of an asset held-
for-distribution ceases.

« 1AS 19 Employee benefit§he amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that high gyaibrporate bonds

used to determine the discount rate of post-empdmyrbenefits must be issued in the same
currency used in the payment of the benefits.

« 1AS 34 Interim financial reporting The amendment clarifies the requirements in thentthat

the disclosures required are presented in theinmténancial report but not in the interim
financial statements. The amendment requires thatdisclosures be incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statemeants wherever they are included within the
interim financial report and that the document ba&ilable to users of the financial statements on
the same terms as the interim financial staterrsmdsat the same time.

e IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosurefhe document introduces additional guidance to

clarify whether a servicing contract constitutesoatinuing involvement in a transferred asset
for the purposes of applying these disclosure requénts to the transferred assets.
Amendment to IAS 1 Disclosure initiativeLhe amendments to IAS 1, published in December 2014
and approved by the EU in December 2015, are appidinancial periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016. Early application is allowed.
The main amendments regard:

* Materiality and aggregationAn entity must not reduce the understandabilityit® financial

statements by obscuring useful information withelgwant information or by aggregating
relevant information that has different charactassor function. Additional subtotals must be
reconciled to the subtotal and totals required.

+ [nformation to be presented in the statement @nfomal position and of comprehensive income:

specific items of profit or loss, other comprehgasincome and the statement of financial

position can be disaggregated. Subtotals must: dmerap of items recognized and measured in
accordance with IFRS, be presented and labelecder ¢o make the components of the subtotal
clear and understandable, and be consistent frommdp® period.

» Statement of other comprehensive income for the ea share of other comprehensive income

of associates and joint ventures accounted forgusie equity method must be presented in
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aggregate form but separately from other compréheriacome, as a single item, based on

whether the items will or will not subsequentlyreelassified to profit or loss.

* Notes — Structuréhe entity is free to decide the order of pred@man the financial statements,

but must consider the effect on the understandgbdind comparability of its financial
statements, emphasizing the most relevant opera@ggnents for the understanding of its

financial performance and financial position.

3. Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios yet to be approved by the EU and

applicable from annual periods after 1 January 2015

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customeihe standard, published by the IASB in May
2014, introduces a general model to determine whetheenwdnd to what extent will revenue be
recognized. The standard replaces the recognititeria set out in IAS 18 RevenuglAS 11 -Work

in progressJFRIC 13 -Customer Loyalty Programmd§&RIC 15 -Agreements for the Construction
of Real Estate]FRIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from Customesisd SIC-31 -Revenue: Barter
Transactions Involving Advertising Services.

IFRS 15 applies to financial periods beginning oratber 1 January 2018, and early application is
allowed. On first-time application, IFRS 15 is apgl retrospectively. Certain simplifications are,
however, applicable ("practical expedients"), adl e a different approach ("cumulative effect
approach”) that avoids the restatement of annuabgle presented in comparative information; in
the latter case, the effects arising from the apfibn of the new standard should be recognized in
the initial equity of the first annual period fohigh IFRS 15 is applied. The Group is still assgsgsi
the potential effects of the application of IFRSdlbthe consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 — Financial instrumentsThe standard, published by the IASB in July 201pessedes IAS
39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurem#fRS 9 introduces new provisions for
the classification and measurement of financiatrimsents, including a new model for expected
losses in the calculation of impairment losses inaritial assets, and new general provisions for
hedge accounting. It also includes provisions fo tecognition and derecognition of financial
instruments in accordance with the current IAS B8e new standard will be applicable from 1
January 2018; early application is allowed. As aggal rule, under IFRS 9, the standard must be
applied prospectively, although certain exceptiargsallowed.

Amendment to IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statemte and IAS 28 Investments in associates
and joint venturesThe amendment issued by the IASB in September Bijidights the changes to
address an inconsistency in dealing with the sat®ntribution of assets between an investor ad it

associate or joint venture. The main consequencthe@fchanges is that a full gain or loss is

107



recognized when a transaction involves a busingss. changes apply prospectively to financial

statements of annual periods beginning on (or Jaftedanuary 2016. The IASB, however, in
December 2015 decided to postpone this date of émio force, as certain inconsistencies were
found with some paragraphs in IAS 28. Following BASdecision, the European Union has blocked
the approval process, awaiting publication of tleevrdocument with the new date of entry into
force.

IFRS 16 — LeasesThe standard, issued by the IASB in January 20dfphgses material changes to
the accounting requirements of leases in the fiahrstatements of the lessee, who is required to
recognize assets and liabilities arising from lsase the balance sheet, introducing a single
accounting model for operating and finance leases.

Specifically, the lessee is required to recogniabilities arising from leases at the present arhoun
of future lease payments. The lessee will alsoeleired to record under assets the rights of use of
the underlying asset at the same amount assigntége toorresponding liabilities. Following initial
recording, the right of use will be amortized ottee term of the lease or over the useful life @& th
asset (if lower). The liability will be graduallyam through payment of the instalments, with
recognition of the corresponding interest. Theiligbis determined by taking account only of the
fixed component of the lease instalments and détioin-based components, if any, not of variable
components. Future payments, thus determined beilliscounted according to the contractual rate
or the lessee's incremental borrowing rate, oveptriod when the lease is deemed non-cancellable.
The IASB has required the standard to be appliefiriancial periods beginning on 1 January 2019.
Early application is allowed for entities who apifRS 15Revenue from contracts with customers
except for special considerations from EFRAG inghacess of endorsement.

Amendment to IAS 12 - Recognition of deferred tagsats for unrealized losse$he amendment,
issued by the IASB in January 2016, clarifies howatcount for deferred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured at fair value.

The amendments will be applied to financial peribgginning on or after 1 January 2017. Early

application is allowed.

The Group will adopt these new standards, amendmand interpretations based on their date of

application, and will assess the potential impé&atswing approval by the European Union.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
Regarding the items of the consolidated incomeestant, following is the analysis of the main iteshs
cost and revenue for the year ended 31 Decembér. 201

The comparative figures refer to the annual finaln@port at 31 December 2014.
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1. Revenue

The following table shows gross operating reveagency discounts and net operating revenue:

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Gross operating revenue 250,603 266,014
Advertising agency discounts (24,021) (25,748)
Net operating revenue 226,582 240,266

Revenue is generated exclusively in Italy and aalyasrs by geographical area is pointless. An amalys
of revenue by business segment is provided in lldte

Gross revenue can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

TV advertising 141,849 155,215
Print media advertising 26,916 27,977
Stadium signage 3,057 2,537

Internet advertising 1,330 1,244

Revenue from concession of programming scheduleespa 1,200 982
Other TV revenue 1,221 2,180
Magazine over-the-counter sales 72,557 73,400
Subscriptions 2,831 2,883
Books and catalogues 971 981

VAT relating to publications (1,432) (1,486)
Other 103 100

Total gross operating revenue 250,603 266,014

As explained more in detail in the Directors’ Retpar 2015:

= it confirmed the excellent circulation results, hwitevenue at Euro 72.6 million versus Euro 73.4
million in 2014,

= Group gross advertising sales from magazines, whedthed Euro 26.1 million, dropped by
approximately 4% versus Euro 27.2 million in 2014;

= gross advertising revenue on La7 and La7d chararatsunted to Euro 140.1 million (Euro 152.9

million in 2014).

*k*k
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“Other revenue and income”, amounting to Euro 9,488usand (Euro 11,927 thousand in 2014),

2. Other revenue and income

consist of revenue from pulp and paper sales, fy8ar income and release of risk provisions alsa as
result of settlement agreements defined duringy#ae, charging of technical advertising costs ahem
items of revenue other than operating revenue.

*k*k

3. Changes in finished goods

The item amounts to Euro 33 thousand (a negative B8 thousand in 2014), arising from the use of
the magazine sales during the ordinary course einkss relating to Cairo Editore S.p.A. and Cairo
Publishing S.r.l.

*k*k

4. Raw materials, consumables and supplies

Raw materials mainly relate to the activities ofrGd&ditore, Cairo Publishing and La7 and include t

main items:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Paper 20,414 21,973
Set design materials 96 160
Equipment and sundry materials 1,166 1,678
Change in inventories of paper, equipment and sumaterials,

TV programmes and the like 188 778
Total raw materials, consumables and supplies 21,864 24,589

The change in inventories, amounting to Euro 188isand, refers to:

- a negative Euro 168 thousand for the change imtavies of in-house TV programmes of La7
S.p.A. or programmes purchased externally andg/dtet aired, rights on films, soaps and the
like and related ancillary costs within one yead gat to be aired;

- Euro 356 thousand for the change in inventoriepager and other consumables of Cairo
Editore S.p.A.

5. Services

As shown in the following chart, this item mainlproprises advertising concessionaire direct costs,

external processing, consultancies and collabaratinainly for bordereau, TV costs, promotion costs,

organization costs and overheads. and can be abhgzfollows:
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Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Direct brokerage costs 13,705 13,874
Technical costs 1,001 857
Administrative costs 5,401 5,384
Consultancies and collaborations 12,619 13,631
External processing 17,231 17,098
Sub-contracted TV programmes 20,502 17,794
Professional and artistic services and other T\sutiimg 9,517 10,510
Shooting, crew, editing, and outdoor TV activities 1,103 1,904
News and sport information services and TV newsiege 1,713 1,994
TV broadcasting services 12,458 11,806
TV artwork 511 523
Outdoor TV links 923 612
Advertising and launch promotion costs 1,041 -
Advertising and promotion 6,040 6,655
Organizational costs and overheads 9,785 11,185
Total services 113,550 113,827

“Advertising and launch costs” refers to the adgary and promotional costs incurred for the new
magazine “Nuovo TV”. Including the pre-publicatiand study phase, these costs totaled approximately
Euro 1,406 thousand.

“Direct brokerage costs” also includes Euro 2,3wusand of Torino Football Club S.p.A., a subsidiar

of U.T. Communications S.p.A., under the advergissoncession agreement with Cairo Pubblicita
S.p.A. as explained in Note 34 to related-partgdeations.

*k*k

6. Use of third-party assets

The item amounts to Euro 20,420 thousand (Eurol22tBousand at 31 December 2014) and mainly
includes costs for journalistic, sport and TV paigme rights, lease payments for property, office

equipment and royalties for copyrights.
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Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Lease payments for property 3,445 3,660
Rental of TV studios 545 660
Rental fees for TV studio equipment 825 1,454
TV programme rights 7,302 8,464
Sport rights 93 209
Journalistic rights 2,958 2,553
Copyrights (SIAE, IMAIE, SCF, AFI) 3,772 3,933
Royalty expense and sundry rights 695 851
Other costs for use of third-party assets 785 1,027
Total costs for use of third-party assets 20,420 22,811
7. Personnel expense
The item can be analyzed as follows:
Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Wages and salaries 44,590 43,613
Social security charges 14,942 15,068
Post-employment benefits 1,200 1,087
Other expense 223 866
Total 60,955 60,634
Kok
8. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaiment losses
This item can be analyzed as follows:
Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Amortization of intangible assets 6,716 3,155
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 502 524
Allowance for impairment 837 1,344
Provisions for risk and charges 162 270
Total amortization, depreciation, provisions and 8,217 5,221

impairment losses
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The increase in “amortization and depreciation’aigibutable to the amortization of television itighh
acquired by La7 effective from 1 May 2013.

Mention should be made that the acquisition of ha@d been accounted for under IFRS 3, applying the
so-called "acquisition method", taking into accotirg future income capacity of La7 at the acquiniti
date.

This approach had resulted in the full write-dovwmon-current assets at the date of acquisitiobadf,
consisting primarily of TV broadcasting rights, aegecific technical equipment, whose value was
deemed unrecoverable in view of the income prospafcta?7 at the acquisition date. It should be dote
that, as a result of impairments made in the aflonaof the purchase price of the investment in La7
S.r.l., in the consolidated financial statementishwespect to the separate financial statementsadf
S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.), lower levels of depi@n of "property, plant and equipment" - Euro1®2
thousand - and amortization of “intangible assetstro 7,004 thousand - were recognized in 2015.

*k*k

9. Other operating costs

The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Deductible and non-deductible taxes during the yea 194 219
Prior-year expenses 536 1,053
Other 942 849
Total other operating costs 1,672 2,121

*%k%k

10. Income / (loss) on investments
In 2015, the figure came to O (a negative Eurocisand in 2014)

*k%k

11. Net financial income

This item refers to financial income totaling Eur®@03 thousand (Euro 2,468 thousand at 31 December
2014), net of financial expense of Euro 311 thodséEuro 639 thousand at 31 December 2014),

analyzed as follows:
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Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Interest income on bank and postal accounts 754 2,452
Other 249 16
Total financial income 1,003 2,468
Bank interest expense (72) (113)
Financial charges from IAS post-employment benefits (196) (352)
Other financial expense (44) (174)
Total financial expense (3112) (639)
Net financial income 692 1,829

Financial income includes interest on fixed-ternpa@ts in current accounts and on treasury bank
accounts used to employ liquidity.

*k%k

12. Income tax

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

IRES for the year (1,776) (2,010)
IRAP for the year 1,000 2,013
Deferred tax income and expenses (264) 970
Total current and deferred income tax (1,040) 973

In accordance with relevant IFRS, the deferredinanme of a number of Cairo Communication Group
companies relates mainly to the accrual of prowigi@rtaining to the year, but having deferred tax
deductibility (allowance for impairment and prowss for risks and charges).

On 30 December 2015, the 2016 Stability Law wadiglied in the State Gazette; the Law changes the
IRES corporate income tax rate, effective from fficial years following the year ending on 31
December 2016. The IRES tax rate will be reducedhfthe current 27.5% to 24%; as a result of the
reduction, all of the items under deferred tax tsse the 2015 financial statements arising after t
2016 financial statements were valuated using twe rate. The adjustment had a negative impact of
Euro 273 thousand on the income statement.

The tax charge for the period considers the beaeBing from the tax loss of La7 S.p.A. (former7La
S.r.l).

The reconciliation of the effective and theoretitzed charge can be analyzed as follows:
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31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Pre-tax profit 10,032 24,789
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%) 2,799 6.817
Tax effects from the consolidation and the purchmage allocation of La7 (2,736) (6,169)
Tax effects of other permanent differences (2,063) (1,688)
IRAP 1,000 2,013
Current and deferred income tax for the year (1,040) 973

For a clearer understanding of the reconciliatibthe effective and theoretical tax charge, IRARB hat
been taken into account as this is not based otagrprofit, and this would generate a distortififpet
between one year and the other. However, the thiealréax charge has been calculated using theotrr
IRES tax rate of 27.5%.

*k*k

13. Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations

This includes the result of Diellesei S.r.l. indidation, which can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Other revenue and income - -

Cost of services Q) (2)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impainnksses - -
EBIT 1) 1)
Net financial income / (expense) - -
Pre-tax profit (1) (1)
Income tax - -
Loss from discontinued operations (1) (1)

With regard to the financial situation of the suisiy in liquidation, cash absorbed by the liquiclat
proceedings of Diellesei in 2015 amounted to Etreh®usand (Euro 2 thousand in 2014).

*k*k

14. Segment reporting

For a clearer understanding of the Group’s econgraiformance, the analysis is focused on the sult
achieved during the year by each business segmbity has been identified, in compliance with IFRS
8 —Operating segmentbased on internal reporting which is regularlgreined by the directors.

The Group is organized in business units, eachrim $tructured around specific products and sesyice
and has five reportable business segments:

- magazine publishing the Group operates as a publisher of magazingsaoks through its

subsidiaries Cairo Editore - which incorporated t&dile Giorgio Mondadori in 2009 and
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supplements “Settimanale DIPIU’ e DIPIU'TV CucingSeellare”, “Settimanale Nuovo”, “F”,

publishes weeklies “Settimanale DIPIU™, “DIPIU" TY “Diva e Donna”, “TV Mia” and

“Settimanale Giallo”, “Nuovo TV” and monthlies “Foven Magazine”, “Natural Style”,
“Bell'ltalia”, “Bell’Europa”, “In Viaggio”, “Airone”, “Gardenia”, “Arte” and “Antiquariato” -
and Cairo Publishing, publisher of books;

- advertising, the segment managed by Cairo Communication aiv@ ®abblicita, which work
together in advertising sales in print media foir€&ditore and Editoriale Genesis (“Prima
Comunicazione”), on TV for La7 and La7d, and Turioadcasting (Cartoon Network,
Boomerang, CNN), on the Internet and for the sdlestadium advertising spaces at the
“Olimpico” football pitch in Turin for Torino FC;

- TV publishing (La7), as mentioned earlier, since 1 May 2013 followimg acquisition of La7
S.r.l., the Group has operated as a TV publishdra@fand La7d broadcasters respectively on
channel 7 and channel 29 on the digital terregptatform;

- network operator (Cairo Network) in 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network took partthie
tender procedure opened by the Ministry of EconoBvelopment for the assignment of
rights to use TV frequencies for digital terredtbeoadcasting systems, submitting its binding
bid and winning the rights to use a lot of frequead“mux") for a period of 20 years. With the
acquisition and realization of the mux, the Caim@®nunication Group will start operations as
a network operator.

- Il Trovatore, which manages its own search enganel provides technological services mainly
within the Group.

No combinations were made for the definition ofaregble business segments
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2015 Maggzine A_d_ver 'I_'V _ Trovatore Network Intra- Total
Publishing tising publishing operator group
(€ thousands) tan Nt(e(t:vsgrcll() unaﬁ\ggated
Gross operating revenue 95,037 168,588 102,098 893 - (116,013) 250,603
Advertising agency discoun - (24,021 - - - - (24,021
Net operating revenue 95,037 144,567 102,098 893 - (116,013) 226,582
Change in inventor 33 - - - - - 33
Other income 1,803 1,151 6,349 2 98 - 9,403
Total revenue 96,873 145,718 108,447 895 98 (118)01 236,018
Production co: (62,640 (136,368 (73,684 (684) (143 116,01 (157,505
Personnel expense (19,615) (8,015) (33,191) (77) 7) (5 - (60,955)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 14,618 1,335 1,572 134 (102) - 17,557
Amortization, depreciation, provisions (1,139) (632) (6,445) - 1) - (8,217)
and impairment losse
EBIT 13,47¢ 702 (4,873 134 (103; - 9,34(
Income (loss) on investme - - - - - - -
Net financial income (16) 73 631 4 - - 692
Pre-tax profit 13,463 776 (4,242) 138 (103) - 10,032
Income tax (4,658) (726) 6,447 (51) 28 - 1,04(
Profit from continuing operations 8,805 50 2,205 87 (75) - 11,072
attributable to the owners of the parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - - - - - 1) 1)
operations
Profit 8,805 50 2,205 87 (75) (1) 11,071
Non-controlling interests - - - 18 - - 18
2014 Maggzipe /_\d_ver v Trovatore Network Intra- Total
Publishing tising publishing operator group
(€ thousands) a0 Nt(a(t:\/\a/l(i)rﬁ() unaﬁlggated
Gross operating reven! 96,70¢ 181,33: 110,91¢ 834 - (123,773 266,01«
Advertising agency discoun - (25,748 - - - (25,748
Net operating revenue 96,708 155,584 110,913 834 - (123,773) 240,266
Change in inventory (28) - - - - (28)
Other income 1,321 919 9,323 62 2 - 11,627
Total revenue 98,001 156,503 120,236 896 2 (123)773 251,865
Production cost (65,098) (144,026) (77,016) (673) 8) ( 123,773 (163,048)
Personnel expense (19,120) (7,251) (34,221) (42) - - (60,634)
Gross operating profit (EBITDA) 13,783 5,226 8,999 181 (6) - 28,183
Amortization, depreciation, provisions (1,261) (1,181) (2,778) - Q) - (5,221)
and impairment losse
EBIT 12,522 4,045 6,221 181 (@] - 22,962
Income / (loss) on investments - 2) - - - - 2
Net financial income 17 390 1,423 1) - - 1,829
Pre-tax profit 12,539 4,433 7,644 180 7 - 24,789
Income tax (4,502) (1,795) 5,385 (61) - - (973)
Profit from continuing operations 8,037 2,638 13,029 119 @) - 23,816
attributable to the owners of the
parent
Profit / (loss) from discontinued - - - - - 1) 1)
operations
Profit 8,037 2,638 13,029 119 (7) @ 23,815
Non-controlling interests - - - 24 - - 24

A client in the publishing segment (the publicatiatistributor) accounts for approximately 74% of ne

consolidated operating revenue.
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Management monitors the operating results of bgsingnits separately in order to decide on the
allocation of resources and the evaluation of tesulransfer prices between business sectors are

established based on market conditions applicaltiansactions with third parties.

Segment statement of financial position figuregcsjrally, total assets for each reportable segnam
not represent amounts regularly provided to thefcbperating decision-maker. This detail, formerly
prescribed also without such condition, is not fed in these explanatory notes in accordance thih
amendment of IFRS 8Gperating segmenteffective as from 1 January 2010.

*k*k

15. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated dividing thenfifed results of the Group by the weighted averafge

outstanding shares, excluding the weighted avesageasury shares. Specifically:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Euro/000:

Profit from continuing operations 11,072 23,816
Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations (1) (1)
Profit for the year 11,071 23,815
Weighted average number of shares outstanding 438160 78,343,400
Weighted average number of treasury shares (779) (779)
Weighted average number of shares to calculate eanys per

share 78,342,621 78,342,621
€ thousands

Earnings per share attributable to continuing ajpmra 0.141 0.304
Earnings / (loss) per share attributable to disoaet operations (0.000) (0.000)
Net earnings per share 0.141 0.304

Diluted earnings per share are not calculateder® thre no shares with a potential dilutive effect.
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NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Asset and liabilities by category are analyzedmfollowing notes.

16. Property, plant and equipment

The movements in PPE can be analyzed as follows:

Description Property Plant and Other Assets under Total
equipment assets  development
Carrying amount at 31/12/2014 1,281 628 1,160 - 3,069
Additions - 170 342 - 512
Amortization/Depreciation (42) (149) (311) - (502)
Carrying amount at 31/12/2015 1,240 649 1,191 - 3,080

In 2015, due to the impairment of tangible assetdarin 2013 in the allocation of the purchase poice
the investment in La7 S.r.l. described in Noteo8ydr depreciation was recognized on "property, tplan

and equipment" in the amount of Euro 2,210 thoug&do 2,794 thousand in 2014).

*k*k

17. Intangible assets

The movements in intangible assets can be anabzéallows:

Description Television Concessions, Goodwill Public Assets Total
rights licenses and ation under
trademarks tittes  developm
ent
Carrying amount at 31/12/2014 8,529 1,128 7,198 1,012 39,004 56,871
Additions 11,455 735 - - (1,427) 10,763
Amortization/Depreciation (5,658) (794) - (264) - (6,716)
Carrying amount at 31/12/2015 14,326 1,069 7,198 748 37,577 60,918

In 2015, due to the impairment of intangible assedsle in 2013 in the allocation of the purchaseepri

of the investment in La7 S.r.l. described_in Notdd8ver depreciation was recognized on “intangible

assets" in the amount of Euro 7,004 thousand (Eb42 thousand in 2014).
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Television rights

This item includes the investments made by La7ASip.registration rights (with a duration of ovE2

months) for the broadcasting of films, series avaps.

Concessions, licenses and trademarks
At 31 December 2015, this item mainly regardedveafe.

Goodwill

This item refers to the excess of the purchaseei@r the percentage attributable to the Groughef
fair value of assets, liabilities and identifialdentingent liabilities of a number of subsidiaregstheir
date of acquisition, net of related accumulatedrémadion at 30 September 2004, as the Group ctwse
adopt the exemption provided under IFRS 1 not tolyafFRS 3 retrospectively to transactions which
took place prior to the date of transition to IFRS.

The movements in this item for each of the casleggimg units (CGU), which the Group has identified

for the business segments in which it operatesjeseribed below:

Cash Generating Unit 31/12/14 Additions Disposals nipairment 31/12/15
losses

Publishing 4,746 - - - 4,746

Advertising 2,289 - - - 2,289

Trovatore 163 - - - 163

Total 7,198 - - - 7,198

At 31 December 2015, goodwill underwent impairmesting as required by IAS 36. This test, carried
out at least annually, was performed at the lef/&éh® cash generating units (CGUSs) to which goodwil
allocated. The realizable value of goodwill wasedeiined by estimating value in use calculated as th
present value of the prospective cash flows frorarafons derived from the most recent company
budgets and three-year plans.

The main assumptions made for the calculation bfeven use are summarized as follows:

Cash Generating Unit Growth rate of Discount rate Growth rate of Discount rate
terminal values: 2015 terminal values: 2014
2015 2014
Publishing 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Advertising 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
Trovatore 1% 10.5% 1% 10.5%
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No evidence arose to indicate that the activitimsied out by the CGUs subject to impairment testin
could have suffered an impairment loss. Furtherie Group has developed a sensitivity analysis of
the realizable values allocated to the three CQilmguthe discount rate as the key parameter, gdtse

show that the recoverability of goodwill is not fiaularly sensitive to changes in this parameter.

No significant evidence of potential impairmentsadrom this analysis.

The estimates and the budget figures used for ¢bermination of the recoverable amount of goodwill

have been determined by Group management on tiedidmth past experience and on the expectations
of the development in the markets in which the @rayerates, also taking account of the specific
general economic environment. Management beliekias the use of these estimates will have no
significant impact in determining the carrying ambwf goodwill, especially in the publishing and

advertising sector, of which is already coveredhgyexpected cash flows of 2016.

Titles

Titles include the following:

Description 31/12/14 Additions Amortization 31/12/%

Bell'ltalia 648 - (170) 478
Bell'Europa 364 - (94) 270
Total 1,012 - (264) 748

The time period deemed appropriate for the valunadiothe remaining useful life of these titles haen
set at 20 years. The carrying amount of “Bell’B&land “Bell’Europa” underwent impairment testimgy t
evaluate any impairment loss on realizable valaajedined by their value in use being cash flonseba
on the expected results of the titles. No evidesicenpairment was identified. The main assumptions

used in the calculation of value in use are theesasillustrated in the previous paragraph.

Assets under development

“Assets under development”, amounting to Euro 3iiillion, refers primarily to the rights to use TV

frequencies for digital terrestrial broadcastingteyns (Euro 31.6 million, in addition to ancillary
charges of Euro 3.4 million, which include finarlatharges of Euro 0.7 million), acquired in 2014 by
the Group company Cairo Network S.r.l. These righttsr a period of 20 years — refer to the 2-SFN

multiplex on channels 25 and 59 (“mux”).

The amortization of the rights to use the frequesdaiill start once the mux will be ready for usbeT

network plan is expected to be completed in 2016cofdingly, on 31 December 2015, the
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abovementioned rights underwent impairment testinsgequired by IAS 36 for intangible assets not
subject to amortization. The results did not shoyw @ases of potential impairment.
“Assets under development” also includes TV rigbtsEuro 2.6 million to be exploited in future ysar

* %

18. Investments and non-current assets

The movement in this item can be analyzed as faiow

Description Carrying Change in scope  Write-ups Impairment  Carrying amount
(€ thousands) amount at  of consolidation losses at 31/12/2015
31/12/2014
Auditel S.r.l. 46 - - - 46
Other 16 - - - 16
Total other investments 62 - - - 62

Other non-current financial assets amounted to H.8d40 thousand at 31 December 2015 (Euro 1,113
thousand at 31 December 2014), Euro 1,344 thousénahich refer to the fair value of financial
instruments to hedge exchange risks (forward cayr@archases coinciding with schedules of contictu

payments due) used by La7 S.p.A. (former La7 Btolpurchase TV rights from film companies.

The residual amount of other financial assets abEA96 thousand (Euro 370 thousand at 31 December
2014) refers mainly to loans to La7 S.p.A. (forrha? S.r.l.) employees.

*k*k

19. Deferred tax assets
These refer to the recognition, in the financiataments at 31 December 2015, of deferred taxsaseet

the temporary differences between the carrying ansoof recognized assets and liabilities and ttaeir

amounts, as follows.
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31/12/2015 31/12/2014

Amount of Taxeffect Amountof Tax effect

temporary temporary

differences differences
Deferred tax assets
Taxed allowance for impairment 7,449 1,870 6,893 1,896
Tax losses carried forward - -
Taxed and returned provisions for risk and charges 2,035 566 996 310
Taxed provision for inventory write-down 518 146 518 163
Directors’ fees 586 159 633 174
Consolidation entries for write-off of intra-grotyade relations 1,569 493 1,830 575
Different accounting treatment of post-employmesmdfits 2,408 592 2,276 626
Other temporary differences 1,373 402 882 284
Total deferred tax assets 15,938 4,228 14,028 4,028
Deferred tax liabilities
Different accounting treatment of land depreciation (143) (42) (143) (45)
Total deferred tax liabilities (143) (42) (143) (45)
Net deferred tax assets 15,795 4,186 13,885 3,983

On 30 December 2015, the 2016 Stability Law wadiglied in the State Gazette; the Law changes the
IRES corporate income tax rate, effective from fiicial years following the year ending on 31
December 2016. The IRES tax rate will be reducethfthe current 27.5% to 24%; as a result of the
reduction, all of the items under deferred tax tsge the 2015 financial statements arising after t
2016 financial statements were valuated using #we rate. The adjustment had a negative impact of
Euro 273 thousand on the income statement.
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extay éine considered recoverable depending on the
presence of future taxable income in which tempomifferences will be reversed. Management
periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.

.*.*.*
20. Inventories

Inventory movements arise entirely in the publightompanies and can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change

Raw materials, consumables and supplies 2,516 2,873 (357)
Work-in-progress and bordereau 189 171 18
Finished products and books 436 252 184
Total 3,141 3,296 (155)

Inventories are stated net of the provision foremery write-down of Euro 659 thousand (Euro 1,032
thousand at 31 December 2014).

123



« Raw materials

Raw materials relate mainly to paper and are reizedrat the lower of purchase or production cost

and their estimated realizable value, based onehaerformance at year end.

«  Work-in-progress

Work-in-progress comprises purchase or productmtscincurred for publications to be invoiced by

Cairo Editore S.p.A. This item also includes boeder for services yet to be used, available for

future publications, and work in progress on footiing editions.

* Finished products

The item includes:

- Euro 136 thousand (Euro 121 thousand at 31 Dece2tlde}) related to inventories of books of

Cairo Publishing S.r.l., measured at the lowerast @nd estimated realizable value;

- Euro 300 thousand (Euro 131 thousand at 31 Deceffiiet) related to the inventories of La7

S.r.l. of TV programmes produced and awaiting taived at 31 December 2015, and to rights

on films, soaps, cartoons and documentaries, asdjfor a period of less than 12 months, whose

available right has not exhausted and for whicingitime during the next financial year is

available.

*k%k

21. Trade receivables

Trade receivables can be analyzed as follows

Description 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change

Trade receivables 87,735 89,926 (2,191)
Allowance for impairment (9,196) (9,969) 773
Total trade receivables 78,539 79,957 (1,418)

Trade receivables are stated net of the allowancenfipairment that has been determined taking

account of both specific collection risks and aegahrisk of non-collectability based on the ordina

trend of company operations. This allowance alkeganto account the allocation to the Group’s medi

clients, in particular third-party clients, of arpentage of losses on receivables, equal to theeptrge

of revenue allocated, pursuant to advertising spatas contracts signed between the two parties.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date at @dember 2015 versus 31 December 2014 is as

follows:
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31 December 2015 Current Past due Pastdue Past due Past due Total
between 30 between 61 between91 over 180

and 60 days< and 90 days and 180 days days

Trade receivables 74,784 1,640 348 1,680 9,083 87,735
Allowance for impairment (2,165) (374) (558) (400) (5,899) (9,196)
Trade receivables 72,619 1,266 190 1,280 3,184 78,539
31 December 2014 Current Past due Past due Past due Past due Total

between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180
and 60 days and 90 days and 180 days days

Trade receivables 75,369 1,845 674 1,697 10,341 89,926
Allowance for impairment (2,300) (254) (219) (255) (6,942) (9,969)
Trade receivables 73,069 1,591 455 1,442 3,399 79,957

In terms of concentration, the top 10 customersesmt approximately 11% (12% in 2014) of total
advertising sales, while the top 100 customersesaptt approximately 50% (54% in 2014).

The publishing segment presents a limited exposucgedit risk as publishing revenue is substaltial
generated by one sole party — the Group - whilafstribution revenue, the distribution contrachieh
accounts for about 74% of net consolidated opegamenue, provides for an advance payment equal to

a significant percentage of the estimated salesofi magazine.

In 2015, the allowance for impairment increasedhwitcruals of Euro 837 thousand from provisions for

the year. Use over the period, amounting to EuB@@ thousand, resulted in a net decrease of El80 77

thousand.

Trade receivables include due from Torino Footkdllb S.p.A.: Euro 66 thousand to Cairo Pubblicita
for contractual relations as described in Note &% Euro 30 thousand to Cairo Communication for

administrative services provided and for varioudhegged expenses.

*k*k

22. Other receivables and other current assets

The item can be analyzed as follows:
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Description 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
IRAP credit 951 1,267 (316)
Tax receivables 813 1,496 (683)
VAT credit 1,127 1,528 (401)
Total tax assets 2,891 4,291 (1,400)
Prepayments and accrued income 1,506 1,364 142
Advances to suppliers 305 2,054 (1,749)
Other receivables 595 721 (126)
Total other receivables and other current assets 597 8,430 (3,133)
Kook
23. Cash and cash equivalents
The item can be analyzed as follows:
Description 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
Bank accounts 125,745 149,042  (23,297)
Cash 31 19 12
Total cash and cash equivalents 125,776 149,061  (23,285)

The consolidated net financial position at 31 Deoen?015, versus the situation at 31 December 2014,

can be summarized as follows:

Description 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
Cash and cash equivalents 125,776 149,061  (23,285)
Bank loans (20,000) (25,000) 5,000
Total cash and cash equivalents 105,776 124,061  (18,285)

As shown in the consolidated cash flow statemdm,dhange in the net financial position versus 31

December 2014 is mainly due to the distributiomiofdends approved by the Shareholders’ Meeting on

28 April 2015 (0.27 Euro per share, for a totaEofo 21.2 million), and to investments in tangiate

intangible assets, mainly in television rights.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in aamthnd or short-term bank deposits, properly spngadi

the investments, essentially in banking productgh ihe prime objective of maintaining a ready

liquidity of the said investments. The investmerdducts are selected on the basis of their craditg,

their reliability and the quality of services reneig.
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*k%k

24. Equity
At 31 December 2015, consolidated equity was Ea&250 thousand, including profit for the year.

The statement of reconciliation of the Parent’sitycand profit and Group equity and profit is set &

the Directors' Report.

At their Meeting on 28 April 2015, the shareholdapproved the distribution of a dividend of 0.27d&u
per share, inclusive of tax. The dividend, amountio Euro 21.2 million, was distributed with
detachment date on 11 May 2015 (payable on 13 NagR

The share capital at 31 December 2015 was Euro44tB@usand, subscribed and fully paid up,

comprising n. 78,343,400 ordinary shares to whizimominal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws, the shares are texgid, indivisible and freely transferable. The
requirements of representation, legitimizationcualation of the company investment required for
securities traded on regulated markets continuappdy. Each share has the right to a proportiothef
profit which has been approved for distribution amé portion of equity on liquidation and also tiaes
right to vote, without limits other than those asfided by the Law. No securities carrying special
controlling rights have been issued. No finanaigtruments have been issued attributing the right
subscribe to newly-issued shares. No share ineentians are foreseen involving share capital

increases, even on a freely allocated basis.

The reconciliation between the number of sharestantling at 31 December 2015 and those at 31

December 2014 is as follows:

31/12/2014 Purchase of Sale of treasury 31/12/2015

treasury shares shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: treasury shares (779) - - (779)
Ordinary shares outstanding 78,342,621 - - 78,342,621

In 2015, as part of the share buy-back plans, emstrry shares were sold or purchased. At 31 Deegembe
2015, Cairo Communication held a total of n. 7&xsury shares, or 0.001% of the share capitalesubj
to art. 2357-ter of the Italian Civil Code.

*%k%k
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This item reflects the accruals made for all emeésyat the reporting date on the basis of the ¢taaje

25. Post-employment benefits

unit credit method, using actuarial valuations. Thain assumptions used in this valuation are as

follows:

COMPANY Cairo Communication Cairo Pubblicita Cairo Editore LA7

TYPE OF VALUATION POST-EMP. BENEFITS | POST-EMP.BENEFI TS | POST-EMP. BENEFITS POST-EMP. BENEFITS Suppl. indemn ity
DATE OF VALUATION 31/12/2015 31/12/2015 31/12/2015 31/12/2015 31/12/2015
[Mortality table | Sim/f 1998 | Sim/f 1998 | Sim/f 1998 | RG48 | Sim/f 1998 |
[Reduction of mortality table | 20.00% | 20.00% | 20.00% | 0.00% | 20.00% |
Advance request rate EXECUTIVE 1.00% 0.50% 0.50% 3.00%

Advance request rate MANAGER 2.00% 0.50% 2.00% 3.00%

Advance request rate EMPLOYEE 2.00% 0.50% 2.00% 3.00%

Advance request rate JOURNALIST not present not present 2.00% 3.00%

Salary increase rate EXECUTIVE 5.00% 2.50% 0.00% 1.81%

Salary increase rate MANAGER 4.00% 2.50% 0.00% 1.81%

Salary increase rate EMPLOYEE 4.00% 2.50% 0.00% 1.81%

Salary increase rate JOURNALIST not present not present 0.00% 1.81%

Fee increase rate AGENT - - - - 4%

[Future inflation rate | 1.81% | 1.81% | 1.81% | 1.81% | 2.00% |
[Discount rate | 1.81% | 1.81% | 1.81% | 1.81% | 4.00% |
Resignation rate EXECUTIVE 2.00% 0.50% 0.00% <40 4%; 41<x<50 2.5%; above

Resignation rate MANAGER 2.00% 0.50% 5.00% <40 4%; 41<x<50 2.5%; above

Resignation rate EMPLOYEE 7.00% 2.50% 6.50% <40 4%; 41<x<50 2.5%; above

Resignation rate JOURNALIST not present not present 5.00% <40 4%:; 41<x<50 2.5%:; above 0

Resignation rate AGENT - 15%

The composition and movements of this item is bnadtewn as follows:

31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Opening balance 13,398 11,832
Provisions 200 116
Interest expense 196 352
Profit (loss) from actuarial valuations 38 1,376
Utilization/other movements (517) (278)
Closing balance 13,315 13,398

The average headcount over the two years can Iyzadas follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Average

Senior managers 30 24 27

Managers 80 83 81

Employees 414 396 405

Journalists and freelance 249 234 242

Grand total 773 737 755
Kook
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The item includes the non-current portion (Eurondilion) of the bank loan initially of Euro 25 miidin,

26. Non-current financial liabilities

granted by Unicredit S.p.A. in July 2014 to Cair@thork for the purchase of rights to use TV

frequencies, as explained in the Directors' Report.

The loan:

e expires on 31 December 2019. Repayment is madeQimuarterly instalments of Euro 1,250
thousand, starting from 31 March 2015; early repaynis allowed:;

e is secured by a guarantee issued by the parerd Cammunication;

e calls for the payment of an interest rate equalth® 3-month Euribor plus 0.95 basis points
(renegotiated as from July 2015) and certain camg (negative pledges) and commitments
(covenants), typical of these transactions.

Specifically:

e under the financial covenants, to be checked ahnuat Group level (consolidated financial
statements), the debt cover (the net debt/EBITDYahould be less than or equal to 1.75 and the
leverage (the net debt/equity ratio) less thangoaéto 1;

e the commitment covenants on Cairo Network mainlgude, until full repayment of the loan and
subject to the prior consent of the bank, the camemt (i) not to distribute nor approve the
distribution of dividends and/or reserves, (ii) nottake on new financial debt (excluding loans
received by the shareholders and the new debetktlat the sale of receivables for working capital
needs or the issue of new insurance and bank esiradi cover ordinary needs (iii) not to grant
guarantees to third parties in the interest of @roampanies or loans to Group companies, (iv) mot t
dispose of company assets and/or investments, ¢t)tm implement extraordinary corporate
transactions, (vi) not to create or allow the dogabf liens, pledges or mortgages on own assets.

Breach of the commitment and/or financial covenangéy result in termination of the loan agreement,

pursuant to Article 1456 of the ltalian Civil Codearly repayment is provided for in the event of a

change of control of Cairo Network. At 31 DecemBe@t5, the covenants had been met.

*k*k

27. Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risk and charges include:
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Description 31/12/2014 Increases Utilizations 31/12015

Pension and similar provision

1,325 12 (19) 1,318
Provision for publishing returns 391 420 (391) 420
Provision for liquidation 64 - Q) 63
Provisions for future risks and charges
under the purchase price allocation of 18,724 i (818) 17,906
La7 S.r.l.
Provision for other risks and charges 9,838 150 (1,037) 8,951
Grand total 30,342 582 (2,266) 28,658

The item “Provision for other risks and chargeshoanting to Euro 8,951 thousand, mainly includes
provisions for risks and charges of La7 for penditigation with social security institutions, les$
staff and employees. The item also includes fundg$uture expenses set aside to cover the riskngris
from claims for damages originated during the potiden and airing of TV programmes.
The provision for “pension and similar provisionasvaccrued by Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. for the agjent
termination benefits as prescribed by law and emt$; subject to actuarial valuations based on the
assumptions illustrated in Note 25.
The “provision for publishing returns” relates teetoperations of the subsidiary Cairo Publishing.S.
the relating net provisions are deducted from raeegnom book sales.
The provision for "liquidation charges" refers toysions made to cover the liquidation charges of
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation, the relevant premns are recognized in profit/ (loss) from discomed
operations.
Mention should be made that in 2013, in the purelpage allocation of La7 S.r.l., a negative fafue
had been given, setting aside appropriate “pronssifor future risks and charges recognized in the
purchase price allocation of La7 S.r.l.”, to:

a) a number of contracts whose unavoidable costs @ftinge contractual obligations exceed the

economic benefits expected to be received;

b) specific risk situations related to (i) existingparformed contracts and (ii) pending litigation.

28. Current loans and borrowings

The item includes the current portion (Euro 5 mitliof the bank loan of initial Euro 25 million,agted

by Unicredit S.p.A. in July 2014 to Cairo Netwods explained in Note 26 above.

*k*k
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Trade payables amounted to Euro 82,382 thousamteaking by Euro 5,502 thousand versus 31
December 2014, and refer entirely to the curreat.ye

29. Trade payables

Trade payables include Euro 1,231 thousand duehdoatsociate Torino Football Club S.p.A. for

amounts accrued under the advertising concessiutnam signed with Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

*k*k

30. Receivables from and payables to the Parent

Receivables from and payables to the parent of Biré7 thousand and Euro 818 thousand, respectively
refer mainly to the parent UT Communications S.pafdd arise from the national tax consolidation
scheme, under art. 117/129 of the TUIR (Consoliiareome tax act), which Cairo Communication
S.p.A. and its subsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.Aajr€ Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquitian,
Cairo Publishing S.r.l.,, La7 S.p.A. and Cairo Netiw8.r.l. have agreed to participate in.

*k*k

31. Tax liabilities

They include:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change
Withholding taxes on employees 2,140 2,107 33
Withholding taxes on contract workers 472 654 (182)
VAT payables - 1,111 (1,111)
IRAP payables 741 1,564 (823)
Other 207 51 156
Total tax liabilities 3,560 5,487 (1,927)

*k*k

32. Other current liabilities

The item can be analyzed as follows:

Description 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change

Social security charges payables 4,643 4,826 (183)
Advances on subscriptions 1,724 1,777 (53)
Due to personnel (holidays, bonuses, etc.) 10,901 11,510 (391)
Accrued expenses and deferred income 323 768 (445)
Other liabilities 3,231 4,885 (1,654)
Total other current liabilities 20,822 23,766 (2,944)
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Social security charges payables relate entirelth&ocurrent year. The Group normally pays social

security charges and withholding taxes in accordarith legally defined due dates.
Advances relate to the portion of subscription pawyts received from customers to whom magazines
have not yet been issued, as well as prepaymenspéaially commissioned future editions.

*k*k

33. Commitments and risks

The agreements reached in the purchase of the ahi@re capital of La7 S.r.l. also included a rydar
agreement between La7 and Telecom ltalia Media d®rasting S.r.l. (TIMB) for the supply of
transmission capacity that provides, among othieigth the issue by Cairo Communication of a parent
company guarantee to cover the payment obligatimdertaken by La7, for a maximum amount of Euro
6,558 thousand (including VAT) per year.

k&%

As explained in the notes to the consolidated fifgnstatements at 31 December 2014, the contract
signed on 6 March 2013 with Telecom ltalia Mediatfee acquisition of the entire share capital o7 La
provided for:

- the buyer's commitment, for a period of 24 montlesk-up) from the date of finalization of the
acquisition, not to sell, assign, transfer, dispafsim any way, in whole or in part, the investment
in La7, or the business unit owning La7;

- Cairo Communication’s commitment, for a period df fBonths from the date of finalization of
the acquisition, to use the financial resourcesiragi from the contribution received from
Telecom ltalia Media in the exclusive interest dadthe restructuring of La7, and the related
prohibition to engage in certain transactions dpetiin the contract, including of an
extraordinary kind, aimed at depriving La7 of tlesaurces from the contribution to the benefit
of third parties or related parties, or to make mevestments.

Both commitments expired on 30 April 2015.

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network took parttie tender procedure opened by the Ministry of
Economic Development for the assignment of riglisuse TV frequencies for digital terrestrial
broadcasting systems, submitting its binding bid ainning the rights to use a lot of frequencies
(“mux™) for a period of 20 years. In January 20C&jro Network and EI Towers S.p.A. (“EIT”) theregor
entered into the agreements for the realization arfm$equent long-term technical management in full
service mode (hospitality, service and maintenanse,of broadcasting infrastructure, etc.) of thexm

The agreements provide, among other things, for:
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- atransitional phase, which will see the realizatimd start-up of the mux and the initial operatjon

which will run from the date the agreements wegnail to 31 December 2017, and an operational
phase of the mux lasting 17 years (from 2018 ta1203
- the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stag from 1 January 2025;
- guaranteed coverage at full performance of at @4%i of the population, in line with national muxs
with greater coverage;
- consideration to EIT:
0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntina total of Euro 11.5 million for
the full three-year period;
o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountiadgzuro 16.3 million per year.
These amounts include compensation for the avétlabf the transmitters;
- an annual consideration from EIT to Cairo Netwatiarting from 2018, ranging between Euro 0 up
to Euro 4 million, in the event that the availablndwidth on the mux is not fully used by Cairo

Network.

With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbers currently in use (7 for La7 and 29 for La7d)
are those assigned by the Ministry of Economic Dmyeent in 2010, under AGCOM resolution
366/2010/CONS. The Resolution had been challenget@ietenorba and other local broadcasters, with
partial annulment specifically regarding the assignt of numbers 7-8 and 9 by the Council of State
through Ruling 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (AQ) unanimously approved the New
Automatic Numbering Plan for digital terrestrialle@sion (LCN) by Decision 237/13/CONS. The
decision confirmed, for national traditional broasters, the assignment of numbers 0-9 of thelfiostk

of LCN numbering (see p. 39-40 and 44 of AGCOM DBexi no. 237/13/CONS).

Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council ofeStauling (given that it confirmed assignment to
the national traditional broadcasters of numbe®sthe first block of LCN numbering), Telenorbked

an appeal for compliance with ruling n. 4660/12e Hppeal was upheld by the Council of State (ruling
no. 6021 of 16 December 2013), which declared teer Numbering Plan void (pursuant to Resolution
237/2013) for numbers from 8 to 9, and appointespecial commissioner tasked with verifying the
correct assignment of numbers from 8 to 9 withind@9s from the beginning of the proceedings, which
started on 24 February 2014. However, since thigabannulment of the previous Plan initially indkd
number 7, on initiation of the procedure, the splecommissioner - inappropriately in the opiniorLaf7

- also referred to number 7, which instead, undher Ruling, is not subject to verification by the
Commissioner. AGCOM has in the meantime re-extenttesl previous Plan (based on current

assignments), as also suggested in the State Csunting, in order to avoid a regulatory void.
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In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Conwiaiser launched a public consultation on an outline

provision named "Automatic numbering plan of dibitarrestrial free-to-air and pay TV channels,
procedures for allocating numbers to providers afliavisual services authorized to broadcast
audiovisual content using digital terrestrial tealogy and relating conditions of use." Telenorbd, A
Music and AGCOM have challenged the acts adoptedhley Commissioner, lodging enforcement
reviews and claims before the State Council (thartcof compliance), arguing that the Commissioner
had exceeded the requirements of sentence no.cd@21L.3.

Following orders no. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 201d mn27 of 2015, under which the Council of State
has given the Commissioner certain regulationsigohérge the task, the Commissioner adopted a new
outline provision (no. 7 of 2015), accompanied hyeaplanatory report.

With such orders, deeming his task completed, tbmmBissioner stated that Lcn numbers 7, 8 and 9
established by AGCOM in the first plan of 2010 (Blafon no. 366/2010/CONS) should be confirmed.
Specifically, the Commissioner determined thatinaljght of user preferences and habits at the tirhe
the switch-off, numbers 7, 8 and 9 were to be agsldo a national broadcaster; b) in March 201¢ese
national private commercial analogue broadcastatdtaree public channels were in operation (incigdi
La7); ¢) 9 broadcasters had a generalist schethdiding La7).

Telenorba lodged a complaint with the Council cdt8trequesting the annulment of or a declaration of
invalidity and/or ineffectiveness of the Specialn@oissioner’'s Resolution No. 7 of 2015, and relating
annexes (and of any other resolutions adopted byGbmmissioner to the extent that Telenorba is
concerned). All Music also lodged a complaint agathe resolution and the report recently adopted b
the Commissioner.

Through sentence no. 432 of 2016, the Council ateStuled for the fairness of the Commissioner's
provision, specifically on the point where all tangositions - 7, 8, 9 - were to be assigned tmnatj not
local, broadcasters, and confirmed that Telenodsaa local broadcaster, had no entitlement to be
assigned any such positions.

Through concurrent ruling no. 1836 of 2016, thefaiession of the Court of Cassation overturneidgul
no. 6021 of 2013 of the Council of State (whicheaplained, had annulled AGCOM’s 2013 Plan and
had appointed the Commissioner), owing to violatibthe outer limits of administrative jurisdiction

To date, the effects of the Court of Cassationlsiguon AGCOM activities (and the Commissioner’s)
are difficult to predict, especially with regardttee effectiveness of AGCOM resolutions no. 366201
Cons and no. 237/13/Cons.

In any case, in the opinion of La7 and its legalisets, further assessments on number 7 are unligel

be made, nor will the allocation of this numbet & be revoked."
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As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Qoumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia di

Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified somedfings for 2002 and subsequent years (2003, 2004,
2005 and 2006) relating to the application if afiWéT on dealing rights charged to media centres,
which were subsequently included in the final auglitorts, which the Company has challenged.

For the periods 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, theiftiay Tax Commission of Milan has ruled in favour
of the Company’s appeals. The Agenzia delle Entfigddian Tax Authorities) has filed an appeal with
the Regional Tax Commission of Milan against théeeisions. In April 2010, the Regional Tax
Commission of Milan ruled in favour of the Agencyppeal regarding 2002, and in October 2011 also
regarding the years 2003, 2004 and 2005, on quedtie grounds. Cairo Communication has already
appealed to the Court of Cassation against thenjedgjregarding 2002, for which the tax claim amesunt
to Euro 41 thousand in addition to penalties ofcEGA thousand, and the judgment regarding the
subsequent years 2003, 2004 and 2005, for whiclkathelaim totals Euro 247 thousand, in addition to
penalties of Euro 272 thousand and interest.

The Company has filed an appeal for 2006; the didon hearing was held on 23 May 2014 and,
following the ruling filed on 31 March 2015, thedvincial Tax Commission of Milan acknowledged the
Company’s appeal. The Agency has filed an appetil thie Regional Tax Commission of Milan (for
2006, the tax claim is Euro 63 thousand, in additmpenalties of Euro 79 thousand and interest).

In relation to the tax claim contained in theseorép based also on the advice of its tax constgltdhe

Directors believe there are fundamental reasongights to oppose the relevant findings.

In its hearing on 18 October 2010, the Provinciak Tommission of Milan acknowledged the appeal
filed by Cairo Editore S.p.A. regarding the assessmmotice for tax year 2004. The ltalian Tax
Authorities have filed an appeal with the Regioak Commission of Milan against the ruling. In its
hearing on 27 May 2013, the Regional Tax Commissiolilan rejected the Agency’s Appeal. On 16
June 2014, the Agency filed an appeal with the &upr Court, and on 25 July 2014, the Company

notified its response to the counterparty.

Immobiledit S.r.l., the subsidiary merged into ©akditore in 2009, is party to a lawsuit regardang
property purchase. In 2004, the Court of Milanthe first instance, had rejected the adverse arty’
claims, ordering the adverse party to pay damagesettle in separate proceedings, and to repaf leg
expenses. The Court of Appeal has partly reverseduling of first instance, ordering Immobiledit t
pay for the expenses of first and second instamegecting the adverse party’s claim for damageschvh
has appealed to the Court of Cassation againsejbetion. Following Ruling no. 25351/14, the Cooift
Cassation, rejecting all the other grounds of tlannappeal of Italiana Assicurazioni, granted tingt f

ground of appeal concerning compensation for darsa€fered by Italiana Assicurazioni for the fitting
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out of the property covered by the preliminary caat; the Court referred the case to the Courtpiesl

of Milan, in a different formation, which will bealed to review the issue of compensation for daamag
only on the point above; the request for compeosaly Italiana Assicurazioni regarding the plea
granted by the Court of Cassation amounts to ajppeiely Euro 319 thousand, plus interest and
monetary revaluation. With the notice served onM&y 2015, Reale Immobili (as transferee of the
company) and lItaliana Assicurazioni continued peddiegs, following the ruling of the Court of
Cassation, before the Court of Appeal of Milanti#é hearing on 29 October 2015, the Board postponed

the hearing for closing arguments on 14 July 2016.

Guarantees given by third parties to the Cairo Camaation Group amounted to Euro 2,862 thousand
and are attributable to guarantees issued by banks.
It is also noted that:

- The consolidated financial statements at 31 Dece@®&5 do not include any receivables or
payables with a residual term exceeding five years.

- The consolidated financial statements at 31 Decen20d5 reflect the capitalization of
financial charges of Euro 652 thousand (Euro 38fughnd in 2014), entered under assets
under development of intangible assets and regaitie investments made by Cairo Network
Sl

*%k%k

34. Related party transactions

Transactions between the parent and its consotidsubsidiaries, which are its related parties, have
been eliminated from the consolidated financiaiesteents and are therefore not shown in this note.

The Group holds relations with the parent (UT Comioations S.p.A.) and with the latter’s
subsidiaries at conditions deemed normal in thespective relevant markets, taking into account the
nature of services offered. Below is a summary hef statement of financial position and income
statement balances deriving from the transactiomslemin 2015 with these related parties. The
identification and disclosure regarding relatediparwere made in accordance with the IAS 24 Revise
Based on this Standard, related parties were ftsohtas the parents, subsidiaries, associates and
affiliates of the Group, as shown in the list atiaat to this Annual Report (“List of investmentstioé
Group at 31 December 2015”). The Ultimate ParenthefGroup is U.T. Communications S.p.A.

The effects of these relations on the consolidadttement of financial position of the Cairo
Communication Group at 31 December 2015 are aswsl|
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Income and expense Operating Operating Financial Financial
(Euro/000) revenue costs income charges
Parent

UT Communications S.p.A. - - - -
Associates

Torino FC S.p.A. 186 2,436 - -
Total 186 2,436 - -

In 2015, the relations and transactions with theepaU.T. Communications and with its subsidiaries

can be analyzed as follows:

Receivables and financial assets Trade Other Receivables tax Other current
(Euro/000) receivables  receivables and consolidation financial
current assets scheme assets
Parent
UT Communications S.p.A. - 3,167 -
Associates
Torino FC S.p.A. 97 - - -
MP Service S.r.l. - 47 - -
97 47 3,167 -
Payables and financial liabilities Trade payables Other payables Payablestax Other current
(Euro/000) and current consolidation financial
liabilities scheme liabilities
Parent
UT Communications S.p.A. - - 818 -
Associates -
Torino FC S.p.A. 1,285 - - -
Total 1,285 - 818 -

In 2015, transactions with related parties, inahgdivith Group companies, were not considered to be
atypical or unusual, and were part of the ordiretyvities of Group companies. These transactioaiew
carried out on market terms, taking account ofgtheds and services provided.

In 2015, the relations and transactions with thempall.T. Communications and with its subsidiades

be analyzed as follows:

- the concession contract between Cairo Pubblicith &arino FC S.p.A. (a subsidiary of U.T.
Communications) for the sale of advertising spactha Olimpico football pitch and promotional
sponsorship packages. This contract resulted ipdyenent in 2015 of Euro 2,357 thousand to the
concession holder against total revenue of Eur@& fhousand net of agency discounts. Cairo
Pubblicita earned further commissions of Euro #ifand. As part of the advertising contract, Cairo
Pubblicita also purchased football tickets worthr&&d9 thousand and recharged Torino F.C.
pertaining costs of Euro 8 thousand;

- the agreement between Cairo Communication S.p.Al @arino F.C. for the provision of
administrative services such as bookkeeping, whpickiides for an annual consideration of Euro 100

thousand;
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- as already mentioned, Cairo Communication and ltissigiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatioBairo Publishing S.r.l., La7 S.p.A. (former LaT.lS.

and Cairo Network S.r.l. participate in the natioi@x consolidation scheme of UT Communications

S.p.A. The consolidation scheme, which governditiecial aspects of amounts paid or received in
return for the advantages or disadvantages regutimn the tax consolidation, specifically provides
that any greater charges or minor benefits that rmegrue to the Company resulting from
participation in the scheme, be suitably remunerdby the parent. In relation to this, the
consolidated financial statements at 31 Decemb#&b 2tclude receivables from and payables to the
parent UT Communications S.p.A. of Euro 3,108 tlamasand Euro 818 thousand respectively.

In 2015, Studio Magnocavallo e Associati, of whialwyer Antonio Magnocavallo Director of the

Parent, is a partner, and earned fees for profesisieervices provided to companies of the Cairo

Communication Group for approximately Euro 214 gend.

Fees paid to directors in 2015 are analyzed in Nét¢Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory

Auditors’ fees.

During the year, no transactions were carried oitih 'wmembers of the Board of Directors, general

managers and/or with key management personnel, srsnalb the Board of Statutory Auditors, and the

financial reporting manager, further than the feaisl and already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatedy pmansactions, to ensure transparency and

substantial and procedural fairness, made by thep@ay either directly or through its subsidiarias

illustrated in the Directors’ Report in the sectmmthe ‘Report on Corporate governarice

*k*k

35. Risk management

Liquidity risk

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed taidiify risk, in that on one hand, significant
financial resources are held with a net availalsitjve financial position of Euro 105.8 million vidy,

on the other hand, the Group attempts to ensure ahaappropriate ability to generate cash is
maintained, even under the current market condition

An analysis of the company’s equity structure showth liquidity, or the ability to maintain finaradi
stability in the short term, and solidity, or thigilsy to maintain financial stability in the medilong
term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in bankimglycts, with the prime objective of maintaining a
ready liquidity of the said investments. The inwesit products are selected on the basis of thedfitcr
rating, their reliability and the quality of seregrendered.

Currency and interest rate risks
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in that on one hand, the net financial positionveha positive figure, whilst on the other hand

The Cairo Communication Group is not exposed ter@dt rate and currency risk,

operations are carried out exclusively in ltalyd aavenue is generated entirely in the countryraath

costs are incurred in Euro.

The interest rate risk only affects the net yiaddawailable cash.

Movements in the cash flows and the liquidity ob@s companies are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effective efficient management of financial resources.

Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd BOREX risk, the Group limited use of financial

hedging instruments, to hedge currency risk orattrpuisition of TV rights from film studios.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, primarily @lation to its advertising sales activities. Thikrns
however mitigated by the fact that exposure isrithsted across a large number of customers and that
credit monitoring and control procedures are irceldn terms of concentration, the top 10 customers
represent approximately 11% (12% in 2014) of tetdés, whilst the top 100 customers represent 50%
(54% in 2014). These ratios are basically in lin#hgrior years.

The persisting uncertainty factors in the short aredlium term, along with the resulting credit sqece
may of course impact negatively the quality of dradd general payment terms.

The publishing segment, on the other hand, predanteed exposure to credit risk as publishing
revenue is basically generated by one single pathe Group - while for distribution revenue, the
distribution contract provides for an advance payexjual to a highly significant percentage of the
estimated sales of each magazine.

The Group’s maximum theoretical exposure to cresliis at 31 December 2015 is given by the carrying
amount of trade receivables and other recognizeicuassets totaling Euro 83.8 million (88.4 roifii

at 31 December 2014), and by the nominal amounguzfrantees given on third-party debts or
commitments as indicated in Note 33.

The credit risks associated with cash and cashvalgmts, with a maximum theoretical exposure of
Euro 125.8 million (Euro 149.1 million at 31 Decesnl®2014), are considered irrelevant as they are

deposits spread across various banks.

36. Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Audiors’ fees

The following information refers to the 2015 feeaidpto Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Managers and key management personnel, also indsuies, analyzed in detail in the Remuneration

Report, prepared pursuant to art. 123 ter of th&:TU
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Name Position  Term of office Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonuses and Other fees**
date * other
incentives
Urbano R. Cairo Chairman of Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 500 16 510
the Board
Uberto Fornara CEO Jan-Dec 2013/12/2016 240 5 510
Maria Laura Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 20 - -
Cairo
Stefania Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 32 - -
Petruccioli
Roberto Cairo Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 20 - -
Marco Janni Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 28 - -
Antonio Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 34 - -
Magnocavallo
Marco Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 350 5 300
Pompignoli
Roberto Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 34 - -
Rezzonico
Mauro Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 32 - -
Sala
Key management  N/A Jan-Dec 2015 N/A - 15 1,242
personnel
Marco Moroni Chairman Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
Board of 30 - 25
Statutory
Auditors
Mariapia Maspes Standing Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
auditor 20 - 17
Marco Giuliani Standing Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
auditor 20 - -

* Other fees, in addition to fees for the role ofdior (Euro 20 thousand), refer to:

. Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragraiHtalian Civil Code (Euro 480 thousand);

. Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragine3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 220 thousand);
. Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings ofReated Party Committee (Euro 8 thousand);
. Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in megtiof the Remuneration Committee and the ContrdlRisk Committee (Euro 14

thousand);

. Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, pagth 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 330 thousand);

. Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetihtfee Remuneration Committee and Control and Rmkimittee (Euro 14 thousand);
. Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings oRisi and Control Committee and the Related Party@idtee (Euro 12 thousand)

** Other fees refer to:

. Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed for @eakditore (Euro 500 thousand) and other compawiethe Group (Euro 10

thousand).

. Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager pagdyl Cairo Communication (Euro 300 thousand), reenation from the non-
compete agreement (Euro 100 thousand), fees faiutiss performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 10®@ttsand) and other companies of
the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

. Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior manager plyay Cairo Communication (Euro 200 thousand), &k for his duties
performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 90 thousandidaother companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

. Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Gfeegp for a total of Euro 1,010 thousand (comprisingss remuneration as
manager) and variable incentive components amogrttrEuro 232 thousand.

Moreover, under Consob Communication no. DEM/11@#28f 24 February 2011, point 2.3, letters (a)
and (f), it should be noted that:
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there are no agreements in place between the Pardrihe directors for any indemnity in the event
of resignation or unjust dismissal, or in the evitigir employment relationship ceases following a

takeover bid;

there are agreements in place between the PardntUberto Fornara, subject to hon-competition
commitments for 18 months following terminationti$ management relationship with the Parent,
for payment during his relationship of a gross atrfee of Euro 100 thousand. In the event of
termination of employment before payment, as remation for the non-competition agreement, as
of May 2014, of the total sum of Euro 450 thousandhe considered a minimum consideration of
the agreement, the Company will pay the managedifference between such minimum amount and
the amount paid until then as remuneration foratreement.

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardiecuéive directors.

At 31 December 2015, key management personneleofCiro Communication Group was composed

of:

Giuseppe Ferrauto (Director, General Manager anthger of Cairo Editore);
Giuliano Cesari (executive director and General &tgam of Cairo Pubblicitd) and manager of Cairo
Communication;

Marco Ghigliani (CEO, General Manager and manafena).

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiampin place.

37. Transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusial or non-recurring transactions

Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 200BEM/6064296, it should be noted that in 2015
the Cairo Communication Group did not engage in agpical and/or unusual transactions as defined

by the above Communication.

For the Board of Directors

Chairman Urbano R. Cairo
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APPENDIX 1

CAIRO COMMUNICATION GROUP COMPANIES

The following table lists all Cairo Communicatiorrd@p companies, showing the company name,

registered office, quota capital, and shares heltkther directly or indirectly, by the Parent Cairo

Communication S.p.A. and by each subsidiary, thesalidation method.

Company Head  Share capital % Reporting Business Consolidation method
office at 31/12/14: of investment date
Cairo Communication S.p.A. Milan 4,074 31/12 Advertising Full
Cairo Editore S.p.A. Milan 1,043 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation Milan 10 60 31/12 In liguidation Full re assets and
liabilities (*)
La7 S.p.A. (former La 7 S.r.l.) Rome 1,020 100 31/12 TV publishing Full
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. Milan 2,818 100 31/12 Advertising Full
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. Milan 10 100 31/12 Publishing Full
Il Trovatore S.r.l. Milan 25 80 31/12 Internet Full
Cairo Network S.r.l. Milan 5,500 100 31/12 Network operator Full
Edizioni Anabasi S.r.l. Milan 10 99.95 31/12 Publishing Full

(*) the income statement is consolidated on a sifige basis in profit/(loss) from discontinued ci®ns
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APPENDIX

Information pursuant to Article 149-duodecies of Cmsob’s Issuer Regulations

The following summary, prepared pursuant to ar®-fi of Consob’s Issuer Regulations, shows the
fees for the current period for auditing serviced gor non-audit services provided by the Auditnfrir

Euro/000 Services provided by Fees for the year

Audit

Parent - Cairo Communication S.p.A.

KPMG S.p.A. 75
Subsidiaries
- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 35
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 60
- La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) KPMG S.p.A. 75
- Cairo Network S.r.l. KPMG S.p.A. 17
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors
to the Shareholders’ Meeting of Cairo CommunicationS.p.A.,
pursuant to art. 153 of Legislative Decree 58/19%hd to art. 2429
of the Italian Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 153, par. 1, of Legislative Deare&8 of 24 February 1998, and to art.

2429 of the Italian Civil Code, we hereby informuythat during the year ended 31

December 2015, we performed the oversight dutiesgoibed by law (art. 14& seq of

the above-mentioned Legislative Decree), taking itcount the standards of conduct

recommended by the Italian Association of Publiccéumtants and Accounting

Professionals, and the relevant instructions pexvidy CONSOB communications

concerning corporate control and the activitiethefBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The above being stated, these are the resultegirdscribed oversight duties performed

during the year:

we attended the Shareholders’ Meetings and thogbeoBoard of Directors held
during the year, receiving from the Directors, at@dance with their obligations to
report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, unddr 850, par. 1, of Legislative Decree
n. 58/1998, timely and appropriate information ba tverall business performance
and outlook, and the most relevant transactiontgrims of size and nature, made by

the Company and its subsidiaries;

to the extent of our responsibilities, we gatherégdrmation on compliance with the
law and bylaws, and oversaw compliance with thaqipies of proper governance
and appropriateness of the Company’s organizati@alcture, through direct
observation, through information gathered from thanagers of the departments
involved, through regular exchange of informatiothvthe Audit Firm tasked with
the statutory audit of the separate and consolidéteancial statements, and by
attending the meetings of the Control and Risk Cdtem the Related Party
Committee (through the Chairman), and the meeitvitisthe Supervisory Body with

all members of the Board attending;

we oversaw the operation and effectiveness of rikernal control systems and the

adequacy of the administrative-accounting systed) apecifically, its reliability to



properly illustrate operational events;

pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree n. 39RQthich has assigned the Board of
Statutory Auditors the role of "Internal ControldaAudit Committee”, we conducted
oversight duties provided therein on: a) the disate of financial information; b)
effectiveness of the internal control, internal ii@hd risk management systems; c)
the statutory audit of the separate and consoliddieancial statements; d)
independence of the Audit Firm, through direct obaton, information gathered
from the managers of the departments involved, landnalyzing the results of the
work performed by the Audit Firm. In such contex took note of the quarterly
audits performed by the Audit Firm to ensure thataccounts were kept on a regular
basis; we received from the Audit Firm the Reperesscribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, par. 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2010, ad a®lthe “Annual confirmation of
independence”, pursuant to art. 17, par. 9, l¢tafahe above Decree; we analyzed,
again pursuant to art. 17, par. 9, lett. a) ofdheve Decree, the risks regarding the
independence of the Audit Firm and the measuraddpted to constrain such risks;
we controlled the proper operation of the auditeyson Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, yoms also to art. 114, par. 2, of
Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we took note of the preparation of the RemuneraReport, pursuant to art. 12&

of Legislative Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998] smart. 84quater of CONSOB
Regulations 11971/1999I§5uer Regulations), with no particular issues to report;
we controlled the actual implementation of corpergbvernance rules provided by
the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Compaisigsed by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A., as adopted by the Company;

we oversaw compliance of the internal procedureerrel to related-party
transactions with the principles contained in thegiRations approved by CONSOB
through resolution n. 17221 of 12 March 2010 andsequent amendments, and
compliance with the above Regulations, pursuaattto4, par. 6;

we verified compliance with the laws and regulasiom the preparation and layout of
the separate and consolidated financial statemastaell as the documents attached
thereto. Specifically, the separate and consolidatmancial statements are
accompanied by the prescribed statements of cortfosigned by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors and by the Financial Repgrtvlanager, pursuant to art. 81-



ter of CONSOB Regulations n. 11971 of 14 May 1999 asnldsequent amendments
and supplements;

« we verified that the Directors' Report for 2015 @bes with the laws and
regulations, consistent with the resolutions adwbgig the Board of Directors and
with the facts illustrated in the separate and obdated financial statements. The
half-year report and quarterly reports were pulelisin accordance with the law and
regulations currently in force and required no canta from the Board of Statutory
Auditors.

The specific indications to provide with this Refpare listed below, in accordance with
the provisions of CONSOB Communication n. DEM/10@%5%f 6 April 2001 and

subsequent amendments:

1. We gathered information on the transactmm®ajor equity and financial relevance
made during the period, also through subsidiatesgerify that they were made in
compliance with the law and bylaws and that theyeweeither imprudent or such

as to jeopardize the integrity of corporate assets.

We certify, therefore, that to the besbof knowledge, the above transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and keaissues regarding potential or

possible conflicts of interest were carefully asseés

2. The procedures adopted by the Company for cklgtarty transactions are
illustrated in section 12 "Related party transawfoof the "Report on corporate
governance and ownership structure" contained e DRirectors’ Report for the
financial statements and consolidated financialestants for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The characteristics of intra-group andated-party transactions put in place in
2015, the parties involved and the relating finah@ffects are appropriately

presented and explained in a specific sectionemtites to the financial statements
and consolidated financial statements, to whiclkregfce is made. In this regard,
the Board, in the course of its work, did not idignany atypical and/or unusual

transactions made during the year with third ancétated parties.

Pursuant to art. 4, par. 6 of the CONSOB Regulatiapproved by the above

resolution n. 17221/2010 of 12 March 2010 and syibset amendments and
supplements, which governs the decision-making gg®cand the mandatory

information regarding Related-Party Transactiohs (Procedures), we oversaw:



10.

i) compliance of the procedures adopted by the Compudtty the principles
contained in the above regulations and their olzsee,

i) fairness and correspondence of intra-group andeckiaarty transactions with
the interests of the Company.

In our view, the information provided by the &itors in their Report, pursuant to
art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code (Directors’ Ref), regarding atypical and/or
unusual transactions and ordinary transactionsemtite previous point, is to be
considered exhaustive and complete.

KPMG S.p.A., the Audit Firm tasked with perfongistatutory audit, with which
we held regular meetings during the year, todapgil 2016) issued the Reports
under art. 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010tifyeng that the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year érgle December 2015 are drawn
up clearly and give a true and fair view of asse#dilities, financial position,
results of operations and other components of cehgmsive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company and the Graung certifying that the
Directors’ Report and the disclosures under arB-dig par. 4, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998 are consistent with the sepdma#acial statements of the
Company and with the consolidated financial statgmef the Group. These

reports do not contain any issues of note or exgdta comments.

In 2015, the Board received no complaints, pamsto art. 2408 of the Italian Civil
Code.

In 2015, the Board received no complaints froirdtparties.

In 2015, the Company did not assign KPMG S.pdditional non-recurring tasks.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulfjeatsare part of the “network” of
the Audit Firm KPMG S.p.A.

In 2015, the Board issued its opinion as prescripethw on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic respilitiss, as established by the

Board of Directors on the proposal of the RemumamaCommittee.

In 2015, the Board of Directors met five times, tBentrol and Risk Committee
four times and the Board of Statutory Auditors fdimes. The Remuneration

Committee met twice in 2015, while the Related y&ammittee met only once.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Board of Statutory Auditors acquired knowledge oversaw compliance with
the law and bylaws and observance of the principlggoper governance, ensuring
that actions decided and taken by the Directorsptiech with the law and bylaws,
and were made in a perspective of profitabilityd afhat they were neither
imprudent nor reckless, or in potential conflictioferest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetimgsuxh as to jeopardize the

integrity of corporate assets.

With regard to the adequacy of the organizatiotralcture of the Company and of
the Group, the oversight duties of the Board otustey Auditors were performed
by acquiring knowledge of the organizational stmoet through information

gathered from each area, through meetings with nilamagers of the various
departments and with the Audit Firm as part of gular exchange of data and

information.

The Board acquired knowledge and oversaw the adgcurad effectiveness of the
internal control system, pursuant also to art. 19 egislative Decree 39/2010,

through regular meetings with the Director in cleagf the internal control system
and with the internal audit manager, and throughptesence of the Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors at the meetingthef Control and Risk Committee,

the Remuneration Committee, the Related Party Ctt@eniand of all the members
of the Board at the meetings with the Model 2311280Qpervisory Body.

The Board also oversaw the adequacy and reliabditythe administrative-
accounting system to properly illustrate operatiom&ents, through direct
observation, through information received by thenawgers of the departments
involved, by examining company documents and byyaimay the results of the

work performed by the Audit Firm.

The Board controlled the operation of the contggtem over subsidiaries and the
adequacy of the instructions given to the subseiaoy the Company, pursuant to
art. 114, par. 2, of Legislative Decree n. 58/@8pnder for the Group companies to
provide the required information to comply withtetary disclosure obligations.

No exceptions were reported in this regard.

During the regular meetings held by the Board at@ory Auditors with the Audit
Firm, pursuant to art. 150, par. 3, of Legislatbecree n. 58/1998, no relevant

issues emerged that need to be mentioned in tipsrRe



17.

18.

19.

The Board also controlled the actual implementatibnorporate governance rules
provided by the Corporate Governance Code for di€klempanies issued by Borsa

Italiana S.p.A., as adopted by the Company.

With regard to the oversight duties performed asitioeed above, there were no
omissions, reprehensible facts or irregularitiepor@able to the competent
authorities and/or the supervisory boards, or woofhmention in this Report.

Finally, the Board of Statutory Auditors performétd own assessments on
compliance with the rules of law regarding the pregfion of the draft separate
financial statements and consolidated financiakstants of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015, of the relating explanabtatgs and the Directors’
Report attached thereto, either directly, assibtedepartment managers or through
information received from the Audit Firm.

Specifically, it is acknowledged that the separatel consolidated financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. for tharyended 31 December 2015
were prepared in accordance with the “Internatiéii@ancial Reporting Standards”
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stadd Board (IASB) and
approved by the European Union, and in accordanttethe provisions issued in

implementation of art. 9 of Legislative Decree &/2D05.

Based on the foregoing considerations, with redgardhe oversight duties performed

during the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors ha remarks to make, pursuant to art.

153 of Legislative Decree n. 158/1998, to the extéits responsibilities, on the separate

and consolidated financial statements, and on tt@aeatory notes and Directors’

Report, agreeing with the proposal of the BoardwoEctors to allocate profit for the

year, and with the proposal to distribute dividermmtained in the Directors’ Report to

the IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of G@wommunication S.p.A.

Milan, 5 April 2016

Board of Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes



The following pages provide a list of the positi@isdministration and supervision held by

the members of the Board of Statutory Auditorstimeo companies as at the issue date of

the Report (Annex pursuant to art. Igtdnquiedecies of the Issuer Regulations).

ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF CAIR O COMMUNICATION SPA

DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book V, Tle V, Chapters V, VI and VIl of the Italian Civil Code
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Marco Moroni (Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors)
1 Aromatagroup Srl Sole Auditor 31/12/2017
2 Asscom Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
3 Betfair Italia Srl Standing Auditor 30/04/2018
4 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board of Statusuditors 31/12/2016
5 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutargitors 31/12/2016
6 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Chairman of the Board of Stayufarditors 31/12/2015
7 Caseificio del Cigno Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2017
8 Elettrodelta Spa in liquidation Standing Auditor /BA/2017
9 Fratelli Giacomel Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
10 Giacomel Group Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
11 La7 Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors 31/12/2018
12 Locauto Rent Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
13 Locauto Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
14 Ostello Bello Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutonglifors 31/12/2017
15 Publicitas International Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
16 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board of Directors Until revocation
17 SCF Consorzio Fonografici Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
18 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Standing Auditor 31/03/2016
19 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of Statusaditors 31/12/2016
Number of positions held in issuing companies 1
Total number of positions held 19
N Company Name Position Until approval of the financial
statements
Maria Pia Maspes Standing Auditor)
1 Cairo Communication Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
2 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
3 Cairo Editore Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
4 UT Communications Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
5 Torino FC Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
6 La7 Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2018
7 G.B.H Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Alto Partners SGR Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2018
9 lItalholding Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 Eurofly services Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
11 Kelly service Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2017
12 Aliserio Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2017

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

12



N.

Company Name

Position

Until approval of the
financial statements

Marco Giuliani (Standing Auditor)

[

QWO ~NOOOUITRA,WN P

Space 2 Spa

Banca Mediolanum Spa

Mediolanum Gestione Fondi Sgr P.A.
Banca Esperia Spa

2| Rete Gas Spa

Yara Italia Spa

Huntsman P&A Srl

Rothschild Spa

Hotel Splendido Srl

Cairo Communication Spa

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Audito
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor

31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/03/2016
31/12/2016
31/12/2016



eanic

KPMG S.p.A. Telefono +39 02 6763.1
Revisione e organizzazione contabile Telefax  +39 02 67632445

Via Vittor Pisani, 25 e-mail it-fmauditaly@kpmg.it
20124 MILANO Ml PEC kpmgspa@pec.kpmg.it

(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Independent auditors’ report pursuant to articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

Report on the consolidated financial statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the Cairo
Communication Group (the “group”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 December 2015, the income statement and statements of comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows for the year then ended and notes thereto.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The parent’s directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations implementing article 9 of
Legislative decree no. 38/05.

Independent auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
(ISA Italia) promulgated pursuant to article 11.3 of Legislative decree no. 39/10. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Ancona Aosta Bari Bergamo Registro Imprese Milano e
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Cairo Communication Group
Independent auditors’ report
31 December 2015

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the group’s
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards

endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations implementing article 9 of
Legislative decree no. 38/05.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the consistency of the directors’ report and certain information presented
in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure with the consolidated
financial statements

We have performed the procedures required by Standard on Auditing (SA Italia) 720B in order
to express an opinion, as required by the law, on the consistency of the directors’ report and the
information presented in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure required
by article 123-bis.4 of Legislative decree no. 58/98, which are the responsibility of the parent’s
directors, with the consolidated financial statements. In our opinion, the directors’ report and the
information presented in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure referred to
above are consistent with the consolidated financial statements of the Cairo Communication
Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Milan, 5 April 2016

KPMG S.p.A.
(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director of Audit



CERTIFICATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PURSUANT TO

ARTICLE 81 TER OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AND SUBSEQUENT

MODIFICATIONSAND AMENDMENTS

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chaiwhdme Board of Directors, and Marco Pompignoli,
as Financial Reporting Manager of Cairo Communicats.p.A., also in accordance with art. 154 bis,
paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree n. 58idt&bruary 1998, certify:

« the adequacy of the characteristics of the Panedht

« the effective application of administrative anctaunting procedures for the preparation of the5201
consolidated financial statements.

2. We also certify that

2.1 the consolidated financial statements at 3leBber 2015:

a) have been prepared in compliance with Internatidiiahncial Reporting Standards endorsed by
the European Union, pursuant to EEC Regulation 2802 of the European Parliament and
Council, of 19 July 2002,

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkhe Company,

c) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer and the
companies included in the scope of consolidation;

2.2 the Directors’ Report contains a reliable asialyn performance and operating results, as wetina
the position of the Issuer and on the companiekidiecl in the scope of consolidation, together veith

description of the principal risks and uncertaisitie which they are exposed.

Milan, 14 March 2016

For the Board of Directors FinanciaReporting Manager

Chairman

(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (Marco Bmpignoli)
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Income statement for the year ended 31 December 201

Euro/000

Net revenue

Other revenue and income
Services

Use of third-party asse
Personnel expense

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impaintesses
Other operating costs

EBIT

Net financial income

Income (loss) on investments
Pre-tax profit

Tax

Profit from continuing operations

Loss from discontinued operations

Profit for the year

Notes
31 December 2015 31 December 2014
1 106,025,913 116,595,201
2 528,543 350,373
3 (100,853,928) (107,830,984)
3 (711,556 (714,694
4 (3,044,745) (2,989,997)
5 (259,309) (290,445)
3 (81,193) (90,540)
1,603,72! 5,028,91-
6 22,961 364,664
7 7,218,278 7,083,773
8,844,964 12,477,351
8 (734,780) (1,890,829)
8,110,18- 10,586,52
9 (636) (656)
8,109,548 10,585,866

Statement of comprehensive income for the year end&1

December 2015

Profit for the year

31 December 2015

Other non-reclassifiable items of the comprehensimeome statement

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans
Tax effect

Total comprehensive income

31 December 2014

8,109,548 10,585,866
28,005 (135,039)
(7,701 37,13

8,129,852 10,487,962
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Statement of financial position

Euro/000

Assets Notes 31 December 2015 31 December 2014
Property, plant and equipment 10 367,582 457,417
Intangible assets 11 295,678 319,656
Investments 12 23,026,549 23,123,637
Other non-current financial assets 13 8,962,612 1,662,633
Deferred tax assets 14 344,076 424,421
Total non-current assets 32,996,497 25,987,764
Trade receivables 15 72,208 320,475
Receivables from parents 23 949,306 796,941
Receivables from subsidiaries 16 53,226,550 65,474,755
Other receivables and other current assets 17 1,022,321 1,148,087
Cash and cash equivalents 18 9,038,635 25,768,486
Total current assets 64,309,020 93,508,744
Total assets 97,305,517 119,496,508
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2015 31 December 2014

Share capital 19 4,073,857 4,073,857
Share premium reserve 19 30,495,449 41,062,091
Retained earnings 19 416,471 396,167
Other reserves 19 1,056,508 1,056,508
Treasury shares 19 (2,352) (2,352)
Profit for the year 19 8,109,548 10,585,866
Total shareholders’ equity 44,149,481 57,172,137
Post-employment benefits 20 1,287,783 1,220,793
Provisions for risks and charges 21 164,187 264,181
Total non-current liabilities 1,451,970 1,484,974
Trade payables 22 2,147,608 2,147,470
Payables to subsidiaries 24 47,325,890 55,516,346
Tax liabilities 25 338,855 1,291,289
Other current liabilities 26 1,891,713 1,884,292
Total current liabilities 51,704,066 60,839,397
Total liabilities 53,156,036 62,324,371
Total equity and liabilities 97,305,517 119,496,508
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Statement of Cash flows

(Euro/000)

2015

2014

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit

Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses
Impairment losses on investments

Net financial income

Income tax

Change in post-employment benefits

Change in provisions for risks and charges

Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables

TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income tax paid
Financial expense paid

TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(Acquisition) net disposals of PPE and intangible assets
Interest and financial income received

Dividends received

Net increase in other non-current assets

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect
Dividends paid

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C)

NET CASH FLOW OF THE YEAR (A) + (B) + (C)

NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE

160

25,768 35,690
8,110 10,586
259 290
247 201
(7,488) (7,649)
735 1,801

46 213
(100) 73)
1,808 5458
6,376 17,308
(8,183) (4,414)
2 18,352
(1,759) (905)
(48) (141)
(1,805) 17,306
(145) (162)
92 506
13,711 1,039
(7,450) (7,361)
6,208 (5,978)
20 98)
(21,152) (21,152)
(21,132) (21,250)
(16,730) (9,922)
9,039 25,768



Statement of changes in equity

Balance at 31 December 2012

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans
Disposal of treasury shares

Total comprehensive profit for the year
Balance at 31 December 2013

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans
Total comprehensive profit for the year
Balance at 31 December 2014

Allocation of profit

Dividend distribution

Actuarial profit (loss) from defined benefit plans
Total comprehensive profit for the year

Balance at 31 December 2015

4,074 44,154 494 1,057 (1,346) (10,126) 21,062 59,369
21,062 (21,062) 0
(21,031) 10,126 (10,905)
(70) 70 0
39 1,344 1,383
17,991 17,991
4,074 44,154 494 1,057 (2) 0 18,061 67,837
18,061 (18,061) 0
(3,092) (18,060) (21,152)
(98) 98 0
10,488 10,488
4,074 41,062 397 1,057 (2) 0 10,586 57,173
10,586 (10,586) 0
(10,567) (10,585) (21,152)
20 (20) 0
8,130 8,130
4,074 30,495 417 1,057 (2) 0 8,110 44,151
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Income statement pursuant to Consob Resolution nd5519 of 27 July 2006

31 December 2015 Related parties % of total Flecember 2014 Related parties % of total

Euro/000
* *

Net revenue 106,025,913 105,991,134 100.0% 116,595,201 116,562,327 100.0%
Other revenue and income 528,543 236,480 44.7% 350,373 230,804 65.9%
Services (100,853,928) (94,867,559) 94.1% (107,830,984) (101988 94.5%
Use of third-party assets (711,556) (714,694)
Personnel expense (3,044,745) (2,989,997)
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairnie (259,309) (290,445)
Other operating costs (81,193) (90,540)
EBIT 1,603,725 5,028,914
Net financial income 22,961 398 1.7% 364,664 983 0.3%
Income (loss) on investments 7,218,278 7,218,278 100.0% 7,083,773 7,083,773 100.0%
Pre-tax profit 8,844,964 12,477,351
Tax (734,780) (1,890,829)
Profit from continuing operations 8,110,184 10,586,522
Loss from discontinued operations (636) (656)
Profit for the year 8,109,548 10,585,866

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in I28te
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Statement of financial position pursuant to ConsoliResolution no. 15519 of 27 July

2006

Euro/000
Assets 31 December 2015 Related parties % of total 31 December 2014 Related parties % of total
*) )
Property, plant and equipment 367,582 457,417
Intangible assets 295,678 319,656
Investments 23,026,549 23,026,549 100.0% 23,123,637 23,123,637 100.0%
Receivables from subsidiaries - 0
Non-current financial assets 8,962,612 1,662,633
Deferred tax assets 344,076 424421
Total non-current assets 32,996,497 25,987,764
Trade receivables 72,208 30,500 42.2% 320475 303,750 94.8%
Receivables from parents 949,306 949,306 100.0% 796,941 796,941 100.0%
Receivables from subsidiaries 53,226,550 53,226,550 100.0% 65,474,755 65,474,755 100.0%
Other receivables and other current assets 1,022,321 1,148,087
Cash and cash equivalents 9,038,635 25,768,486
Total current assets 64,309,020 93,508,744
Total assets 97,305,517 119,496,508
Equity and liabilities 31 December 2014 31 December 2014
Share capital 4,073,857 4,073,857
Share premium reserve 30,495,449 41,062,091
Retained earnings 416,471 396,167
Other reserves 1,056,508 1,056,508
Treasury shares (2,352) (2,352)
Interim dividend 0 0
Profit for the year 8,109,548 10,585,866
Total shareholders’ equity 44,149,481 57,172,137
Post-employment benefits 1,287,783 1,220,793
Provisions for risks and charges 164,187 128,938 78.5% 264,181 128,602 48.7%
Total non-current liabilities 1,451,970 1,484,974
Trade payables 2,147,608 16,554 0.8% 2,147 470 16,554 0.8%
Payables to subsidiaries 47,325,800 47,325,800 100.0% 55,516,346 55,516,346 100.0%
Tax liabilities 338,855 1,291,289
Other current liabilities 1,891,713 1,884,292
Total current liabilities 51,704,066 60,839,397
Total liabilities 53,156,036 62,324,371
Total equity and liabilities 97,305,517 119,496,508

(*) Related party transactions are analyzed in \28te
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Statement of cash flows pursuant to Consob Resoloti no. 15519 of 27 July 2006

(Euro/000)

31 December 2015 related parties 31 December 2014 related parties
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25,768 35,690
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit 8,110 18,579 10,586 21,940
Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 259 290
Impairment losses on investments 247 247 201 201
Net financial income (7,488) (7,465) (7,649) (7,284)
Income tax 735 1,891
Change in post-employment benefits 46 213
Change in provisions for risks and charges (100) (0) (73) (1)
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 1,808 11,360 5,458 14,856
(Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables 6,376 6,123 17,308 10,791
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables (8,183) (8,190) (4,414) (2,737)
TOTAL CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2 9,293 18,352 22,910
Income tax paid (1,759) (905)
Financial expense paid (48) (141)
TOTAL NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A) (1,805) 9,293 17,306 22,910
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) net disposals of PPE and intangible assets (145) (162)
Interest and financial income received 92 506
Dividends received 13,711 13,711 1,039 1,039
Net increase in other non-current assets (7,450) (7,361)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B) 6,208 13,711 (5,978) 1,039
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Acquisition) disposal of treasury shares 0 0
Re-measurement of defined benefit plans inclusive of tax effect 20 98)
Dividends paid (21,152) (21,152)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C) (21,132) 0 (21,250) 0
CASH FLOW OF THE PERIOD (A)+(B)+(C) (16,730) 23,004 (9,922) 23,949
NET CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CLOSING BALANCE 9,039 25,768
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NOTES TO THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS AT AN D FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Main activities

Cairo Communication S.p.A. is a joint-stock compéisted in the Milan Company Register.

The Cairo Communication Group operates as a pulishmagazines and books (Cairo Editore —
and its division Editoriale Giorgio Mondadori — a@diro Publishing), as a TV publisher (La7), as a
multimedia advertising broker selling advertisiimgg and space on television, in print media and in
stadiums (Cairo Communication and Cairo Pubbliciegg a publisher of electronic content (Il
Trovatore), and as a network operator (Cairo Netv@r.l.).

The registered offices are at 56 Via Tucidide, Mjlaome also to the administrative offices, the
advertising brokerage services and Il Trovatore @aito Network. The publishing business is
managed at Cairo Editore, at 55 Corso Magenta,rMilde publishing business of La7 is managed
mainly in Rome at the registered offices and thestiWlios of La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) at 229
Via della Pineta Sacchetti and 32 Via Novaro, regpely.

The income statement and the statement of finarpmaition are presented in euro, while the
statement of cash flows, the statement of changesquity and the amounts in these notes are
presented in thousands of euro.

As the Parent, Cairo Communication S.p.A. has ptepared the consolidated financial statements

of the Cairo Communication Group at 31 Decembe5201

Basis of preparation

Structure, form and content of the financial staBpta

The separate financial statements of Cairo Commatinit S.p.A. at 31 December 2015 have been

prepared in accordance with IFRS issued by theratmnal Accounting Standard Board (“IASB”)

and endorsed by the European Union, as well asthdtiprovisions arising from art. 9 of Legislative

Decree no. 38/2005. The term IFRS is used to mdathe international accounting standards

(“IAS™), and all the interpretations of the Intetimmal Financial Reporting Interpretations

Committee (“IFRIC"), formerly the Standing Interpaions Committee (“SIC”).

For completeness of information, the following axee are supplied as an integral part of these

Notes:

- Annex 1: List of investments in subsidiaries ansbagtes;

- Annex 2 and 3: Summary figures of the draft finahatatements of subsidiaries at 31
December 2015;

- Annex 4 and 5: Summary figures of the most receatproved financial statements of

subsidiaries.
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The main accounting policies adopted are unchafrged those used for the previous year, and are

shown below.

The separate financial statements are preparedyomg concern basis. The Company believes that
even in the presence of a difficult economic ama@ricial situation, significant uncertainties do not
exist (as defined by paragraphs 25 and 26 of I1A&sljo the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern, also given both the profitabilitytlook of the Company and the Group and of its

financial position.

Financial statements schedules

The income statementis presented by nature, highlighting interim opegtesults and pre-tax

results, and, in order to allow a better measur@rdfnary operating management performance.

Furthermore, cost and revenue components derivioigp fevents or transactions which, by their

nature or size, are considered non-recurring, laeseparately identified in the financial statetaen

and the notes. These transactions also fall unker definition of non-recurring events and

transactions as per Consob Communication No. 654298 July 2006.

The economic effect of discontinued operationshiews in a single line of the income statement

entitled “Profit/loss from discontinued operationsider IFRS 5.

Thestatement of comprehensive incomalso reflects thechanges arising from transactions with

non-owner% separately showing the relevant tax effectst ifta

- profit and loss that could be directly recognibeequity (for instance, actuarial losses from
the measurement of defined benefit plans);

- the effects of the measurement of derivativerimsents hedging future cash flows;

- the effects of the measurement of “availabledale financial asséts

- the effects arising from any change in accounsitagdards.

The statement of comprehensive incomeresents the items relating to the amounts of the

components of other comprehensive income for thimgdy nature and grouped into those which,

in accordance with the provisions of other IAS/IFRS

- will not be subsequently reclassified to proffits§) for the year;

- will be subsequently reclassified to profit (Ip&sr the year, when certain conditions are met.

The statement of financial positionpresents separately assets and liabilities dividedirrent and

non-current, indicating, on two separate lines,s#s intended for sale” and “Liabilities associated

with discontinued operations”, in accordance wWHRE 5. Specifically, an asset or a liability is

classified as current when it satisfies one offtitlewing criteria:

- it is expected to be realized or settled or ieXxpected to be sold or utilized in the normal

operating cycle of the company;
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- it is held principally to be traded;

- it is expected to be realized or settled withtnnionths of the reporting date.

Otherwise, the asset or liability is classifiechas-current.

The statement of cash flowshas been prepared applying the indirect methodhith operating
performance is adjusted to reflect transactiona @on-monetary nature, for whatever deferral or
accrual of previous or future operating receiptgpayments and for revenue or cost components
connected to cash flows arising from investinginaricing activities. Income and expense relating to
medium or long-term financial operations and thasating to hedging instruments and dividends
paid are included in financing activities.

Thestatement of changes in equitghows the variations in equity relating to:

- allocation of profit for the year;

- amounts relating to transactions with ownersdcpase and sale of treasury shares);

and separately income and expense definedlanes arising from transactions with non-owfers
also shown in the statement of comprehensive income

For each significant item detailed in the abovetiomed schedules, reference is made to the
following notes in which relevant information isgpided, with details also on composition and
variations on the previous year.

Furthermore, in order to comply with Consob ResotutNo. 15519 of 27 July 2006 relating to
financial statements schedules, specific additistetement of comprehensive income and statement
of financial position have been prepared, showirgjemal balances or related party transactions

separately for each item.

Revenue and cost recognition

Revenue and cost and income and expense are reedgnmi an accruals basis, specifically:

* Revenue is recognized on the probability with whibe company will enjoy the economic
benefits and in the extent to which the amountlmameliably determined. Revenue is stated net of
any adjustments.

e Advertising revenue is recognized at the momentathertisement is broadcast or published or
provision of services offered.

e Costis recognized using the same criteria formegaecognition and on an accruals basis.

« Interest income and expense are recognized oncanade basis.

< Dividends are recognized only as from when theedi@ders’ right to the dividend payment has
been established, and only when resulting fromaditpdistribution following the acquisition of the
investment; in the case, however, of a profit distiion prior to the acquisition of their relevant

shares, such dividends are treated as a reduatibie icost of the relevant investment.
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« The recharges of costs incurred on behalf of thadies are recognized as a reduction in the
cost to which they relate.
« Financial income and expense are recognized ifndwme statement on a maturity basis, as a

function of time, using the effective interest nuath

Taxes

Taxes for the year correspond to the sum of cuardtdeferred taxes.

Current taxes are based upon taxable income foyghe Taxable income differs from the results
shown in the income statement as it excludes bo#itipe and negative entries which would be
taxable or deductible in other tax years and exadutbmponents which are not taxable or deductible
at any time.

Cairo Communication and its subsidiaries Cairo &ditS.p.A., Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei
S.r.l. in liquidation, La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.y,ICairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sport S)r.I.
and Cairo Publishing participate in the national ¢ansolidation scheme of UT Communications
S.p.A., in accordance with art. 117/129 of the @tidated Income Tax Act.

The consolidation scheme, which regulates econ@spects pertaining to the sums deposited or
calculated against the advantages or disadvantagsig from the national tax consolidation
scheme, also allows for any increased costs oredeed benefits incurred by the Companies, by
participating in this procedure, to be repaid by Brarent U.T. Communications S.p.A.

UT Communications S.p.A. acts as the tax parentdmtelrmines a single taxable base for the group
of companies that adheres to the national tax dislagimn scheme, which thereby benefits from the
ability of offsetting taxable profits against talalbosses in one tax return.

Each company that participates in the nationattaxsolidation scheme transfers its taxable profit o
loss to the tax parent. For any such taxable prefiorted by a subsidiary, UT Communications
S.p.A. recognizes receivables equal to the IRESilpay Conversely, for any such taxable loss,
reported by a subsidiary, UT Communications S.pe&ognize a payable equal to IRES due on the
loss that has been contractually transferred ati®Glevel.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized dll taxable temporary differences, while defdrre
tax assets are recognized to the extent of theapilily that there will be future taxable profits
which will allow for the utilization of the deduble temporary differences. Deferred taxes are
calculated on the basis of the tax rates that@eséen will be in force at the moment of realmati

of the asset or settlement of the liability, basadax legislation in force at the reporting dathere
relevant, the effects of any changes in tax rateotegislation after the reporting date are disetl

in the notes. Deferred tax assets and liabildiesreported at their net value when there is alleg
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right to offset current tax liabilities and assetsd when the taxes relate to the same taxation

authority.

Post-employment benefits

For Italian companies with at least 50 employeestpmployment benefits take the form of a

defined benefit plan, solely for the amounts acdrpor to 1 January 2007 (and not yet paid at the
reporting date), whereas subsequent to such deg are recognized as a defined contribution plan.
For Italian companies with less than 50 employgest-employment benefits are considered as a
defined benefit plan. All defined benefit plans digcounted.

The Company has less than 50 employees. The diSoguprocess, based on demographic and
financial assumptions, is performed by independetuaries.

In accordance with IAS 19 Employee Benefitsthe recognition of expenses related to work
performed and net financial charges are recognizdte income statement, while actuarial gains

and losses arising from the re-measurement oflilialsiand assets are recognized in the statenfient o

comprehensive income.

Non-current assets

Intangible assets

Costs, including accessory costs incurred for ttipieition of resources with no physical substance
are recognized among intangible assets when the isoguantifiable and the asset is clearly

identifiable and controlled by the Company, and rghine use of the asset will generate probable
future benefits.

These are valued at their acquisition or productost, including related costs — to the extent to
which they are considered to have a finite lifend ghey are amortized to reflect their remaining

useful economic lives.

The amortization periods of intangible assets oioues types are as follows:

Concessions, licenses, trademarks and similars 3 to 5 years
Software 3to 5 years

The remaining useful life and the amortizationesid applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the amortizadien is restated in accordance with the

“prospective” method.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are recognidesh their cost can be reliably determined and

when related future economic benefits can be edjtsysthe Company.
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They are recognized at acquisition price or praduactost, including directly associated expenses

and costs, plus the share of indirect costs whichbe reasonably attributed to the asset.

These assets are systematically depreciated oaighitline basis each year at rates consistett wit

the economic and technical useful life of the asd@epreciation rates applied are as follows:

Property 3%

General equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%-25%
Plant and machinery 10%
Office equipment and furniture 10%-12%
Electronic equipment 20%

The above PPE depreciation rates are reduced bydb@itg their first year of use, this percentage
representing the weighted average of the entrgéoall new assets, on an annual basis. Depreciation
begins when the asset is ready for use.

The remaining useful life and the amortizationestd applied are reviewed on a regular basis and
where change is deemed necessary, the amortizagien is restated in accordance with the
“prospective” method.

The remaining useful lives of assets are reviewetdially and if incremental maintenance or other
work has been carried out which changes the renminseful life of the investment, these are
adjusted accordingly.

Incremental maintenance and other costs producirgigaificant and tangible increase in the
productive capacity or security of assets, or leeging its remaining useful life, are capitalized a
recognized as an increase in the carrying amoutiteoéssets. Ordinary maintenance costs are taken
directly to profit and loss.

Leasehold improvements are recognized as PPE,eohatsis of the cost incurred. The depreciation

period corresponds to the lower of the remainirgfuldife of the asset and the term of the contract

Impairment of assets

At least once a year, the company reviews the exediity of its investments and whenever there
are potential indicators of an impairment loss BERNd intangible assets with a finite useful life,
order to determine whether such assets may haferedfan impairment loss. When such indications
are present, the carrying amount of the asset dsicexl to reflect recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount of an asset is the greates ddiit value less costs to sell, and its valuese.u

The fair value of a listed investment is determiaedording to its market price. To determine an
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asset’s value in use, the Company calculates theept value of future estimated cash flows,
inclusive of tax, by applying a pre-tax discourterahich reflects the current market valuationtaf t
time value of money and the specific risks inheternthe asset.

Excluding goodwill, when the impairment loss of asset no longer applies or is reduced, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased up to¢gheestimated recoverable amount, which may not

exceed the amount which would have been deterntiaddho impairment loss been recognized.

Investments

Subsidiaries and associates

Investments in subsidiaries and associates aregmemsm at purchase or subscription cost and
adjusted for any impairment loss.

Any excess in value between the purchase prideedirhe of acquisition and the company’s share of
equity at current values is therefore includechim¢arrying amount of the investment.

Investments in subsidiaries and associates aredutgj impairment testing at least once a year, or
more frequently if deemed necessary. Whenever tierevidence that such investments have
incurred an impairment loss, the impairment losgeisognized in profit and loss. Should the

company’s share of losses in an investment exdeeadrrying amount of the investment, and the
company is obliged to reflect those losses, thaevaf the investment is written off and the shdre o

any such losses is shown as a provision in ligslit\WWhenever an impairment loss is reduced or

ceases to exist, the loss is reversed up to tiggnaticarrying amount through profit and loss.

Receivables from subsidiaries and associates
Non-interest bearing loans granted to subsidiagies associates are classified under non-current

financial assets.

Current assets and liabilities

Receivables

Trade and other current assets are recognize@iaettimated realizable value.

Financial assets

They are initially recognized at fair value, whibhasically corresponds to consideration paid and
direct expenses associated with their acquisitiamancial assets acquired and sold are recognized a
their trading date, when the Company intends taigetsell these assets.

At the subsequent reporting dates, the financis¢tasthat the Company has the intention and the
ability to hold to maturity (held-to-maturity inviesents) are recognized at amortized cost, netpf an

impairment losses, to reflect write-downs, if any.
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Investments other than those held to maturity &assiied as held for trading or available for sale
and are measured at the end of each reportingdatitheir fair value. When financial assets are
held for trading, gains and losses arising fromyalue changes are recognized in profit and lioss.
the case of available-for-sale financial asset®)sgand losses arising from fair value changes are
recognized in comprehensive income. When availtdslsale financial assets are sold, redeemed or
transferred, cumulative gains or losses previowsiognized in comprehensive income must be
reclassified from equity to profit/ (loss) for tlyear. This reserve is also used if alignment to fai
value results in subsequent impairment of the assdtthe reserve is used up. Any additional loss
exceeding the reserve, should it result in an impanmt loss, is taken to profit and loss.

Regarding measurement of available-for-sale asdbes,directors have chosen as impairment

indicators the reduction in fair value below cosbeer 50%, or for a period exceeding 24 months.

Cash and cash equivalents

This item comprises cash, bank current accountsdambsits on demand, and other short-term
highly liquid financial investments which are eggibnvertible to cash and not subject to the risk o
significant value changes.

They are recognized at their nominal amount.

Borrowings, bank loans and overdrafts
Borrowings, interest-bearing bank loans and bardrdrafts are recognized based on the amount
cashed net of transaction costs, and subsequerghsured at amortized cost using the current

interest rate method.

Trade payables

They are recognized at their nominal amount.

Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges are recognizednwthe company has a legal or constructive
obligation resulting from a past event and for vhic probability exists for the fulfillment of that
obligation. The provisions reflect the best estanaased on information currently available to the
Directors of the costs required to fulfill the afdtion at the reporting date, and are discounteshwh

the effect is significant.

Treasury shares
Treasury shares are recognized as a reductionuitye@he effects of any subsequent transactions

are also recognized directly in equity.
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Dividends paid

Dividends payable are recorded as a movement iityegquthe year they are approved by the

Shareholders’ Meeting or by the Board of Direciarthe event of interim dividend.

Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements andtites thereto, in application of the IFRS, reaiire
that the Company carry out certain estimates asdnagstions which affect the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosures about assetscontingent liabilities at the reporting date.
Estimates and assumptions used are based on exqeegad on other factors considered significant.
Actual results could differ from these estimatestirBates mainly relate to provisions for risks
relating to receivables, investment measuremergred@tion, amortization, impairment of assets,
taxation, provisions for risks and charges, andingant liabilities.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly the effects of each variation therein are
recognized in profit and loss in the period in white estimate was revised. The effects of such
revisions are reflected in the periods on whicty thave effect, i.e. both in the current period, and
future periods, if relevant. In this context, fhersisting uncertainty factors in the short and iomad
economic term, which make it hard to predict anmetw normal market conditions, have led to the
need to make assumptions regarding future perfarenamhich are influenced by significant
uncertainty, and the possibility of achieving résudlifferent from those estimated cannot be
excluded for the next year, which could therefarguire adjustments to the carrying amount, even
significant, although these are obviously neitherently quantifiable nor foreseeable.

The items most susceptible to these uncertainte$h@ allowance for impairment, inventory write-
downs, non-current assets (intangible assets, gyopg#ant and equipment and investments), post-
employment benefits and deferred tax assets.

A summary follows of all critical measurement pre®es used and key assumptions made by
management regarding the future in the procespmyimg accounting policies and that could have a
significant effect on the amounts recognized in¢besolidated financial statements and for which
there is a risk that significant adjustments to¢heying amount of assets and liabilities couider

in the next financial period.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects Mamaget's estimate regarding the losses on
portfolio of receivables from end customers. THiewance is estimated based on the losses
expected by the Company, based upon past experiens@milar receivable, current and past due
dates, losses and receipts arising from the camsfulitoring of receivables management and from

projections on market and economic conditions.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recorded to the extenthtohwt is considered probable that future taxable
income will be generated to allow the utilizatiohdifferent deductible temporary differences. The
realizable value of deferred tax assets is peradijiceviewed according to the future taxable ineom

foreseen in the Company's most recent plans.

Recoverable amount of non-current assets

Non-current assets include investments, propetgntmnd equipment, intangible assets, deferred
tax assets and other financial assets. Managepegittdically reviews the carrying amount of the
non- current assets held and used, and those efsalssld for sale, as and when circumstances
require such revision. This is performed usingdb@émated cash flows expected from the use or sale
of the asset and suitable discount rates to catcpieesent value. When the carrying amount of a
non-current asset has suffered an impairment tbesCcompany recognizes an impairment loss equal
to the positive difference between the greatehefdarrying amount of the asset and its recoverable
amount from its use or sale, as determined acoptdithe Company’s most recent plans.

For the preparation of the financial statements3htDecember 2015, and in particular in the
performance of impairment tests on intangible assets and property, plant and equipment, the
different sectors of the Cairo Communication Grdwgve taken into account the expected 2016
performance, whose assumptions and results amneeimith the information disclosed in the section
on“significantevents after the reporting period and businessooltlin the Director’'s Report.

In addition, for the subsequent years of the phaggessary adjustments have been cautiously made to
take account of the deep market changes resutimg the current economic and financial crisis. No

significant impairment was required based on signrés in the plan.

Provisions for risks and charges

The provisions for risks and charges relating totiogent liabilities of a legal or fiscal naturesar
made on the basis of estimates made by the Disedorthe basis of valuations made by the
Company'’s legal counsels and fiscal advisers ompthbable charge that can be reasonably expected

to fulfill the obligation.

Risk management

The main fiscal, legal and financial risks to whigcairo Communication S.p.A. is exposed, as well
as the policies put in place by Management for tin@inagement, are explained in Note 27 and

Note 29. Reference is made to the Directors’ Reggyarding operational and business risks.
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Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios effective as from 1 January 2015

The following accounting standards, amendmentsiatatpretations, revised also following
IASB’s yearly improvement process, were applied tfeg first time starting from 1 January
2015:

IFRIC 21 — Levies- The interpretation, issued by the IASB in May 20frovides guidance
on when to recognize liabilities for a levy impodeyl a government, with the exception of
those governed by other standards (i.e. IAS 1mhecome tax IAS 37 establishes the
recognition criteria of liabilities, one of whick the existence of a present obligation on an
entity resulting from past events (obligating eyerfthe interpretation clarifies that the
obligating event that gives rise to liability foayment of a levy is explained by the relevant
legislation that gives rise to its payment. IFRIC i2 applicable according to the IASB for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2@Mle, according to the EU, for annual
periods beginning on or after 17 June 2014. Thdiggwn of the interpretation from 1
January 2015 had no effects on the figures of theual Report at 31 December 2015.
Improvements to IFRS: 2011-2013 Cycl®n 12 December 2013, the IASB published
“Annual Improvements to IFRS2011-2013 Cycle which acknowledges the amendments to
the standards as part of their annual improvemeategss. According to the IASB, the
amendments became effective for financial statesnbegjinning on or after 1 July 2014.
According to the EU, entry into force has been posed to the financial statements beginning
on or after 1 January 2015. These amendments pliecdprospectively and had no effects on
the figures of the Annual Report at 31 Decembes201

The main amendments regard:

 |FRS 1 First-time Adoption of International FinaatiReporting Standards It clarifies

that a first-time adopter, as an alternative toapplication of a principle currently in force

on the date of the first IFRS financial statementay opt for early application of a new

standard intended to replace the principle in fofidee option is admitted when the new
standard allows early application. The entity iguieed to apply the same version of the
standard in all periods presented in the first IFiR&ncial statements.

» |FRS 3 Business combinationsTe amendments aim to clarify the exclusion frdm t

application scope of IFRS 3 of all types of joimtaaagements, not only of joint ventures.

* |FRS 13 Fair Value MeasurementlFRS 13, paragraph 52drtfolio exceptioh in its

current version, restricts to financial assets latillities included in the application scope
of IAS 39 the possibility of fair value measurementa net basis. The amendment clarifies

that the possibility of fair value measurement aretibasis also applies to contracts within
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the application scope of IAS 39, but that do noetithe definition of financial assets and
liabilities in 1AS 32, such as contracts to buy aall non-financial items that can be
settled net in cash.

* 1AS 40 — Investment PropertyThe amendment clarifies that IFRS 3 and IAS 40rexte

mutually exclusive and that, in order to determivteether the purchase of a property falls
within the scope of IFRS 3, it is necessary tomrédethe specific indications in IFRS 3;
instead, to determine whether the purchase of pumperty falls within the scope of IAS
40, it is necessary to refer to the specific intiases in IAS 40.

2. Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatioa approved by the EU and

applicable from annual periods after 1 January 2015

Amendments to IAS 19 Employee contributions to defined-benefit pland he amendment,
issued by the IASB in November 2013, introducespfifinations to account for defined-
benefit plans that provide for contributions by émypes or third parties. Specifically, the
amendments to IAS 19 allow recognition of employare third-party contributions as a
reduction of service costs during the period inalibéervices where rendered, if the following
conditions are met:

- employee or third-party contributions are formadhpvided for in the terms of the plan;
- the contributions are linked to services rendeaad;

- the amount of the contributions is independenhefriumber of years of service.

In all other cases, the recognition of these cbations will be more complex, as they will be
allocated to each period of the plan through theaa@l calculation of the relating liabilities.
According to the IASB, the amendments became éfiedor financial statements that began
on or after 1 July 2014. According to the EU, enimo force has been postponed to the
financial statements beginning on or after 1 Felyr@015. These amendments are applied
retrospectively, but will have no effects on thgufies of the Annual Report at 31 December
2015.

Improvements to IFRS: 2010-2012 Cycl®n 12 December 2013, the IASB published
“Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2010-2012 CYclehich acknowledges the amendments to
the standards as part of their annual improvemeategss. According to the IASB, the
amendments became effective for financial statesnédmat began on or after 1 July 2014.
According to the EU, entry into force has been poséd to the financial statements beginning
on or after 1 February 2015. These amendmentalieed prospectively.

The main amendments regard:
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« |FRS 2 Share-based payment8mendments have been made to the definitions ditiivg
condition" and "market condition”, while further fdetions have been added of
"performance condition" and "service condition" gygiously included in the broad
definition of "vesting condition”).

« |FRS 3 Business combinationShe amendments clarify that a contingent considerat

classified as an asset or liability should be messat fair value at each balance sheet date,
regardless of whether the contingent considerdtiaa financial instrument to which IAS
39 applies or a non-financial asset or liabilityhaiges in fair value are presented in
profit/(loss) for the year.

« |IFRS 8 Operating segmentsThe amendments require an entity to disclose tfacers

used by management to identify the entity’s refmet@egments when operating segments
have been aggregated, including a descriptiohefaggregated operating segments and
economic indicators considered in determining wietthese operating segments have
"similar economic characteristicsThe amendments also clarify that the reconciliatio
between total assets of the operating segmentshanidtal assets of the entity is provided
only in the event that the total assets of the atjireg segments are regularly provided to the
chief operating decision-maker (“CODM").

« |FRS 13 Fair Value Measurement Amendments have been made to asis for

Conclusiondn order to clarify that short-term receivables grayables are still able to be
measured on an undiscounted basis where the effdttcounting is immaterial.

e 1AS 16 Property, plant and equipment and IAS 38ngible assets Fhe amendments have

eliminated inconsistency in the recognition of analated depreciation where the
revaluation method of a property, plant or equipt@ran intangible asset is applied. The
new requirements clarify that the gross carryingpant is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of Heset, and that accumulated depreciation
is equal to the difference between gross carryimpumt and carrying amount, less
subsequent depreciation.

« 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosuredollowing the amendment to IAS 24, the IASB:

- has extended the definition of "related party" nitees that provide within the group
key management personnel services (these entiteesisually hamed "management
companies");

- it has clarified that it is sufficient to providied total amount of the cost charged by the
management company without separately indicatinch égpe of benefit that the

management company has paid its employees.
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Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint arrangement$he amendments, published by the IASB in
May 2014 and approved by the EU in November 201d&vige clarification on the accounting
of purchases of interests in a joint operation whestivity constitutes a business. The
amendments are effective prospectively for annaalogs beginning on or after 1 January

2016; early application is allowed.

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38 Property, plant asglipment and Intangible asset$he
amendments, published by the IASB in May 2014 gmt@ved by the EU in December 2015,
aim to clarify that depreciation criteria regardimgperty, plant and equipment, determined in
accordance with revenue are not appropriate, agahenue generated by an activity that
includes the use of an asset generally reflectofaother than the consumption of economic
benefits that arise from the asset itself.

The IASB also clarified that revenue is not appiater to measure the consumption of the
economic benefits generated by an intangible addeis presumption may, however, be
overcome in limited circumstances. The amendmerdseffective prospectively for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016; esgwplication is allowed.

Amendment to IAS 27 Separate financial statemenitee amendments to IAS 27, published
in August 2014 and approved by the EU in Decembéab2will allow entities to use the equity
method to account for investments in subsidiaj@at ventures and associates in the separate
financial statements. The amendments will be rpwosvely applicable for financial
statements beginning on or after 1 January 20X18; application is allowed.

Improvements to IFRS: 2012-2014 Cycll September 2014, the IASB publishefinhual
Improvements to IFRSs: 2012-2014 CYclpproved by the EU in December 2015, which
acknowledges the amendments to the standards asfgheir annual improvement process.
The amendments are applied to financial periodésnbégy on or after 1 January 2016. Early
application is allowed.

The main amendments regard:

+ |FRS 5 Non-current assets held for sale and disooat operations —The amendment

introduces specific guidance to IFRS 5 in case rdityereclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held-for-distributi¢or vice versa), or when recognition of an
asset held-for-distribution ceases.

« 1AS 19 Employee benefitsThe amendment to IAS 19 clarifies that high dgyatorporate

bonds used to determine the discount rate of poptayment benefits must be issued in

the same currency used in the payment of the lenefi
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« 1AS 34 Interim financial reporting The amendment clarifies the requirements in treaev
that the disclosures required are presented ininfegim financial report but not in the
interim financial statements. The amendment requinat the disclosures be incorporated
by cross-reference between the interim financitiesbents and wherever they are included
within the interim financial report and that thecdment be available to users of the
financial statements on the same terms as thernmferancial statements and at the same

time.

e IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosuréie document introduces additional guidance to
clarify whether a servicing contract constitutesoatinuing involvement in a transferred

asset for the purposes of applying these disclagapgirements to the transferred assets.

Amendment to IAS 1 Disclosure initiativelhe amendments to IAS 1, published in December
2014 and approved by the EU in December 2015, @pkeal to financial periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016. Early application is atdw

The main amendments regard:

e Materiality and aggregation An entity must not reduce the understandabilifyite

financial statements by obscuring useful informatieith irrelevant information or by
aggregating relevant information that has differelmaracteristics or function. Additional
subtotals must be reconciled to the subtotal atadistoequired.

+ Information to be presented in the statement ddnfial position and of comprehensive

income: specific items of profit or loss, other comprelieasncome and the statement of
financial position can be disaggregated. Subtatalst: be made up of items recognized
and measured in accordance with IFRS, be preseamddabeled in order to make the
components of the subtotal clear and understandabi@ be consistent from period to
period.

- Statement of other comprehensive income for the Vba share of other comprehensive

income of associates and joint ventures accouragedising the equity method must be
presented in aggregate form but separately froraratbmprehensive income, as a single
item, based on whether the items will or will nabsequently be reclassified to profit or

loss.

« Notes — Structurghe entity is free to decide the order of pred@main the financial

statements, but must consider the effect on thenstahdability and comparability of its
financial statements, emphasizing the most relevaperating segments for the

understanding of its financial performance andrfgial position.
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3. Accounting standards, amendments and interpretatios yet to be approved by the EU and

applicable from annual periods after 1 January 2015

IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customer$he standard, published by the IASB in
May 2014, introduces a general model to determine whethegnwdnd to what extent will
revenue be recognized. The standard replaces ttogmiéion criteria set out in IAS 18 -
RevenuglAS 11 -Work in progress|FRIC 13 -Customer Loyalty Programmel;RIC 15 -
Agreements for the Construction of Real EstdERIC 18 - Transfers of Assets from
Customersand SIC-31 Revenue: Barter Transactions Involving Advertissggvices.

IFRS 15 applies to financial periods beginning omfter 1 January 2018, and early application
is allowed. On first-time application, IFRS 15 plied retrospectively. Certain simplifications
are, however, applicable ("practical expedienta$)well as a different approach ("cumulative
effect approach") that avoids the restatement afuah periods presented in comparative
information; in the latter case, the effects agsfrom the application of the new standard
should be recognized in the initial equity of thestf annual period for which IFRS 15 is
applied. The Group is still assessing the potemetifidcts of the application of IFRS 15 on the
consolidated financial statements.

IFRS 9 — Financial instruments.The standard, published by the IASB in July 2014,
supersedes IAS 39Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurem#fRS 9 introduces
new provisions for the classification and measurdroéfinancial instruments, including a new
model for expected losses in the calculation ofampent losses on financial assets, and new
general provisions for hedge accounting. It alsduitbes provisions for the recognition and
derecognition of financial instruments in accordamath the current IAS 39. The new standard
will be applicable from 1 January 2018; early aqaiion is allowed. As a general rule, under
IFRS 9, the standard must be applied prospectiedlypugh certain exceptions are allowed.
IFRS 16 — LeasesThe standard, issued by the IASB in January 20i6pgses material
changes to the accounting requirements of leastrgifinancial statements of the lessee, who
is required to recognize assets and liabilitiesiagi from leases in the balance sheet,
introducing a single accounting model for operating finance leases.

Specifically, the lessee is required to recogniabilities arising from leases at the present
value of future lease payments. The lessee witl bésrequired to record under assets the rights
of use of the underlying asset at the same vals@greed to the corresponding liabilities.
Following initial recording, the right of use witle amortized over the term of the lease or over
the useful life of the asset (if lower). The lidtyilwill be gradually paid through payment of the

instalments, with recognition of the correspondintgrest. The liability is determined by
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taking account only of the fixed component of tkade instalments and of inflation-based
components, if any, not of variable componentsufupayments, thus determined, will be
discounted according to the contractual rate ofdhgee's incremental borrowing rate, over the
period when the lease is deemed non-cancellable.IA8B has required the standard to be
applied for financial periods beginning on 1 Jagu2©19. Early application is allowed for
entities who apply IFRS 1&Revenue from contracts with customeexcept for special
considerations from EFRAG in the process of endoest.

Amendment to IAS 12 - Recognition of deferred tassets for unrealized lossesShe
amendment, issued by the IASB in January 2016ifielsthow to account for deferred tax assets
related to debt instruments measured at fair value.

The amendments will be applied to financial peribéginning on or after 1 January 2017.

Early application is allowed.

Cairo Communication will adopt these new standaasisendments and interpretations based on

their date of application, and will assess the e impacts following approval by the European

Union.

NOTES TO THE INCOME STATEMENT

1. Revenue
Net operating revenue amounted to Euro 106,026stmuli (Euro 116,595 thousand in 2014). Its
composition, versus 2014, is shown below:

Revenue 31/12/15 31/12/14

(€ thousands)

Print media advertising space sales 35 32
Cairo Pubblicitd TV sub-concession 101,050 111,592
Cairo Pubblicita print media sub-concession 728 716
Cairo Pubblicitd Web sub-concession 611 653
Group services 3,502 3,502
Other revenue from associates 100 100
Total 106,026 116,595

Revenue is generated exclusively in Italy and atyars by geographical area is pointless.
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In 2015, Cairo Communication continued to operatdéhe TV advertising sales market (La7, La7d

and theme channels Cartoon Network, Boomerang, @GXNiN) and on the Internet through its

subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, which operates on laz@ncession basis, invoicing advertising spaces

directly to its clients and returning to the subsgor Cairo Communication a share of revenue

generated by resources managed on a sub-concéssisn

In 2015, net operating revenue included the sulzession fees billed to the subsidiary Cairo

Pubblicita S.p.A. for:

- TV advertising sales, amounting to Euro 101,05Qisland,

- Internet advertising sales, amounting to Euro éiblisand.

- print media advertising sales on “Prima Comunicagicand “Uomini e comunicazione” of
Editoriale Genesis S.r.l., amounting to Euro 72818and,

Apart from providing advertising services, Cairo n@ounication also provides services in
administration, auditing, financial analysis, detdnagement and collection and marketing, to other
Group companies. Such services are subject toamatwhich are revised annually. Sales to Group
companies deriving from these activities duringytbar were as follows:

Group services 31/12/15 31/12/14
(€ thousands)

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 3,000 3,000
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 22
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 480
Total 3,502 3,502

Other revenue from associates (Euro 100 thousasdies to administrative services provided to
Torino FC S.p.A., a related party in that it iSmbitely controlled by U.T. Communications S.p.A.

2. Other revenue and income

Other revenue and income amounted to Euro 529 #mougEuro 350 thousand in 2014). These
mainly referred to charge-backs of costs to Graupmanies and contingent assets.

3. Services, use of third-party assets and other epating costs
Net operating revenue amounted to Euro 100,854stmal (Euro 107,831 thousand in 2014). Its
composition, versus 2014, is shown below:
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Cost of services 31/12/15 31/12/14

(€ thousands)

Publishers’ fees 757 770
TV publishing fees 96,037 103,300
Web publishing fees 556 581
Consultancies and collaborations 550 306
Cairo Communication Board of Directors’ fees 1,293 1,257
Cairo Communication Board of Statutory Auditorsese 71 71
Other administration and general expenses 1,590 1,546
Total 100,854 107,831

The decrease in “TV publishers’ fees” is ascribdbléhe decrease in advertising revenue. In 2015,
the item included Euro 94,284 thousand relatedutdighers’ fees to La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.)
for advertising sales on La7 and La7d . Publishieess granted to La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) for
web advertising sales in 2015 amounted to EurotA@Gsand.

Use of third-party assets amounted to Euro 712god (Euro 715 thousand in 2014) and refers
mainly to lease payments for property and officeigiepent.

Other operating costs amounted to Euro 81 thoufaa 91 thousand in 2014) and refer to prior-
year expense of Euro 34 thousand and other co&srof47 thousand.

4. Personnel expense

This item can be analyzed as follows:

Personnel expense 31/12/15 31/12/14

(€ thousands)

Wages and salaries 2,154 2,117
Social security charges 804 795
Post-employment benefits 87 78

Total 3,045 2,990

5. Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses

These can be analyzed as follows:
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Amortization, depreciation, provisions and impairment losses 31/12/15 31/12/14

(€ thousands)

Amortization of intangible assets 111 92
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 148 148
Additions to provisions for risks - 50
Total 259 290

6. Net financial income

Net financial income amounted to Euro 23 thousdhurd 365 thousand in 2014) and is broken

down as follows:

Net financial income 31/12/15 31/12/14
(€ thousands)

Interest income on bank accounts 92 505
Interest income from Cairo Publishing - 1

Total financial income 92 506
Interest and other financial expense (69) (1412)
Total financial expense (69) (141)
Net financial income 23 365

7. Income/ (loss) on investments

This item includes:

- dividends during the year from the subsidiary C&ditore, amounting to Euro 7,465 thousand
(in 2014, Euro 1,039 thousand for dividends fronr@€®&ubblicita and Euro 6,246 thousand for
dividends from Cairo Editore);

- adjustment of the investment held in Cairo Pubtigh®.r.l., amounting to a negative Euro 247
thousand (a negative Euro 200 thousand in 2014).

* *

8. Income tax

Income tax for the year amounted to Euro 735 thodisgEuro 1,891 thousand in 2014). In
accordance with the relevant accounting standdhdsdeferred tax assets, relating mainly to the

accrual of provisions whose fiscal deductibilitydsferred, were recognized.
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31/12/15 31/12/14

Income tax

(€ thousands)

Current tax

IRES 629 1,507
IRAP 119 326
Deferred tax assets 73 107
Deferred tax liabilities (86) (49)
Total 735 1,891

The reconciliation of the effective and theoretied charge can be analyzed as follows:

31/12/15 31/12/14
Pre-tax profit 8,845 12,477
Theoretical income tax charge (27.5%) 2,432 3,431
Tax effects of dividends received (1,950) (1,903)
Tax effects of other permanent differences 103 37
Tax effect on deferred tax assets following IRE{® change (from
2017) 31 -
IRAP 119 326
Current and deferred income tax for the year 735 B91

On 30 December 2015, the 2016 Stability Law wadiglied in the State Gazette; the Law changes
the IRES corporate income tax rate, effective fforancial years following the year ending on 31
December 2016. The IRES tax rate will be reducethfthe current 27.5% to 24%; as a result of
the reduction, all of the items under deferredassets in the 2015 financial statements arisiray aft
the 2016 financial statements were valuated udiegniew rate. The adjustment had a negative
impact of Euro 31 thousand on the income statement.

For a clearer understanding of the reconciliatibeftective and theoretical tax charge, IRAP has
not been taken into account as this is not basegreriax profit, and this would generate a
distorting effect between one year and the otHdrerefore, the theoretical income tax charge has
been calculated using the IRES rate in force dd&ember 2015, equal to 27.5%.

* * %
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9. Loss from discontinued operations

At 31 December 2015, this included the allocatiérEaro 1 thousand for the loss of the year
incurred by the subsidiary Diellesei S.r.l. in ligation. At 31 December 2014, the item amounted
to Euro 1 thousand.

NOTES TO THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

10. Property, plant and equipment

At 31 December 2015, this item amounted to Euro tB@8isand, with a net decrease of Euro 89
thousand versus 31 December 2014. Movements chroken down as follows:

Description Historical cost Revaluatio Accumulated Carrying Net change Carrying
n depreciation amount amount

31/12/2014 31/12/2015

Motor vehicles 472 0 (425) a7 (32) 16

Furniture and fittings 391 0 (241) 150 (12) 139

Communication 77 0 (74) 3 (2) 1

equipment

Electronic office 1,305 0 (1,090) 215 (29) 186

equipment

General equipment 124 0 (124) - 2 2

Mobile phones 36 0 (24) 12 3 15

Leasehold 278 0 (248) 30 (21) 9

improvements

Total other assets 2,683 0 (2,226) 457 (89) 368

The net change in the year is broken down as faliow

Description Additions Change in Depreciation Net change
accumulated
depreciation
from disposals

Motor vehicles - - (31) (31)
Furniture and fittings - - (12) (12)
Communication equipment - - 2) 2)
Electronic office equipment 49 - (78) (29)
General equipment 3 - Q) 2
Mobile phones 7 - 4) 3
Leasehold improvements - - (22) (22)
Grand total 59 (148) (89)
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Property, plant and equipment have not been suttjeetvaluation.
The item also includdgaseholdmprovements depreciated over the term of theeleas

* *

11. Intangible assets

Intangible assets amounted to Euro 296 thousaBdl Brecember 2015, decreasing by a net Euro 24
thousand versus 31 December 2014. Their movemenitsythe year are as follows:

Description Historical Accumulated Carrying Net change Carrying

(€ thousands) cost depreciation amount amount

at 31/12/2014 at 31/12/2015
Software, licenses and 2,763 (2,490) 273 6 279
trademarks
Total concessions, licenses and 2,763 (2,490) 273 6 279
trademarks
Website design costs 169 (169) - - -
Assets under development a7 - 47 (30) 17
Total other 216 (169) 47 (30) 17
Total intangible assets 2,979 (2,659) 320 (24) 296

The net change in the year is broken down as faliow

Description Additions Reclassifications  Amortization Net change
(€ thousands)
Software 51 66 (1112) 6
Total concessions, licenses and
trademarks
Assets under development 36 (66) - (30)
Total intangible assets 87 - (111) (24)

Expenses incurred for procedures and software gnagrare amortized over 3 and 5 financial
years.

12. Investments

¢ Investments in subsidiaries

At 31 December 2015, investments amounted to EBj@27 thousand (Euro 23,124 thousand at 31
December 2014).
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Description Carrying Impairment losses  Value increases Carrying
(€ thousands) amount at (decreases) amount at
31/12/2014 31/12/2015
Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation 0 - - 0
Cairo Network S.r.lI. (former Cairo 5,520 - - 5,520
Sport S.r.l.)
La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) 4,039 - - 4,039
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 357 - - 357
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 6,273 - - 6,273
Cairo Publishing S.r.1. 1,595 (247) 150 1,498
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 5,340 - - 5,340
Total investments 23,124 (247) 150 23,027
In 2015:

- the liquidation of the subsidiary Diellesei conteul) generating a loss of Euro 1 thousand.

The net deficit of the company is covered by thevimion for investment risks at 31

December 2015,

- Cairo Communication waived, in the reserve for éssaccrued or to be accrued, interest-

bearing loans of Euro 150 thousand provided tosthiesidiary Cairo Publishing S.r.l.; a

write-down of the carrying value of the investmavds recognized in 2015 for a total of

Euro 247 thousand, equal to the loss for the yE#reosubsidiary.

Annex 2 shows the information required by paragrépbf art. 2427 of the Italian Civil Code.

Information at 31 December 2015 is drawn from thaftdfinancial statements approved by the

Board of Directors of each direct and/or indiradbsidiary.

For more detailed information, a comparison betwearrying amount and the amount derived

from the application of the equity method is praddor each investment in the following table
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Description Equity Ownershi  Equity method (*) Carrying amount Difference
(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 (*) p
% @ (b) (a-b)

Cairo Editore S.p.A. 10,295 99.95% 23,707 6,273 17,434
La7S.ur.l 104,899 100% 78,944 4,039 74,905
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 271 80% 381 357 24
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 2,250 100% 4,578 5,340 (762)
Diellesei S.r.l. in (229) 60% (229) (129)

liquidation

Cairo Publishing S.r.I. (46) 100% (46) 1,498 1,544
Cairo Network S.r.l. 5,440 100% 5,440 5,520 (80)

(*) Amounts determined under IAS/IFRS

The carrying amount of the investments in CairolBhbing S.r.l. , Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. and Cairo
Network S.r.l, is higher than the amount obtaimsthg the equity method, respectively by Euro
1,544 thousand, Euro 762 thousand and Euro 80 &ndus

The carrying amounts of investments have undergmpairment tests to measure any potential
indication of impairment of their realizable values defined by value in use, that is, the present
value of their cash flow, estimated according ® ¢lpected results of the investments based on the
most recent budgets and business plans. The usleesé estimates is believed to support the
carrying amount of the investment.

The main assumptions for the calculation of vaiuade are as follows:

. three-year budget period,
. a growth rate of 1% to extrapolate the cash floesohd the current budget period,
. a weighted average cost of capitavatg of 10.5% considered consistent with the

company's industry.

Sensitivity analyses were performed, taking accafinbhe reasonable changes in the discount rate.
The results show that the recoverability of invesstis is not particularly sensitive to changes in

this parameter.

The company prepares Group consolidated finandatemments which, taking account of the
investments held, are an essential document toremrsuimplete understanding of the activities of
the Group, the Parent and its investments.
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13. Receivables from subsidiaries and other non-crent financial assets

Other non-current financial assets

At 31 December 2015, non-current financial asseteumted to Euro 8,963 thousand (Euro 1,663
thousand at 31 December 2014), relating to intdrest loans granted to the subsidiary Cairo
Network S.r.l. (Euro 8,950 thousand) and to segut#posits (Euro 13 thousand).

* % %

14. Deferred tax assets

At 31 December 2015, deferred tax assets amouontéaito 344 thousand (Euro 424 thousand at
31 December 2014). These assets can be analyfeltbas:

31/12/15 31/12/14

Deferred tax assets Amount of  Tax effect Amount of Tax effect
(€ thousands) temporary temporary

differences differences
Taxed allowance for impairment 643 157 719 199
Other temporary differences 480 131 564 157
Post-employment benefits IAS 231 56 247 68
Total deferred tax assets 1,354 344 1,530 424

On 30 December 2015, the 2016 Stability Law wadiglied in the State Gazette; the Law changes
the IRES corporate income tax rate, effective fforancial years following the year ending on 31
December 2016. The IRES tax rate will be reducethfthe current 27.5% to 24%; as a result of
the reduction, all of the items under deferredassets in the 2015 financial statements arisiray aft
the 2016 financial statements were valuated udiegniew rate. The adjustment had a negative
impact of Euro 31 thousand on the income statenaesgunted for under “Income tax”. Details on
the composition are found in the section on “Incameé.

Deferred tax assets relate to the recognition abD8&ember 2015 of deferred tax assets on the
temporary differences between the carrying amotirgangnized assets and liabilities and their tax
values.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extegtale considered recoverable depending on the
presence of future taxable income in which tempodifferences will be reversed. Management
periodically reviews the estimates underlying theoverability of these amounts.
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Trade receivables amounted to Euro 72 thousandeasiog by Euro 248 thousand versus 31

15. Trade receivables

December 2014. These are broken down as follows:

Trade receivables 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
(€ thousands)

Trade receivables 666 990 (324)
Allowance for impairment (594) (670) 76
Total trade receivables 72 320 (248)

Since 2009, Cairo Communication has operated oadkertising sales market on a sub-concession
basis with the subsidiary Cairo Pubblicita, whiclvdices directly to its customers and returns a
share of the revenue to its parent. Current rebdgaarising from this activity accrue from the
subsidiary.

The ageing of trade receivables by due date islbmifs:

31 December 2015 Current Past due Pastdue Past due Pastdue  Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 day: and 90 daysand 180 days  days

Trade receivables 54 - - - 612 666
Allowance for impairment - - - - (594) (594)
Trade receivables 54 - - - 18 72
31 December 2014 Current Past due Past due Past due Pastdue  Total
(€ thousands) between 30 between 61 between 91 over 180

and 60 day: and 90 daysand 180 days  days

Trade receivables 145 - - 30 815 990
Allowance for impairment - - - - (670) (670)
Trade receivables 145 - - 30 145 320

Trade receivables are shown net of allowance fqgrairment that has been determined taking
account specific collection risks and takes intccamt the allocation to the Company’s media
clients of a percentage of losses on receivabtpsldo the percentage of sales revenue allocated,
pursuant to advertising space sales contracts digpeween the two parties. Specifically,
receivables due more than 180 days are those varm$e when the Company used to operate
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directly as an advertising agency. As explainedgesi2009, advertising sales have been managed
under a sub-concession agreement with the subgi@airo Pubblicita.

16. Receivables from subsidiaries

These amounted to Euro 53,227 thousand, decrebgiBgro 12,248 thousand versus 31 December
2014. These are broken down as follows:

Receivables from subsidiaries 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change

(€ thousands)

La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) 2,090 1,718 372
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 334 6,689 (6,355)
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 236 390 (154)
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 57 199 (142)
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 50,510 56,479 (5,969)
Total receivables from subsidiaries 53,227 65,475 (12,248)

Receivables from La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.)ur& 1,970 thousand - are mainly those from
VAT payables transferred by the subsidiary as alte$ the VAT grouping scheme.

In 2014, receivables from Cairo Editore includeddE®,246 thousand for dividends to receive as
resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of the suasidn December 2014.

Receivables from Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. - Euro149, thousand at 31 December 2015 - are
mainly those from the sub-concession contracts,thoske - Euro 92 thousand - resulting from the
VAT grouping scheme.

Other trade receivables from Cairo Pubblicita S.pa& those from Il Trovatore S.r.l., are mainly
referable to centralized services provided by C&mmmunication S.p.A. to Group companies.
These services are provided through annual costedaharket value, renewable year by year.

* *

17. Other receivables and other current assets

These amounted to Euro 1,022 thousand, decreagirttuio 126 thousand versus 31 December
2014, and can be analyzed as follows:
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Other receivables and other current assets 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
(€ thousands)

Prepaid IRAP 10 75 (65)
Receivables from others 516 508 8
Prepayments and accrued income 496 565 (69)
Total other receivables and other current 1,022 1,148 (126)

assets

Withholding and prepaid taxes are taken as a demfuétom the payment of taxes to relevant

authorities.

18. Cash and cash equivalents

The item coincides with thaet financial position and amounted to Euro 9,039 thousand,

decreasing by Euro 16,729 thousand versus 20tdnlbe analyzed as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change

(€ thousands)

Bank and post office deposits 9,032 25,766 (16,734)
Cash and valuables on hand 2 5
Total 9,039 25,768 (16,729)

Cash and cash equivalents continued to be managddrly.

19. Equity

At 31 December 2015, equity amounted to Euro 44 th#fisand, decreasing by Euro 13,023
thousand versus 31 December 2014, mainly as atrektihe distribution of the 2014 dividend

resolved by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 28 Apf12 (Euro 21,152 thousand), and of the
comprehensive result of 2015 (Euro 8,110 thousand).

Share capital

The share capital at 31 December 2015 was Eurdt4fusand, subscribed and fully paid up,

comprising n. 78,343,400 ordinary shares to whizimominal amount is attributed.

In accordance with the bylaws, the shares aretexgis$, indivisible and freely transferable. The

requirements of representation, legitimizationgcwlation of the company investment required for

securities traded on regulated markets continagpdy.
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Each share has the right to a proportion of thditpadich has been approved for distribution and
to a portion of equity on liquidation and also liae right to vote, without limits other than thase
defined by the Law.

No securities carrying special controlling rights/b been issued.

No financial instruments have been issued attnilgutine right to subscribe to newly-issued shares.
No share incentive plans are foreseen involvingeskapital increases, even on a freely allocated
basis.

The reconciliation between the number of sharestantling at 31 December 2015 and those at 31
December 2014 is as follows:

31/12/2014 Purchase of Disposal of 31/12/2015

treasury shares treasury shares

Ordinary shares issued 78,343,400 - - 78,343,400
Less: treasury shares (779) - - (779)
Ordinary shares outstanding 78,342,621 - - 78,342,621

Share premium reserve
At 31 December 2015, the share premium reserve ai@ouo Euro 30,495 thousand.

Retained earnings

At 31 December 2015, the balance showed a podive 416 thousand. The item includes the
IAS first-time adoption reserve, with a negativéainae of Euro 1,313 thousand.

Retained earnings

(€ thousands) 31/12/2015 31/12/2014
Retained earnings 1,729 1,710
Retained earnings — “first-time adoption” reserve ,31B) (1,313)
Total 416 397

Other reserves
At 31 December 2015, the item amounted to Euro7lfbusand, unchanged versus 2014. It can
be analyzed as follows:
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Other reserves 31/12/2015 31/12/2014

(€ thousands)

Legal reserve 815 815
Negative goodwill 225 225
Other reserves 17 17
Total 1,057 1,057

Treasury shares reserve

In 2015, as part of the share buy-back plans, eastrry shares were sold or purchased. At 31
December 2015, Cairo Communication held a total. af79 treasury shares, or 0.001% of the share

capital, subject to art. 2357-ter of the ItaliawiDCode.

At their meeting on 28 April 201%fter revoking a similar resolution adopted on 29iA2014, the
Shareholders approved the proposal to acquire @pdsk of treasury shares in accordance with art.
2357 and subsequent articles of the Italian Ciatd€ for the purpose of stabilizing the Company
share price and sustaining liquidity, and, if deémecessary by the Board of Directors, through an
independent intermediary, of establishing a “shastxk” as provided in Consob regulation
16839/2009. The Board was authorized to acquirastngy shares up to the maximum number
permitted by law, for a period of 18 months frone thhate of authorization, by use of available
reserves, including the share premium reserveesdting from the last approved annual financial
statements. Specifically, the Board of Directoit be authorized to acquire treasury shares on one
or more occasions, acquiring shares directly onmiagket and through authorized intermediary — in
accordance with the procedures provided by art. hi44 paragraph 1, letter b of the Issuer
Regulations and relevant Instructions — and, ire&gh operations are carried out, according to
accepted market practices, pursuant to the regoktintroduced by Consob Resolution No.
16839/2009. Minimum price and maximum acquisitioitg per share are set at an amount equal to
the average official purchase price of the shardBorsa Italiana S.p.A. for the 15 working days
preceding the purchase, respectively reduced aedased by 20%. In case such operations are
carried out according to accepted market practioseder Consob Resolution 16839/2009, the
purchase of treasury shares shall be subject toeiulimits, including price limits, provided théme

The Board was authorized to sell, on one or momasions, any acquired treasury shares, setting
the minimum sale price per share no lower thamth@mum price calculated following the criteria
adopted for their purchase. Should the treasuryeshae sold according to accepted market
practices under Consob Resolution 16839/2009,aleeds treasury shares shall be subject to further

limits, including price limits, provided therein.
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The following table shows equity items and indisaifethey can be used and distributed, and tax
restrictions if any:

* %

(€ thousands) Use over the previous three
years
Amount/Description Amount Eligibility Available To cover losses Other

for use: portion (dividends)
Share capital 4,074
Treasury shares 2
Share premium reserve 30,495 ABC 30,495(1) (7,226)
Legal reserve 815 B
Other reserves 17 ABC 17
Negative goodwill 225 ABC 225
Retained earnings 416 ABC 416 (58,349)
Total 36,040 31,153 (65,575)

Legend:

A - for increases in share capital

B - to cover losses

C - dividend

(1) In accordance with art. 2431 of the Italian Ci@ode, the entire amount of this reserve may ib&iuted provided the legal
reserve has reached the limit as defined by ar802df the Code

Profit for the year
Profit for the year amounted to Euro 8,110 thoug&hao 10,586 thousand at 31 December 2014).

20. Post-employment benefits
This item amounted to Euro 1,288 thousand, withinenease by Euro 67 thousand versus 2014.

The movement is analyzed below:

Balance at Paid during the Financial Accrued Actuarial Balance at
31/12/2014 year expense during the adjustment 31/12/2015
year
Post- 1,221 (12) 20 87 (28) 1,288
employment
benefits
Total 1,221 (12) 20 87 (28) 1,288

The change in the composition of personnel dutiregyear is summarized as follows:
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Headcount at the Changes Headcount at year-  Average headcount
beginning of the end
year
Senior managers 7 1 8 8
Managers 3 Q) 2 2
Employees 18 Q) 17 17
Total 28 (1) 27 27

21. Provisions for risks and charges

Provisions for risks and charges amounted to EGbtliousand, decreasing by Euro 100 thousand
versus 2014.

Provisions for risks and Balance at Utilizations Released  Accrued Balance at
charges 31/12/2014 31/12/2015
(€ thousands)

Risks on investments 128 - - 1 129
Other risks 50 (15) - - 35
Deferred tax provision 86 (86)

Grand total 264 (101) 1 164

As mentioned earlier, the “provision for risks awvéstments” refers entirely to Diellesei S.r.l. in
liquidation, accrued during 2005/2006 as a reduibe subsidiary’s net deficit.

* *

22. Trade payables

Trade payables amounted to Euro 2,148 thousanitaligsn line with the figure at 31 December
2014.

23. Receivables from and payables to parent

Receivables from parents amounted to Euro 949 #raljsncreasing by Euro 152 thousand versus
31 December 2014, and refer mainly to receivablesm fU.T. Communications arising from the
national tax consolidation scheme. The receivabtesn from the tax advance payments netted
against tax liabilities for the year.

As mentioned earlier, Cairo Communication and ithsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo
Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatioba7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.), Cairo Network &.r.
and Cairo Publishing S.r.l. participate in the omdl tax consolidation scheme of U.T.
Communications S.p.A.

The consolidation scheme, which governs the firdragpects of amounts paid or received in return
for the advantages or disadvantages resulting flartax consolidation, specifically provides that
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any greater charges or minor benefits that mayuackr the company resulting from participation in

the procedure, be suitably remunerated by the Paren

24. Payables to subsidiaries

Payables to subsidiaries amounted to Euro 47,3@6stnd, decreasing by Euro 8,190 thousand
versus 31 December 2014. The following table shivvdreakdown of payables to subsidiaries that
relate to services received in the ordinary coofdmusiness:

Payables to subsidiaries 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
(€ thousands)

La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) 46810 52.590 (5,780)
Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 346 2.854 (2,508)
Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 6 6 i
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 66 66 i
Cairo Editore 1 i 1
Cairo Network S.r.l. 97 i 97
Total payables to subsidiaries 47.326 55,516 (8,190)

25. Tax liabilities
Tax liabilities amounted to Euro 339 thousand, dasing by Euro 952 thousand versus 31

December 2014. They are broken down as follows

Tax liabilities 31/12/15 31/12/14 Change
(€ thousands)

Withholding taxes on employees 166 177 (12)
Withholding taxes on contract workers 66 77 (12)
VAT payable 106 1,037 (930)
Total tax liabilities 339 1,291 (952)

As mentioned earlier, the taxable income of Caiom@wunication S.p.A., for IRES purposes, has
been recognized as a payable to the parent UT Comations S.p.A., in accordance with the

national tax consolidation scheme.
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Other current liabilities amounted to Euro 1,89@uband, increasing by Euro 8 thousand versus 31

26. Other current liabilities

December 2014. They are broken down as follows

Other current liabilities 31/12/2015 31/12/2014 Change
(€ thousands)

Social security charges payable 229 215 14
Other liabilities 1,663 1,669 (6)

Deferred income -

Total other current liabilities 1,892 1,884 8

Accrued expenses and deferred income are determaimad accruals basis.

*k%k

27. Commitments, risks and other information
Guarantees and commitments

Main guarantees given and/or received are as fellow

- Cairo Communication issued Unicredit S.p.A. a gotga to secure the bank loan
initially of Euro 25,000 thousand (Euro 20,000 thand remaining at 31 December
2015) granted in July 2014 to the subsidiary C&leawork for the purchase of the
rights to use television frequencies; the loan exgpent contains certain financial
covenants, to be verified annually at Group lewsingolidated financial statements):
the debt cover (the net debt/EBITDA ratio) mustldss than or equal to 1.75 and the
leverage (the net debt/equity ratio) less thanquaéto 1; breach of the commitment
and/or financial covenants may result in terminatd the loan agreement, pursuant to
Article 1456 of the Italian Civil Code. At 31 Decbkar 2015, the covenants had been

met.

- Early repayment is provided for in the event ofhartge of control of Cairo Network
Srl;

- other guarantees issued by bank and insuranceéutestito customers, public bodies

and lessors of property totaling Euro 2,862 thodsan

The agreements reached in the purchase of the eti@re capital of La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.)
also included a multi-year agreement between Lal Telecom Italia Media Broadcasting S.r.l.

(TIMB) for the supply of transmission capacity th@bvides, among other things, the issue by
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Cairo Communication of a parent company guarardemver the payment obligations undertaken

by La7, for a maximum amount of Euro 6,558 thous@mcluding VAT) per year.

*k*k

The contract, signed on 6 March 2013 with Teledtatia Media for the acquisition of the entire
share capital of La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.1.)\pded for:

- the buyer's commitment, for a period of 24 montbsK-up) from the date of finalization of
the acquisition, not to sell, assign, transferpdée of in any way, in whole or in part, the
investment in La7, or the business unit owning La7;

- Cairo Communication’s commitment, for a period dfrBonths from the date of finalization
of the acquisition, to use the financial resouraésing from the contribution received from
Telecom ltalia Media in the exclusive interest dod the restructuring of La7, and the
related prohibition to engage in certain transacispecified in the contract, including of an
extraordinary kind, aimed at depriving La7 of tlesaurces from the contribution to the
benefit of third parties or related parties, omtake new investments.

Both commitments expired on 30 April 2015.

In 2014, the subsidiary Cairo Network took parthe tender procedure opened by the Ministry of
Economic Development for the assignment of rigbtause TV frequencies for digital terrestrial
broadcasting systems, submitting its binding bid afnning the rights to use a lot of frequencies
("Mux") for a period of 20 years. In January 20C&airo Network and El Towers S.p.A. (“EIT”")
therefore entered into the agreements for the za#din and subsequent long-term technical
management in full service mode (hospitality, ssFviand maintenance, use of broadcasting
infrastructure, etc.) of the Mux. The agreementwigle, among other things, for:
- a transitional phase, which will see the realizatand start-up of the MUX and the initial
operations, which will run from the date the agreata were signed to 31 December 2017, and
an operational phase of the Mux lasting 17 yeasr(2018 to 2034);
- the right to free withdrawal of Cairo Network stag from 1 January 2025;
- guaranteed coverage at full performance of at 1@4%i of the population, in line with national
Muxs with greater coverage;
- consideration to EIT:
0 during the transitional phase (2015-2017), amogntina total of Euro 11.5 million
for the full three-year period;
o at full performance (starting from 2018), amountiadgzuro 16.3 million per year.

These amounts include compensation for the avétlabf the transmitters;
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- an annual consideration from EIT to Cairo Netwathkyrting from 2018, ranging between Euro 0
up to Euro 4 million, in the event that the avaddabandwidth on the Mux is not fully used by

Cairo Network.

With regard to the Automatic Numbering Plan, thenbers currently in use (7 for La7 and 29 for
La7d) are those assigned by the Ministry of Ecowmobevelopment in 2010, under AGCOM
resolution 366/2010/CONS. The Resolution had beesilenged by Telenorba and other local
broadcasters, with partial annulment specificatlgarding the assignment of numbers 7-8 and 9 by
the Council of State through Ruling 4660/12.

On 21 March 2013, the Communications Authority (A@@) unanimously approved the New
Automatic Numbering Plan for digital terrestrialei@sion (LCN) by Decision 237/13/CONS. The
decision confirmed, for national traditional broadters, the assignment of numbers 0-9 of the first
block of LCN numbering (see p. 39-40 and 44 of AGCDecision no. 237/13/CONS).

Deeming that the New Plan evaded the Council deStauling (given that it confirmed assignment
to the national traditional broadcasters of numk@& in the first block of LCN numbering),
Telenorba filed an appeal for compliance with rglim. 4660/12. The appeal was upheld by the
Council of State (ruling no. 6021 of 16 Decembet2Q which declared the New Numbering Plan
void (pursuant to Resolution 237/2013) for numbé&é@m 8 to 9, and appointed a special
commissioner tasked with verifying the correct gissient of numbers from 8 to 9 within 90 days
from the beginning of the proceedings, which sthrd@ 24 February 2014. However, since the
partial annulment of the previous Plan initiallglided number 7, on initiation of the procedure, th
special commissioner - inappropriately in the omnbf La7 - also referred to number 7, which
instead, under the Ruling, is not subject to veatfion by the Commissioner. AGCOM has in the
meantime re-extended the previous Plan (based mentuassignments), as also suggested in the
State Council’s ruling, in order to avoid a regatgtvoid.

In execution of ruling no. 6021, the Special Conmigser launched a public consultation on an
outline provision named "Automatic numbering plandmital terrestrial free-to-air and pay TV
channels, procedures for allocating numbers to igess of audiovisual services authorized to
broadcast audiovisual content using digital terr@stechnology and relating conditions of use."
Telenorba, All Music and AGCOM have challenged dloes adopted by the Commissioner, lodging
enforcement reviews and claims before the Staten@b(ihe court of compliance), arguing that the
Commissioner had exceeded the requirements ofrsent®. 6021 of 2013.

Following orders no. 5041, 5127 and 5859 of 20dd . 27 of 2015, under which the Council of
State has given the Commissioner certain regulationdischarge the task, the Commissioner

adopted a new outline provision (no. 7 of 2015§o0atpanied by an explanatory report.
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With such orders, deeming his task completed, thmr@issioner stated that LCN numbers 7, 8 and
9 established by AGCOM in the first plan of 2010e¢Blution no. 366/2010/CONS) should be
confirmed. Specifically, the Commissioner deterrditigat: a) in light of user preferences and habits
at the time of the switch-off, numbers 7, 8 and&ano be assigned to a national broadcaster; b) in
March 2010, seven national private commercial anesobroadcasters and three public channels
were in operation (including La7); c) 9 broadcastead a generalist schedule (including La7).
Telenorba lodged a complaint with the Council at8trequesting the annulment of or a declaration
of invalidity and/or ineffectiveness of the Spec@dmmissioner’s Resolution No. 7 of 2015, and
relating annexes (and of any other resolutions &by the Commissioner to the extent that
Telenorba is concerned). All Music also lodged eplaint against the resolution and the report
recently adopted by the Commissioner.

Through sentence no. 432 of 2016, the Council afeStuled for the fairness of the Commissioner's
provision, specifically on the point where all tarpositions - 7, 8, 9 - were to be assigned to
national, not local, broadcasters, and confirmeat thelenorba, as a local broadcaster, had no
entitlement to be assigned any such positions.

Through concurrent ruling no. 1836 of 2016, thetfaession of the Court of Cassation overturned
ruling no. 6021 of 2013 of the Council of State {@th as explained, had annulled AGCOM’s 2013
Plan and had appointed the Commissioner), owingdiation of the outer limits of administrative
jurisdiction.

To date, the effects of the Court of Cassation’ingu on AGCOM activities (and the
Commissioner’s) are difficult to predict, espegialtith regard to the effectiveness of AGCOM
resolutions no. 366/2010/ Cons and no. 237/13/Cons.

In any case, in the opinion of La7 and its legaVisets, further assessments on number 7 are

unlikely to be made, nor will the allocation ofghiumber to La7 be revoked.

As the result of a VAT audit performed on Cairo Qoumication S.p.A., in its report, the Guardia di
Finanza (the Italian Tax Police) identified sommedfings for 2002 and subsequent years (2003, 2004,
2005 and 2006) relating to the application if ahyAT on dealing rights charged to media centres,
which were subsequently included in the final auelitorts, which the Company has challenged.

For the periods 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005, theiftial Tax Commission of Milan has ruled in
favour of the Company’s appeals. The Agenzia detirate (ltalian Tax Authorities) has filed an
appeal with the Regional Tax Commission of Milaraiagt these decisions. In April 2010, the
Regional Tax Commission of Milan ruled in favourtbE Agency’s appeal regarding 2002, and in
October 2011 also regarding the years 2003, 20@4 2095, on questionable grounds. Cairo

Communication has already appealed to the Cour€Caxsation against the judgment regarding
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2002, for which the tax claim amounts to Euro 4éugand in addition to penalties of Euro 51
thousand, and the judgment regarding the subsegeans 2003, 2004 and 2005, for which the tax
claim totals Euro 247 thousand, in addition to piesof Euro 272 thousand and interest.

The Company has filed an appeal for 2006; the digon hearing was held on 23 May 2014 and,
following the ruling filed on 31 March 2015, the dvincial Tax Commission of Milan
acknowledged the Company’s appeal. The Agency hed &n appeal with the Regional Tax
Commission of Milan (for 2006, the tax claim is B3 thousand, in addition to penalties of Euro
79 thousand and interest).

In relation to the tax claim contained in theseorép based also on the advice of its tax constgtan

the Directors believe there are fundamental reagndgights to oppose the relevant findings.

In its hearing on 18 October 2010, the Provinciak TTommission of Milan acknowledged the
appeal filed by Cairo Editore S.p.A. regarding #ssessment notice for tax year 2004. The ltalian
Tax Authorities have filed an appeal with the RagioTax Commission of Milan against the ruling.
In its hearing on 27 May 2013, the Regional Tax @uwssion of Milan rejected the Agency’'s
Appeal. On 16 June 2014, the Agency filed an alppith the Supreme Court, and on 25 July 2014,

the Company notified its response to the countgypar

Immobiledit S.r.l., the subsidiary merged into @diditore in 2009, is party to a lawsuit regarding
property purchase. In 2004, the Court of Milanthia first instance, had rejected the adverse fgarty’
claims, ordering the adverse party to pay damagesettle in separate proceedings, and to repay
legal expenses. The Court of Appeal has partly reeek the ruling of first instance, ordering
Immobiledit to pay for the expenses of first andasal instance, rejecting the adverse party’s claim
for damages, which has appealed to the Court ofdfias against the rejection. Following Ruling
no. 25351/14, the Court of Cassation, rejectinghadl other grounds of the main appeal of Italiana
Assicurazioni, granted the first ground of appeaiaerning compensation for damage suffered by
Italiana Assicurazioni for the fitting-out of thegperty covered by the preliminary contract; the
Court referred the case to the Court of Appeal @M in a different formation, which will be
called to review the issue of compensation for dgagmanly on the point above; the request for
compensation by Italiana Assicurazioni regarding tllea granted by the Court of Cassation
amounts to approximately Euro 319 thousand, pltesést and monetary revaluation. With a notice
served on 25 May 2015, Reale Immobili (as transferiethe company) and Italiana Assicurazioni
continued proceedings, following the ruling of theurt of Cassation, before the Court of Appeal of
Milan. At the hearing on 29 October 2015, the Bgawdtponed to the hearing for closing arguments
set on 14 July 2016.
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- the financial statements at 31 December 2015 dinchide any receivables or payables

It is also noted that:

with a residual term exceeding five years.
- The financial statements at 31 December 2015 doinwtide the capitalization of

borrowing costs.

28. Related party transactions

In 2015, transactions carried out by Cairo Commatioe with related parties and the effect on the

financial statements can be shown as follows:

Receivables and financial assets Trade receivables Other receivables  Intra-group Other current

(Euro/000) and current assets financial assets financial assets

Parent UT Communications 59 890 - -

Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 50,418 92 - -

Cairo Editore S.p.A. 334 - - -

Cairo Publishing S.r.l. 57 - -

Il Trovatore S.r.l. 236 - - -

La7S.r.l 120 1,970 - -

Associates of UT Communications Group

Torino FC S.p.A. 31 - - -

Total 51,255 2,952 -

Payables and financial liabilities Trade payables Other payables anc Intra-group  Other financial

(Euro/000) current liabilities financial liabilities
payables

Parent UT Communications - - - -
Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicitd S.p.A. 346 - - -
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 1 - - -

La7S.r.l 46,810 - - -
Cairo Publishing S.r.1. 6 - - -
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 66 - - -
Cairo Network S.r.l. - 97 - -
Associates of UT Communications Group 47,229 97 - -
Torino FC S.p.A. 17 - -
Total 47,246 97 - -
Income and expense Operating Operating Financial  Financial (Expense)/
(Euro/000) revenue costs income expense Income from
investments
Parent UT Communications - - - - -

Subsidiaries of Cairo Communication

Group

Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. 105,456 - - - -
Cairo Editore S.p.A. 480 - - - 7,465

La7sS.r.l 170 (94,760) - - -
Cairo Publishing S.r.1. - - - (247)
Il Trovatore S.r.l. 22 (108) - - -

Associates of UT Communications Group
Torino FC S.p.A. 100 - - - -

Total 106,228  (94,868) - 7,218
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Revenue and costs Cairo Cairo Cairo La7 Il Trovatore  Torino FC
(Euro/000) Editore  Pubblicita Publishing
INCOME
Sub-concession payment 102,389 - - -
Administrative services and use of 480 3,000 - 22 100
serviced space
Recharged costs - 67 - 170 - -
Sale of advertising space - - - - - -
Interest income - - - - - -
Dividends 7,465 - - - - -
Total 7,945 105,456 - 170 22 100
Cairo Cairo Cairo La7 Il Trovatore  Torino FC
Editore  Pubblicita Publishing
EXPENSE
Internet services - - - - (108) -
Publishers’ fees (94,760) - -
Impairment losses on equity - - (247) - - -
investments
Total - - (247) (94,760) (108) -

Cairo Communication supplies a range of servicesame of its subsidiaries and associates,

mainly relating to management accounting softwarge of serviced spaces, administration,

finance, treasury, management control, credit mamagt and marketing activities, to allow the

individual companies to benefit from economiesaale and more efficient management.

In 2015, Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. worked for Cairor@munication:

- as sub-lessee of Cairo Communication for TV adsiagi sales (La7 and theme channels
under concession Cartoon Network, Boomerang, and)@NXd Internet advertising sales,

- as sub-lessee for print media advertising salegfonthe magazines of Editoriale Genesis.

Under these agreements, Cairo Pubblicita direotipices customers and returns a percentage of

proceeds to the sub-lessor.

In 2015, the concession contract for advertisingssaith La7 S.p.A. (former La7 srl) " continued.

In 2015, there were no transactions with the paflegnt. Communications) or with subsidiaries of

the latter, except for the contract with Torino Fi@ the provision of administrative services such

as bookkeeping; the agreement sets an annual teerof100 thousand.

As mentioned earlier, Cairo Communication and iibsidiaries Cairo Editore S.p.A., Cairo

Pubblicita S.p.A., Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidatioha7 S.p.a. (former La7 S.r.l.), Cairo Publishing

S.r.l., and Cairo Network S.r.l. (former Cairo Sp@.r.l.) participate in the national tax

consolidation scheme of U.T. Communications S.p.A.

Fees paid to the directors in 2015 are analyzelNdte 30 “Board of Directors’ and Board of

Statutory Auditors’ fees” and in the RemuneraticgpBrt, prepared pursuant to art. 123 ter of the

TUF.
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Cairo Communication, is a partner, earned feepiffofessional services provided to companies of

In 2015, Studio Magnocavallo e Associati, of whlalwyer Antonio Magnocavallo, director of

the Cairo Communication Group for approximatelydft4 thousand.

During the year, no transactions were concludeti wiembers of the Board of Directors, general
managers and/or with key management personnel, srsmbthe Board of Statutory Auditors, and
the financial reporting manager, further than feaisl and as already shown in this Note.

The procedures adopted by the Group for relatety geansactions, to ensure transparency and
substantial and procedural fairness, made by thenp@ay either directly or through its
subsidiaries, are illustrated in the Directors’ Bepn the section on the “Report on Corporate

Governance”.

29. Risk management

Liquidity risk

Cairo Communication is not exposed to liquiditykrign that on one hand, significant financial
resources are held with a net available positimarfcial position of Euro 9 million, while on the
other, it attempts to ensure that an appropriat@yato generate cash is maintained, even under th
current market conditions.

An analysis of the company’s equity structure shdwh liquidity, or the ability to maintain
financial stability in the short term, and solidityr the ability to maintain financial stability the
medium/long term.

It is Group policy to invest available cash in amwhnd or very short-term bank deposits, properly
spreading the investments, essentially in banknoglyrcts, with the prime objective of maintaining
a ready liquidity of the said investments. Couraetips are selected on the basis of their credit

rating, their reliability and the quality of thergee rendered.

Currency and interest rate risks

Cairo Communication is not exposed to these riskghat on one hand, there is no loan finance,
whilst on the other hand operations are carriedexctusively in Italy, and revenue is generated
entirely in the country and main costs are incuineuro.

Interest rate risk only affects the yield on aval#acash. Specifically, with reference to the net
financial position at 31 December 2015, a one pegage point reduction in the interest rate would
result in a reduction in annual financial incomepproximately Euro 0.1 million.

Movements in the cash flow and the liquidity of bempany are centrally monitored and managed
by Group Treasury in order to guarantee effective efficient management of financial resources.
Given the limited exposure to both interest ratd &OREX risk, the Company does not use

financial derivative and/or hedging instruments.
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Credit risk

Cairo Communication is exposed to credit risk, puily in relation to its advertising sales
activities. This risk is however mitigated by tlaet that exposure is divided across a large number
of customers and that credit monitoring and corgrocedures are in place.

It is of course possible that the financial crisigl the uncertainty factors in the short and medium
term could deteriorate, along with the resultingdir squeeze, and negatively impact on the quality

of credit and on general payment terms.

30. Board of Directors’ and Board of Statutory Audiors’ fees

The following information refers to the 2015 feesidoto Directors, Statutory Auditors, General
Managers and key management personnel, also inidfarfes, analyzed in detail in the

Remuneration Report, prepared pursuant to artter23f the TUF:

Name Position  Term of office Term expiry Fees Benefitsin  Bonuses and Other fees**
date * kind other
incentives
Urbano R. Cairo Chairman of Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 500 16 - 510
the Board
Uberto Fornara CEO Jan-Dec 201/12/2016 240 5 - 510
Maria Laura Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 20 - - -
Cairo
Stefania Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 32 - - -
Petruccioli
Roberto Cairo Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 20 - - -
Marco Janni Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 28 - - -
Antonio Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 34 - - -
Magnocavallo
Marco Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 350 5 - 300
Pompignoli
Roberto Director  Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 34 - - -
Rezzonico
Mauro Director Jan-Dec 201531/12/2016 32 - - -
Sala
Key management  N/A Jan-Dec 2015 N/A - 15 - 1,242
personnel

Marco Moroni Chairman Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
Board of 30 - - 25
Statutory
Auditors
Mariapia Maspes Standing Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
auditor 20 - - 17

Marco Giuliani Standing Jan-Dec 2015 31/12/2016
auditor 20 - - -

* Other fees, in addition to fees for the role ofdior (Euro 20 thousand), refer to:
. Urbano Cairo: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragrapHhtalian Civil Code (Euro 480 thousand);
. Uberto Fornara: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paragina3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 220 thousand);
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. Marco Janni: fees for attendance in meetings ofRetated Party Committee (Euro 8 thousand);

. Antonio Magnocavallo: fees for attendance in megtiaf the Remuneration Committee and the ContrdlRisk Committee (Euro
14 thousand);

. Marco Pompignoli: fees pursuant to art. 2389, paeggh 3, Italian Civil Code (Euro 330 thousand);

. Roberto Rezzonico: fees for attendance in meetihgdse Remuneration Committee and Control and Risknmittee (Euro 14
thousand);

. Mauro Sala: fees for attendance in meetings of Rigk and Control Committee and the Related Partyn@dtee (Euro 12
thousand)

** Other fees refer to:

. Urbano Cairo: fees for his duties performed for @aEditore (Euro 500 thousand) and other compamigthe Group (Euro 10
thousand).

. Uberto Fornara: gross fees as senior manager pagidlyl Cairo Communication (Euro 300 thousand), reenation from the non-
compete agreement (Euro 100 thousand), fees fodiies performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 100ottsand) and other
companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

. Marco Pompignoli: gross fees as senior manager psydy Cairo Communication (Euro 200 thousand), &es for his duties
performed for Cairo Pubblicita (Euro 90 thousandidaother companies of the Group (Euro 10 thousand).

. Key management personnel: gross fixed annual Gfeap for a total of Euro 1,010 thousand (comprigimgss remuneration as
manager) and variable incentive components amogrttrEuro 232 thousand.

Moreover, under Consob Communication n. DEM/110828824 February 2011, point 2.3, letters

(a) and (f), it should be noted that:

= there are no agreements in place between the Ramdrthe directors for any indemnity in the

event of resignation or unjust dismissal, or in #went their employment relationship ceases

following a takeover bid;

= there are agreements in place between the ParehtUderto Fornara, subject to non-

competition commitments for 18 months followingnémation of his management relationship

with the Parent, for payment during his relatiopshii a gross annual fee of Euro 100 thousand.

In the event of termination of employment beforeympant, as remuneration for the non-

competition agreement, as of May 2014, of the tetah of Euro 450,000, to be considered a

minimum consideration of the agreement, the Compaitlypay the manager the difference
between such minimum amount and the amount paid tihen as remuneration for the

agreement.

Moreover, there are no succession plans regardiecuéive directors.

At 31 December 2015, key management personnel ®fGhiro Communication Group was

composed of:

e Giuseppe Ferrauto (Director, General Manager anthger of Cairo Editore);

e Giuliano Cesari (executive director and General &gan of Cairo Pubblicita) and manager of

Cairo Communication;

e Marco Ghigliani (CEO, General Manager and manafena).

To date, Cairo Communication has no stock optiampin place.
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31. Transactions deriving from atypical and/or unusial or non-recurring transactions
Pursuant to Consob Communication of 28 July 2006D#M/6064296, it should be noted that in

2015 the Cairo Communication Group did not engagany atypical and/or unusual transactions,

which, by their nature or size, were considereblemon-recurring by the above Communication.

For the Board of Directors
Chairman Urbano R. Cairo
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ANNEX1

List of investments in subsidiaries and associates

SUBSIDIARIES.

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Profit at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/02%2
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/028

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/02%2
Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/15201

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Profit at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/02%2
Profit as per draft financial statements at 31/028

Ownership:
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Cairo Editore S.p.A.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
1,043,256
9,533,578
7,469,101
10,290,651
8,226,174
99.95%

La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.)

Rome - Via della Pineta
Sacchetti 229

1,020,000
112,658,454
(9,652,127)
104,898,574
(7,759,880)

100%

Il Trovatore S.r.l.
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
25,000
182,845
119,536
270,432
87,589
80%



Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2%2
Loss at 31/12/15:

Ownership:

Company name:
Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity deficit at 31/12/2014:
Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity deficit as per draft financial statement8ht12/2015:

Loss as per draft financial statements at 31/15201

Ownership

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2%
Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2015:

Ownership:

Company name:

Registered office:

Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:

Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2%
Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2015:

Ownership:
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Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A.

Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
2,818,400
3,109,675
(885,918)
2,250,490
(859,185)

100%

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation
Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
10,000
(128,122)
(656)
(128,758)

(636)
60%

Cairo Publishing S.r.l.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,000
52,491
(208,154)
(44,596)
(247,088)
100%

Cairo Network S.r.l. (former
Cairo Sport S.r.l.)

Milan — Via Tucidide, 56
5,500,000
5,515,210
(4,790)
5,439,776
(75,435)
100%



INDIRECT SUBSIDIARIES

Company name:
Registered office:
Share capital:

Equity at 31/12/2014:
Loss at 31/12/2014:

Equity as per draft financial statements at 31/Q2%2

Loss as per draft financial statements 31/12/2015:

Ownership:
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Edizioni Anabasi S.r.I.
Milan — Corso Magenta, 55
10,200
9,208
(1,557)
10,711
(497)
100%



ANNEX 2

Summary figures of draft financial statements of shsidiaries in the advertising
segment, il Trovatore and discontinued operationsté81 December 2015

Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received
B) Intangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets
Tangible financial assets
Total non-current assets
C) Inventories
Receivables
Current financial assets
Liquid funds
Total current assets
D) Prepayments and accrued income
Total assets

Liabilities

A) Share capital
Income-related and other reserves
Shareholders' contributions to cover losses
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year

Total equity

B) Provisions for risks and charges

C) Post-employment benefits

D) Payables

E) Accrued expenses and deferred income

Total liabilities

Income statement
A) Production revenue
B) Production costs

Cairo Pubblicita
Financial statements atFinancial statements

Il Trovatore

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation

Difference between operating revenue and dipgraxpenses

C) Net financial income / (expense)
D) Adjustments to financial assets
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses)
Pre-tax profit

Income tax

Net profit/ (loss) for the year

31.12.15 31.12.15 Financial statements at 31.12.15
0 0 0
110 0 0
37,567 104 0
27 0 0
37,704 104 0
0 0 0
72,996,123 703,159 95,986
0 0 0
4,845,783 33,113 61,129
77,841,906 736,272 157,115
194,854 426 62
78,074,464 736,802 157,177
2,818,400 25,000 10,000
281,550 5,000 0
9,725 0 61,000
0 152,843 (199,122)
(859,185) 87,589 (636)
2,250,490 270,432 (128,758)
1,318,300 0 63,219
1,154,927 15,753 0
73,207,609 450,618 222,717
143,138 0 0
78,074,464 736,802 157,177
145,263,091 895,582 0
(146,216,423) (760,796) (673)
(953,332) 134,786 (673)
69,570 3,766 (187)
0 0 0
0 0 0
(883,762) 138,552 (860)
24,577 (50,962) 224
(859,185] 87,589 (636)
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ANNEX 3

Summary figures of the draft financial statements dsubsidiaries in the publishing
and network operator segments at 31 December 2015.

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing Edizioni LA7 Cairo Network
Anabasi
Financial statements at Financial statements Financial statements atFinancial statements at Financial statements at
31.12.15 at 31.12.15 31.12.15 31.12.15 31.12.15
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 10,658,485 5,100 0 21,812,872 35,009,344
Tangible fixed assets 2,008,921 105 0 4,175,615 383
Tangible financial assets 66,264 0 0 285,580 2582
Total non-current assets 12,733,670 5,205 0 26,274,067 5,@2,309
C) Inventories 2,704,957 135,756 0 299,826 0
Receivables 21,439,732 2,414,912 7,925 51,614,642 249,932
Current financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
Liquid funds 7,399,877 126,835 12,740 104,089,721 167,860
Total current assets 31,544,566 2,677,503 20,666 156,004,{89 417,792
D) Prepayments and accrued income 325,005 2,238 488,247
Total assets 44,603,241 2,684,946 20,666 182,766,503 35,430,101
Liabilities
A) Share capital 1,043,256 10,000 10,200 1,020,000 5,500,000
Income-related and other reserves 1,021,221 0005, 129 111,621,609 15,211
Shareholders’ contributions 0 150,000 879 0 0
Retained earnings/(losses carried forward) 0 4927 0 16,845 0
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 8,226,174 (D&B) (497) (7,759,880) (75,435)
Total equity 10,290,651 (44,596) 10,711 104,898,574 5,439,776
B) Provisions for risks and charges 1,991,026 420,227 0 8,388,685 0
C) Post-employment benefits 2,149,151 197,406 0 7,886,2 5,433
D) Payables 30,135,826 2,111,909 9,954 61,460,026 29,984,892
E) Accrued expenses and deferred income 36,587 0 0 9642, 0
Total liabilities 44,603,241 2,684,946 20,666 182,766,503 35,430,101
Income statement
A) Production revenue 96,026,088 1,259,125 1,000 108,352,667 152,714
B) Production costs (83,243,386) (1,510,579) (1,568) (123,318,478) (256,224
Difference between operating revenue and 12,782,702 (251,454) (568) (14,965,811) (103,510)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 19,887 (1,793) 71 753,609 (400)
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses) 0 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit 12,802,589 (253,246) (497) (14,212,202) (103,910)
Income tax (4,576,415) 6,159 0 6,452,322 28,475.00
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 8,226,174 (247,088) )" (7,759,880) (75,435)
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ANNEX 4

Summary figures of the most recently approved finacdial statements of the
subsidiaries in the advertising segment, il Trovate and discontinued operations (31
December 2014)

Cairo Pubblicita Il Trovatore
Financial statements aFinancial statements at

Diellesei S.r.l. in liquidation

31.12.14 31.12.14 Financial statements at 31.12.14
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed assets 189 0 0
Tangible fixed assets 45,566 122 0
Tangible financial assets 1,827 3,873 0
Total non-current assets 47,582 3,995 0
C) Inventories 0 0 0
Receivables 81,031,391 747,895 96,061
Current financial assets 0 0 0
Liquid funds 8,884,899 115,079 128,353
Total current assets 89,916,290 862,974 224,414
D) Prepayments and accrued income 67,156 468 249
Total assets 90,031,028 867,438 224,663
Liabilities
A) Share capital 2,818,400 25,000 10,000
Income-related and other reserves 1,167,468 6742, 0
Shareholders' contributions to cov 9,394 0 61,000
Retained earnings/(losses carried 331 35,635 (198,465)
Net profit/ (loss) for the year (885,918) 1885 (656)
Total equity 3,109,675 182,845 (128,122)
B) Provisions for risks and charges 1,376,600 0 63,494
C) Post-employment benefits 1,005,889 12,020 0
D) Payables 84,350,941 672,574 289,291
E) Accrued expenses and deferred inc 187,923 0 0
Total liabilities 90,031,028 867,438 224,663
Income statement
A) Production revenue 156,216,323 896,290 0
B) Production costs (157,261,590) (715,247) (848)
Difference between operating revel (1,045,267) 181,043 (848)
C) Net financial income / (expense) 56,104 (775) (35)
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expenses) 0 0 0
Pre-tax profit (989,163) 180,269 (883)
Income tax 103,245 (60,733) 227
Net profit/ (loss) for the year (885,918) 119,536 (6%6
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ANNEX S5

Summary figures of the most recently approved finacdial statements of the
subsidiaries in the publishing segment (31 Decembg&014).

Cairo Editore Cairo Publishing Edizioni LA7 Cairo Network
Anabasi
Financial statements at Financial statements atFinancial statements atFinancial statements atFinancial statements at
31.12.14 31.12.14 31.12.14 31.12.14 31.12.14
Assets
A) Share capital proceeds to be received 0 0 0 0 0
B) Intangible fixed asse 11,607,28 9,33¢ 0 26,364,51 33,019,83
Tangible fixed assets 1,948,350 244 0 6,349,095 0
Tangible financial asse 64,26¢ 0 0 356,861 [0
Total non-current assets 13,619,903 9,582 0 33,070,468 3,089,834
C) Inventories 3,043,591 121,281 0 131,433 0
Receivable 25,415,31 1,891,00 7,901 61,329,95 33,27:
Current financial asse o 0 0 [0 [0
Liquid funds 6,951,318 632,634 11,756 106,518,096 50,363
Total current assets 35,410,221 2,644,92: 19,66:¢ 167,979,48 83,63¢
D) Prepayments and accrued income 283,574 1,615 0 475,2 22
Total assets 49,313,695 2,656,118 19,663 201,525,231 33,103,490
Liahilities
A) Share capiti 1,043,25 10,00( 10,20( 1,020,00 5,500,00
Income-related and other reserves 1,021,221 0005, 129 175,892,924 20,000
Shareholders’ contributio [0 0 43¢ [0 [0
Retained earnings/(losses carried fon 0 245,645 0 (54,602,342) 0
Net profit/ (loss) for the ye 7,469,10 (208,154 (1,557 (9,652,127 (4,790
Total equity 9,533,578 52,491 9,208 112,658,454 5,515,210
B) Provisions for risks and charges 2,161,176 390,749 0 9,135,578 0
C) Post-employment benet 2,239,16 175,13 0 8,098,97 [0
D) Payables 35,151,686 2,037,744 10,454 71,279,878 27,588,280
E) Accrued expenses and deferred inc 228,08¢ 0 o] 352,35 [0
Total liabilities 49,313,695 2,656,118 19,663 201,525,231 33,103,490
Income statement
A) Production revenue 97,086,783 1,283,909 0 116,485,17 1,833
B) Production cost (85,215,861 (1,550,612 (1,634 (133,088,04: (8,058
Difference between operating revenue 11,870,922 (266,704) (1,634) (16,652,866) (6,225)
C) Net financial income / (expens 82,57 1,85¢ 7€ 1,646,59 (285,
D) Adjustments to financial assets 0 0 0 0 0
E) Extraordinary income / (expens [0 0 0 [0
Pre-tax profit 11,953,497 (264,845) (1,557) (15,006,272) (6,510)
Income ta: (4,484,39¢€ 56,69: 0 5,354,14 172C
Net profit/ (loss) for the year 7.469,101 (208,154) as7)y (9,652,127) (4,790)
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APPENDIX

Information pursuant to Article 149-duodecies of Cmsob’s Issuer
Regulations

The following summary, prepared pursuant to ar@-fiof Consob Issuer Regulations, shows the
fees for the current period for auditing servicaed &r non-audit services provided by the Audit
Firm.

Euro/000 Services provided by Fees for the year
Audit
Parent - Cairo Communication S.p.A.

KPMG S.p.A. 75
Subsidiaries
- Cairo Pubblicita S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 35
- Cairo Editore S.p.A. KPMG S.p.A. 60
- La7 S.p.A. (former La7 S.r.l.) KPMG S.p.A. 75
- Cairo Network S.r.l. KPMG S.p.A. 17
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Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors
to the Shareholders’ Meeting of Cairo CommunicationS.p.A.,
pursuant to art. 153 of Legislative Decree 58/19%hd to art. 2429
of the Italian Civil Code

Shareholders,

pursuant to art. 153, par. 1, of Legislative Deare&8 of 24 February 1998, and to art.

2429 of the Italian Civil Code, we hereby informuythat during the year ended 31

December 2015, we performed the oversight dutiesgoibed by law (art. 14& seq of

the above-mentioned Legislative Decree), taking itcount the standards of conduct

recommended by the Italian Association of Publiccéumtants and Accounting

Professionals, and the relevant instructions pexvidy CONSOB communications

concerning corporate control and the activitiethefBoard of Statutory Auditors.

The above being stated, these are the resultegirdscribed oversight duties performed

during the year:

we attended the Shareholders’ Meetings and thogbeoBoard of Directors held
during the year, receiving from the Directors, at@dance with their obligations to
report to the Board of Statutory Auditors, unddr 850, par. 1, of Legislative Decree
n. 58/1998, timely and appropriate information ba tverall business performance
and outlook, and the most relevant transactiontgrims of size and nature, made by

the Company and its subsidiaries;

to the extent of our responsibilities, we gatherégdrmation on compliance with the
law and bylaws, and oversaw compliance with thaqipies of proper governance
and appropriateness of the Company’s organizati@alcture, through direct
observation, through information gathered from thanagers of the departments
involved, through regular exchange of informatiothvthe Audit Firm tasked with
the statutory audit of the separate and consolidéteancial statements, and by
attending the meetings of the Control and Risk Cdtem the Related Party
Committee (through the Chairman), and the meeitvitisthe Supervisory Body with

all members of the Board attending;

we oversaw the operation and effectiveness of rikernal control systems and the

adequacy of the administrative-accounting systed) apecifically, its reliability to



properly illustrate operational events;

pursuant to art. 19 of Legislative Decree n. 39RQthich has assigned the Board of
Statutory Auditors the role of "Internal ControldaAudit Committee”, we conducted
oversight duties provided therein on: a) the disate of financial information; b)
effectiveness of the internal control, internal ii@hd risk management systems; c)
the statutory audit of the separate and consoliddieancial statements; d)
independence of the Audit Firm, through direct obaton, information gathered
from the managers of the departments involved, landnalyzing the results of the
work performed by the Audit Firm. In such contex took note of the quarterly
audits performed by the Audit Firm to ensure thataccounts were kept on a regular
basis; we received from the Audit Firm the Reperesscribed by art. 14 and by art.
19, par. 3, of Legislative Decree n 39/2010, ad a®lthe “Annual confirmation of
independence”, pursuant to art. 17, par. 9, l¢tafahe above Decree; we analyzed,
again pursuant to art. 17, par. 9, lett. a) ofdheve Decree, the risks regarding the
independence of the Audit Firm and the measuraddpted to constrain such risks;
we controlled the proper operation of the auditeyson Group companies and the
appropriateness of instructions given to them, yoms also to art. 114, par. 2, of
Legislative Decree n. 58/1998;

we took note of the preparation of the RemuneraReport, pursuant to art. 12&

of Legislative Decree n. 58 of 24 February 1998] smart. 84quater of CONSOB
Regulations 11971/1999I§5uer Regulations), with no particular issues to report;
we controlled the actual implementation of corpergbvernance rules provided by
the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Compaisigsed by Borsa Italiana
S.p.A., as adopted by the Company;

we oversaw compliance of the internal procedureerrel to related-party
transactions with the principles contained in thegiRations approved by CONSOB
through resolution n. 17221 of 12 March 2010 andsequent amendments, and
compliance with the above Regulations, pursuaattto4, par. 6;

we verified compliance with the laws and regulasiom the preparation and layout of
the separate and consolidated financial statemastaell as the documents attached
thereto. Specifically, the separate and consolidatmancial statements are
accompanied by the prescribed statements of cortfosigned by the Chairman of
the Board of Directors and by the Financial Repgrtvlanager, pursuant to art. 81-



ter of CONSOB Regulations n. 11971 of 14 May 1999 asnldsequent amendments
and supplements;

« we verified that the Directors' Report for 2015 @bes with the laws and
regulations, consistent with the resolutions adwbgig the Board of Directors and
with the facts illustrated in the separate and obdated financial statements. The
half-year report and quarterly reports were pulelisin accordance with the law and
regulations currently in force and required no canta from the Board of Statutory
Auditors.

The specific indications to provide with this Refpare listed below, in accordance with
the provisions of CONSOB Communication n. DEM/10@%5%f 6 April 2001 and

subsequent amendments:

1. We gathered information on the transactmm®ajor equity and financial relevance
made during the period, also through subsidiatesgerify that they were made in
compliance with the law and bylaws and that theyeweeither imprudent or such

as to jeopardize the integrity of corporate assets.

We certify, therefore, that to the besbof knowledge, the above transactions were
based on principles of proper governance and keaissues regarding potential or

possible conflicts of interest were carefully asseés

2. The procedures adopted by the Company for cklgtarty transactions are
illustrated in section 12 "Related party transawfoof the "Report on corporate
governance and ownership structure" contained e DRirectors’ Report for the
financial statements and consolidated financialestants for the year ended 31
December 2015.

The characteristics of intra-group andated-party transactions put in place in
2015, the parties involved and the relating finah@ffects are appropriately

presented and explained in a specific sectionemtites to the financial statements
and consolidated financial statements, to whiclkregfce is made. In this regard,
the Board, in the course of its work, did not idignany atypical and/or unusual

transactions made during the year with third ancétated parties.

Pursuant to art. 4, par. 6 of the CONSOB Regulatiapproved by the above

resolution n. 17221/2010 of 12 March 2010 and syibset amendments and
supplements, which governs the decision-making gg®cand the mandatory

information regarding Related-Party Transactiohs (Procedures), we oversaw:



10.

i) compliance of the procedures adopted by the Compudtty the principles
contained in the above regulations and their olzsee,

i) fairness and correspondence of intra-group andeckiaarty transactions with
the interests of the Company.

In our view, the information provided by the &itors in their Report, pursuant to
art. 2428 of the Italian Civil Code (Directors’ Ref), regarding atypical and/or
unusual transactions and ordinary transactionsemtite previous point, is to be
considered exhaustive and complete.

KPMG S.p.A., the Audit Firm tasked with perfongistatutory audit, with which
we held regular meetings during the year, todapgil 2016) issued the Reports
under art. 14 of Legislative Decree n. 39/2010tifyeng that the separate and
consolidated financial statements for the year érgle December 2015 are drawn
up clearly and give a true and fair view of asse#dilities, financial position,
results of operations and other components of cehgmsive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company and the Graung certifying that the
Directors’ Report and the disclosures under arB-dig par. 4, of Legislative
Decree n. 58/1998 are consistent with the sepdma#acial statements of the
Company and with the consolidated financial statgmef the Group. These

reports do not contain any issues of note or exgdta comments.

In 2015, the Board received no complaints, pamsto art. 2408 of the Italian Civil
Code.

In 2015, the Board received no complaints froirdtparties.

In 2015, the Company did not assign KPMG S.pdditional non-recurring tasks.

There are no reports of tasks assigned to sulfjeatsare part of the “network” of
the Audit Firm KPMG S.p.A.

In 2015, the Board issued its opinion as prescripethw on the determination of
compensation to managers holding strategic respilitiss, as established by the

Board of Directors on the proposal of the RemumamaCommittee.

In 2015, the Board of Directors met five times, tBentrol and Risk Committee
four times and the Board of Statutory Auditors fdimes. The Remuneration

Committee met twice in 2015, while the Related y&ammittee met only once.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

The Board of Statutory Auditors acquired knowledge oversaw compliance with
the law and bylaws and observance of the principlggoper governance, ensuring
that actions decided and taken by the Directorsptiech with the law and bylaws,
and were made in a perspective of profitabilityd afhat they were neither
imprudent nor reckless, or in potential conflictioferest or in contrast with the
resolutions adopted by the Shareholders’ Meetimgsuxh as to jeopardize the

integrity of corporate assets.

With regard to the adequacy of the organizatiotralcture of the Company and of
the Group, the oversight duties of the Board otustey Auditors were performed
by acquiring knowledge of the organizational stmoet through information

gathered from each area, through meetings with nilamagers of the various
departments and with the Audit Firm as part of gular exchange of data and

information.

The Board acquired knowledge and oversaw the adgcurad effectiveness of the
internal control system, pursuant also to art. 19 egislative Decree 39/2010,

through regular meetings with the Director in cleagf the internal control system
and with the internal audit manager, and throughptesence of the Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors at the meetingthef Control and Risk Committee,

the Remuneration Committee, the Related Party Ctt@eniand of all the members
of the Board at the meetings with the Model 2311280Qpervisory Body.

The Board also oversaw the adequacy and reliabditythe administrative-
accounting system to properly illustrate operatiom&ents, through direct
observation, through information received by thenawgers of the departments
involved, by examining company documents and byyaimay the results of the

work performed by the Audit Firm.

The Board controlled the operation of the contggtem over subsidiaries and the
adequacy of the instructions given to the subseiaoy the Company, pursuant to
art. 114, par. 2, of Legislative Decree n. 58/@8pnder for the Group companies to
provide the required information to comply withtetary disclosure obligations.

No exceptions were reported in this regard.

During the regular meetings held by the Board at@ory Auditors with the Audit
Firm, pursuant to art. 150, par. 3, of Legislatbecree n. 58/1998, no relevant

issues emerged that need to be mentioned in tipsrRe



17.

18.

19.

The Board also controlled the actual implementatibnorporate governance rules
provided by the Corporate Governance Code for di€klempanies issued by Borsa

Italiana S.p.A., as adopted by the Company.

With regard to the oversight duties performed asitioeed above, there were no
omissions, reprehensible facts or irregularitiepor@able to the competent
authorities and/or the supervisory boards, or woofhmention in this Report.

Finally, the Board of Statutory Auditors performétd own assessments on
compliance with the rules of law regarding the pregfion of the draft separate
financial statements and consolidated financiakstants of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2015, of the relating explanabtatgs and the Directors’
Report attached thereto, either directly, assibtedepartment managers or through
information received from the Audit Firm.

Specifically, it is acknowledged that the separatel consolidated financial
statements of Cairo Communication S.p.A. for tharyended 31 December 2015
were prepared in accordance with the “Internatiéii@ancial Reporting Standards”
(IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Stadd Board (IASB) and
approved by the European Union, and in accordanttethe provisions issued in

implementation of art. 9 of Legislative Decree &/2D05.

Based on the foregoing considerations, with redgardhe oversight duties performed

during the year, the Board of Statutory Auditors ha remarks to make, pursuant to art.

153 of Legislative Decree n. 158/1998, to the extéits responsibilities, on the separate

and consolidated financial statements, and on tt@aeatory notes and Directors’

Report, agreeing with the proposal of the BoardwoEctors to allocate profit for the

year, and with the proposal to distribute dividermmtained in the Directors’ Report to

the IAS/IFRS separate financial statements of G@wommunication S.p.A.

Milan, 5 April 2016

Board of Statutory Auditors

Marco Moroni (Chairman)

Marco Giuliani

Maria Pia Maspes



The following pages provide a list of the positi@isdministration and supervision held by

the members of the Board of Statutory Auditorstimeo companies as at the issue date of

the Report (Annex pursuant to art. Igtdnquiedecies of the Issuer Regulations).

ANNEX TO THE REPORT OF THE BOARD OF STATUTORY AUDITORS OF CAIR O COMMUNICATION SPA

DRAWN UP PURSUANT TO ART. 153 OF LEGISLATIVE DECREE 58/98

List of positions held in Companies as per Book V, Tle V, Chapters V, VI and VIl of the Italian Civil Code
as at the issue date of the Report
(art. 144-quinquiesdecies Consob Regulations 11999)

Until approval of the financial

N. Company Name Position
statements
Marco Moroni (Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors)
1 Aromatagroup Srl Sole Auditor 31/12/2017
2 Asscom Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
3 Betfair Italia Srl Standing Auditor 30/04/2018
4 Cairo Communication Spa Chairman of the Board of Statusuditors 31/12/2016
5 Cairo Editore Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutargitors 31/12/2016
6 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Chairman of the Board of Stayufarditors 31/12/2015
7 Caseificio del Cigno Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2017
8 Elettrodelta Spa in liquidation Standing Auditor /BA/2017
9 Fratelli Giacomel Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
10 Giacomel Group Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
11 La7 Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors 31/12/2018
12 Locauto Rent Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
13 Locauto Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
14 Ostello Bello Spa Chairman of the Board of Statutonglifors 31/12/2017
15 Publicitas International Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
16 Revicom Srl Chairman of the Board of Directors Until revocation
17 SCF Consorzio Fonografici Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
18 Sony Music Entertainment Italy Spa Standing Auditor 31/03/2016
19 Ut Communications Spa Chairman of the Board of Statusaditors 31/12/2016
Number of positions held in issuing companies 1
Total number of positions held 19
N Company Name Position Until approval of the financial
statements
Maria Pia Maspes Standing Auditor)
1 Cairo Communication Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
2 Cairo Pubblicita Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
3 Cairo Editore Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
4 UT Communications Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
5 Torino FC Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
6 La7 Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2018
7 G.B.H Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
8 Alto Partners SGR Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2018
9 lItalholding Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2015
10 Eurofly services Standing Auditor 31/12/2016
11 Kelly service Spa Standing Auditor 31/12/2017
12 Aliserio Srl Standing Auditor 31/12/2017

Number of positions held in issuing companies

Total number of positions held

12



N.

Company Name

Position

Until approval of the
financial statements

Marco Giuliani (Standing Auditor)

[

QWO ~NOOOUITRA,WN P

Space 2 Spa

Banca Mediolanum Spa

Mediolanum Gestione Fondi Sgr P.A.
Banca Esperia Spa

2| Rete Gas Spa

Yara Italia Spa

Huntsman P&A Srl

Rothschild Spa

Hotel Splendido Srl

Cairo Communication Spa

Number of positions held in issuing companies
Total number of positions held

Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Audito
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor
Standing Auditor

31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/12/2017
31/03/2016
31/12/2016
31/12/2016
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(Translation from the Italian original which remains the definitive version)

Independent auditors’ report pursuant to articles 14 and 16 of
Legislative decree no. 39 of 27 January 2010

To the shareholders of
Cairo Communication S.p.A.

Report on the separate financial statements

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Cairo Communication
S.p.A. (the “company”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December
2015, income statement and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows for the year then ended and notes thereto.

Directors’ responsibility for the separate financial statements

The company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of separate financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations implementing article 9 of
Legislative decree no. 38/05.

Independent auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISA
Italia) promulgated pursuant to article 11.3 of Legislative decree no. 39/10. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the separate financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on our
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the separate
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of separate financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the separate financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.
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Cairo Communication S.p.A.
Independent auditors’ report
31 December 2015

Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements give a true and fair view of the company’s
financial position as at 31 December 2015 and of its financial performance and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards

endorsed by the European Union and the Italian regulations implementing article 9 of
Legislative decree no. 38/05.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinion on the consistency of the directors’ report and certain information presented
in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure with the separate
Sfinancial statements

We have performed the procedures required by Standard on Auditing (SA Italia) 720B in order
to express an opinion, as required by the law, on the consistency of the directors’ report and the
information presented in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure required
by article 123-bis.4 of Legislative decree no. 58/98, which are the responsibility of the
company’s directors, with the separate financial statements. In our opinion, the directors’ report
and the information presented in the report on corporate governance and ownership structure
referred to above are consistent with the separate financial statements of Cairo Communication
S.p.A. as at and for the year ended 31 December 2015.

Milan, 5 April 2016

KPMG S.p.A.

(signed on the original)

Francesco Spadaro
Director of Audit



CERTIFICATION OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PURSUANT

TOARTICLE 81 (TER) OF CONSOB REGULATION 11971 OF 14 MAY 1999 AND

SUBSEQUENT MODIFICATIONSAND AMENDMENTS

1. The undersigned Urbano Roberto Cairo, as Chairafahe Board of Directors, and Marco
Pompignoli, as Financial Reporting Manager of C&ammmunication S.p.A., also in accordance
with art. 154 bis, paragraphs 3 and 4 of Legistafiecree n. 58 of 24 February 1998, certify:

« the adequacy of the characteristics of the compan

« the effective application of administrative antt@unting procedures for the preparation of the
2015 financial statements

2. We also certify that

2.1 the separate financial statements at 31 Deaehiii&:

a) have been prepared in compliance with Internatidrialancial Reporting Standards
endorsed by the European Union, pursuant to EECuUIREgn 1606/2002 of the European
Parliament and Council, of 19 July 2002,

b) are consistent with the accounting records and $obkhe Company,

c) give a true and fair view of the financial positiand results of operations of the Issuer;
2.2 the Directors’ Report contains a reliable asialpn performance and operating results, as well
as on the position of the Issuer, together witlescdption of the principal risks and uncertainties

to which it is exposed.

Milan, 14 March 2016

For the Board of Directors Financial Reporting Manager
Chairman

(Urbano Roberto Cairo) (Marco Pompigho





